
Sacramento County Department of Health Services 
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB) 

 

02/07/2024 v.1  1 
This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website: 
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx 

 

Meeting Agenda                
February 14, 2024 / 11:00 AM to 1:00 PM 

Meeting Location 
Community Room 2020 at 4600 Broadway / Sacramento, CA 

• The Community Room 2020 is easily accessible without staff/security needing to let you in.  It is at the top 
of the back stairs (near the Broadway entrance, not the garage entrance). 

 
Public comment will be taken after each agenda item and at the end of the meeting. 
 

Topic 
Opening Remarks and Introductions – Suhmer Fryer, Chair  
• Roll Call and Welcome 
• *Review and Approval of 01/19/24 CAB meeting minutes 

Brief Announcements – All  
•  Bahir Zahiri is returning to Refugee 
•  

HRSA Project Director Update – Dr. Mendonsa 

HRSA Medical Director Report – Dr. Mishra 

*Final FFY 2024-2025 Budget Review and Approval – Rachel Callan and Stephanie Hofer 

*Review and Approval of Submission of 2023 Uniform Data Systems (UDS) Report to 
HRSA – Sharon Hutchins and Adam Prekeges 

*Review and Approval of the 2024 SCHC Quality Improvement Plan – Sharon Hutchins 

CAB Governance  
• Committees Updates to CAB – Committee Chairs 

o Clinical Operations Committee – Vince Gallo 
 *Review of Policies and Procedures 

 03-01: Telephone Protocol 
 04-01: Patient Satisfaction Survey 
 07-05: Credentialing and Privileging 
 08-20: Registration of Patient Deaths 

o Finance Committee – Laurine Bohamera 
 End of the Year (2022-2023) Financial Status Report 
 December (Mid-Year) Financial Status Report 
 Update on grants 
 *Review of Policies and Procedures 

 11-03-Budget-Development-and-Procurement-Compliance   
o *Governance Committee – Jan Winbigler  

 Recruitment Update 
 Bylaws revision proposal 

https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx


Sacramento County Department of Health Services 
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB) 

 

02/07/2024 v.1  2 
This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website: 
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx 

 

 Preparation for HRSA Operational Site Visit 

March Monthly Meeting Items – All 
• HRSA Project Director Report  
• HRSA Medical Director Report 
• *Review of 2024 SCHC Quality Improvement Plan 
• Committee Updates 

o *Policy and Procedure Review:  
 P&P 11-01: Sliding Fee Discount 
 TBD 

o December (Mid-Year) Financial Status Report 
o Recruitment and Training Updates 
o Final Evaluation of the 2020-2023 Strategic Plan 
o Review of 2024-2026 Strategic Plan baselines for metrics 
o Preparation for HRSA Operational Site Visit 

Public Comment Period – Laurine Bohamera, Vice-Chair 

Closing Remarks and Adjourn – Suhmer Fryer, Chair 

  Next Meeting: Friday, March 15, 2024 / 9:30-11:00 AM 
 
*Items that require a quorum of CAB members and vote. 
 
The Co-Applicant Board welcomes and encourages public participation in the meetings.  Matters on the agenda may be 
addressed by members of the public at the end of that agenda item.  In addition, matters under the jurisdiction of the Co-
Applicant Board and not on the posted agenda may be addressed by the public following completion of regular business. 
 
The agenda is posted on-line for your convenience at https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-
Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx  
 
Per the Brown Act, CAB members attending a CAB meeting through teleconferencing are required to disclose the location 
from which they are calling. It is illegal to call while driving. There is a cap on how many members can attend from outside 
Sacramento County. 
 
Meeting facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities. Requests for interpreting services, assistive listening devices or 
other considerations should be submitted by contacting the Primary Health Division at (916) 875-5701 (voice) and CA Relay 
Services 711 (for the hearing impaired), no later than five working days prior to the meeting.  
 

https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx


Sacramento County Department of Health Services 
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB) 

 

01/03/2024 v.1  1 
This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website: 
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx 

 

Meeting Minutes                
January 19, 2024 / 9:30 AM to 11:00 AM 

Meeting Location 
4600 Broadway, Sacramento, 95820 / 2nd Floor, Community Room 2020     
 
Meeting Attendees               
CAB Members:  Laurine Bohamera, Vince Gallo, Areta Guthrey, Nicole Miller, Jan 

Winbigler 
SCHC Leadership: Sharon Hutchins, Andrew Mendonsa, Robin Skalsky 
SCHC Staff:  Robyn Alongi, Sunbul Amaniar, Emily Moran-Vogt, Bahir Mohammad    

Zahiri 
Community Members: One present 
 

Public comment will be taken after each agenda item and at the end of the meeting. 
 

Topic 
Opening Remarks and Introductions – Suhmer Fryer, Chair  
• Roll Call and welcoming of members and guests. 

o Vice Chair Laurine Bohamera took roll and welcomed attendees. 
o New staff members were introduced. 
o A quorum was established.  

• *Review and approval of 12/15/23 CAB meeting minutes 
o Jan Winbigler made a motion to approve the December 15, 2023, minutes with the 

suggested changes. Areta Guthrey seconded the motion.  
o A roll-call vote was taken. 

 Yes votes: Laurine Bohamera, Vince Gallo, Areta Guthrey, Nicole Miller, Jan 
Winbigler  

 No votes: None 
 The motion passed. 

• Additions to the meeting agenda – None were made. 
• Public Comment – None. 

Brief Announcements – All  
• Several members are due for the ethics training and/or need to complete the conflict of 

interest declaration. Staff will assist members who need help completing these forms. 
• Bahir Zahiri is the new CAB support staff member. His phone number will be shared 

once the phone line has been established.  
• A member announced that the California Lieutenant Governor has asked for an opinion 

on how the Brown Act affects the American Disabilities Act. The opinion will address an 
exception to the Brown Act’s attendance requirement and allow a board member with a 
disability to attend remotely. The opinion should be made public in about 60 days. 

https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx


Sacramento County Department of Health Services 
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB) 

 

01/03/2024 v.1  2 
This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website: 
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx 

 

o SCHC will work with County Council to determine how to implement the ruling. 
• The Department of Justice and Health and Human Services is working on a permanent 

rule focused on health care for people with disabilities. It will include communication 
mandates.  

o SCHC will coordinate efforts to come into compliance once the rule is finalized. 
• The Brown Act training was cancelled because the presenter had a family emergency. 

HRSA Project Director Update – Dr. Mendonsa 
• Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) / Sacramento County Office of 

Education (SCOE) School Based Mental Health Updates 
o The Health Center, County leadership, and SCOE continue to discuss contract 

revisions and operations of the school-based Health Center program. 
o Leadership is meeting with County Council today to amend the contracts.  

• HRSA and Medi-Cal Audits / Facility Site Reviews 
o The Health Center is preparing for site visits and audits expected to occur in the 

first quarter of 2024.  
• Healthy Partners, Medi-Cal Expansion Update 

o Medi-Cal expansion was effective on January 1, 2024, and it will affect enrollment in 
the Healthy Partners (HP) Program. Most HP patients will become Medi-Cal 
members but some HP members will not qualify for Medi-Cal so they will remain in 
the HP program.  

o The HP Program currently has just under 3,000 patients. We expect continued 
decline as Medi-Cal expansion continues.  

o We received notification that some patients who have Medi-Cal and Medicare 
coverages (Medi-Medi) will have the option to move to a provider who is contracted 
with a new Medicare program. We are analyzing potential impacts, opportunities, 
and discussing expanded Medicare contracting including contracting with River City 
Medical Group (RCMG) for Medicare. Staff are working on the cost analysis.  

 For continuity of care, patients can request to stay with their current PCP for one 
year while the shift is being worked out. 

 This affects less than 500 SCHC members.  
 RCMG patients can be moved to Nivano if they want that, but SCHC cannot 

advocate for any health plan or Independent Physicians Association (IPA). 
• Improved Access and Provider Services 

o The Health Center continues to work to increase access to specialty care with 
MGR, an outside consultant organization. They are working with staff and 
analyzing data to develop recommendations.  

 Hiring more County staff is one way to ensure that SCHC is stable. The Health 
Center has more control over the assigned duties of providers who are County 
employees.  

• Health Center Growth / Staffing 

https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx


Sacramento County Department of Health Services 
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB) 

 

01/03/2024 v.1  3 
This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website: 
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx 

 

o The growth request was downsized. We are working with Health Center Leadership 
and developing a needs assessment for positions not initially approved so that they 
can be reconsidered.     

o Positions with initial approval: Nurse Practitioner, Medical Assistant, and Pharmacy 
Technician. The 10 limited-term positions are being analyzed to determine if all 10 
need to be maintained.  

• Staff Recognition / County Leadership Visit 
o Drs. Hutchins, Mishra, Mendonsa, and Nicole Reyes-Schultz were honored last 

week by the Sacramento County Executive staff and Department Leadership staff in 
recognition of their leadership and performance. 

o The awards were part of the County’s Value-Based Behavior campaign: Advancing 
Leadership and a Positive Culture in the County. 

o The Health Center hosted senior County leadership and Department leadership for 
a half-day visit. Drs. Mishra and Mendonsa highlighted our services and discussed 
the Health Center. The new County Executive will visit in the future. 

• Referral Department Improvements 
o Referrals remain a focus for the management team. A workgroup continues to meet 

to develop and implement a new workflow, identify productivity targets, and identify 
OCHIN (electronic medical record) tools that will make referral processing more 
effective.  

o We are hiring temporary staff to deal with the referrals backlog.  
o Scanning was also backlogged but the temps have helped, and scanning is now 

caught up. 
 We are looking into ways to integrate technology to make scanning more 

efficient and to improve two-way communication with specialists.  
 Leadership is considering the use of a portal that will streamline durable 

medical equipment (i.e., wheel chairs, oxygen, crutches) referrals.  
 The state is looking at a global health information exchange.   

HRSA Medical Director Report – Dr. Mishra 
• The Medical Director’s updates are included in the Project Director’s report above. 

CAB Governance  
• Committees Updates to CAB – Committee Chairs 

o Clinical Operations Committee – Vince Gallo 
 *Review of: 

 01-09: Clinical Performance Management Policy 
 The policy covers staff responsibilities, setting goals around the quadruple aim and 

how to measure performance. The changes made were mainly adding clarifying 
language. 

 A member suggested adding a citation of what an A-3 is or including it as a 
reference.  

https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx


Sacramento County Department of Health Services 
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB) 

 

01/03/2024 v.1  4 
This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website: 
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx 

 

 A motion was made by Vince Gallo to approve the Clinical Performance 
Management Policy. The motion was seconded by Jan Winbigler.  

 A roll call vote was taken. 
 Yes votes: Laurine Bohamera, Vince Gallo, Areta Guthrey, Nicole Miller, Jan 

Winbigler 
 No votes: None 
 The motion passed. 

 Overview of programs and services: Member Services  
 The committee reviewed the medical records and scanning program. 
 Scanning is now caught up and now we can look at metrics to determine the effectiveness 

of the workflow and staff. We will continue to use temp staff to support County staff. The 
number of temp staff will be adjusted to find a good balance.  

 A timeline has been drafted and we are working to establish metrics for staff.  
o Finance Committee – Ms. Bohamera 

 Budget process updates 
 The Finance Committee suggests combining all three CAB meetings for February into one 

meeting on February 14.  
 A motion was made by Jan Winbigler to combine the finance, regular CAB and the 

UDS meetings into one meeting on February 14, 2024. 
 Areta Guthrey seconded the motion. 

 A roll call vote was taken. 
 Yes votes: Laurine Bohamera, Vince Gallo, Areta Guthrey, Nicole Miller, Jan 

Winbigler 
 No votes: None 
 The motion passed. 

 End of the Year (2022-2023) Financial Status Report 
 The Health Center is down in our reimbursements, but had more income from Medi-Cal, 

Medicare, and grants.  
 Staff vacancies saved funds. 
 We have not paid SCOE invoices because we don’t have authority to pay. 
 $1.2 M in savings was returned to the County General Fund 
 $3.8 M is drawn from the General Fund each year. When a deficit cycle happens at the 

State, County General Funding becomes limited. SCHC prefers to come in under budget.  
 Update on grants 

 A detailed document of the grants budget was included in the meeting materials. The 
Federal government has a different fiscal year than the County so it can get confusing. 

 It appears we claimed most of the funding available to us except with the HIV grant. We 
have submitted a request to carry HIV funds over to 2024.  

 End of FY 2022-2023  
 The Finance Committee has reviewed the year-end financials. Staff will prepare the 

documents to present at the February meeting.  
o *Governance Committee – Jan Winbigler  

 Preparation for HRSA Operational Site Visit 
 The site visit officials will meet with CAB members. They want to ensure that the Health 

Center has a fully functioning board. They will ask CAB members about their responsibilities 
to ensure they are informed. Jan Winbigler suggested that CAB members review the Health 
Center Program Site Visit Guide and especially the checklist; a link was included on the 
Governenace Report to CAB and Sharon Hutchins will send the documents to members.    

 We should receive at least a month’s notice of the schedule of site visit events. CAB is 
welcome to attend any of the scheduled meetings.  

https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx


Sacramento County Department of Health Services 
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB) 

 

01/03/2024 v.1  5 
This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website: 
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx 

 

 Staff will add the HRSA titles to the County Health Center Org chart and send it to CAB after 
the new Health Program Manager starts and the org chart is revised. Staff will also ensure 
CAB is included in the org chart. 

 *Review of 2024 CAB Member Recruitment Plan 
 Deferred to February.  

 Recruitment Update 
 No new applications have been submitted. We have not heard back from the person who 

expressed interest in December. 
 Training Update: Brown Act Training today 11 AM-12 PM – Cancelled. 

February Monthly Meeting Items – All 
• HRSA Project Director Report  
• HRSA Medical Director Report 
• Committee Updates 

o *Policy and Procedure Review:  
 P&P 11-03: Budget Development, Procurement, and Compliance 

o December Financial Status Report 
o Recruitment and Training Updates 

• Brown Act Training update on date. 
• HRSA site visit update 

Public Comment Period – Laurine Bohamera, Vice-Chair 
• No public comments were made. 
• Areta Guthry said she will research what is posted at the bottom of meeting agendas 

stating persons with disabilities can request interpreting services, assistive listening 
devices or other considerations: the request should be submitted no later than five 
working days prior to the meeting. The agenda must be posted 72 hours before the 
meeting. The public may not know what is on the agenda and if they want to attend the 
meeting five days ahead of the meeting. 

• Sharon Hutchins will send all of information below each agenda to Director’s office for 
direction and revisions as needed. 

Closing Remarks and Adjourn – Suhmer Fryer, Chair 
Lorraine Bohamera adjourned the meeting at 10:56 am 

  Next Meeting: Friday, February 14, 2024 / 9:30-11:00 AM 
 
*Items that require a quorum of CAB members and vote. 
 
The Co-Applicant Board welcomes and encourages public participation in the meetings.  Matters on the agenda may be 
addressed by members of the public at the end of that agenda item.  In addition, matters under the jurisdiction of the Co-
Applicant Board and not on the posted agenda may be addressed by the public following completion of regular business. 
 
The agenda is posted on-line for your convenience at https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-
Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx  
 

https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx


Sacramento County Department of Health Services 
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB) 

 

01/03/2024 v.1  6 
This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website: 
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx 

 

Per the Brown Act, CAB members attending a CAB meeting through teleconferencing are required to disclose the location 
from which they are calling. It is illegal to call while driving. There is a cap on how many members can attend from outside 
Sacramento County. 
 
Meeting facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities. Requests for interpreting services, assistive listening devices or 
other considerations should be submitted by contacting the Primary Health Division at (916) 875-5701 (voice) and CA Relay 
Services 711 (for the hearing impaired), no later than five working days prior to the meeting.  
 

Commented [R1]: Areta will research this and get back to 
us. s 

Commented [R2]: Send to directors office for revisions as 
needed 

https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx


 

 

Sacramento County Health Center 
Co-Applicant Board 

 
 

02/07/24 

HRSA Project Director Report to CAB 
February 14, 2024 

 
1. Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) / Sacramento County 

Office of Education (SCOE) School Based Mental Health Updates 
• The Health Center, County leadership, and SCOE continue to be in discussions 

to revise our contract and operations of the school-based Health Center program 
and implement feedback from HRSA and our legal teams. 

• A draft updated contract/agreement has been created and sent to HRSA for 
feedback. We will begin pursuing memorandums of understanding between 
Sacramento County and the school idstricts that have a satellite site. 
 

2. HRSA and Medi-Cal Audits / Facility Site Reviews 
• The Health Center continues preparation for site visits and audits expected to 

occur this spring. Dr. Hutchins has formed ongoing workgroups to tackle various 
subject areas.  
 

3. Healthy Partners, Medi-Cal Expansion, and Medicare Updates 
• The number of patients in the Healthy Partners Program continues to decline 

(down a net of 1,119 during the month of January). We expect continued decline 
as Medi-Cal expansion continues.  

• We received notification that some patients who are Medi-Medi (Medi-Call and 
Medicare coverages) will have the option to move to a provider who is contracted 
with a new Medicare program. We have decided to postpone exploring expanded 
Medicare contracting until after priority projects are completed.  
  

4. Improved Access 
• The Health Center continues to work to increase specialty access with an outside 

consultant. MGR is working with staff and analyzing data to develop 
recommendations. We anticipate a report and recommendation by summer. 
 

5. Referral Department Improvements 
• Remains a focus for the management team. Dr. Mishra and Debbie Burrow are 

leading the improvements. Dr. Mishra will provide updates in her report.    
 

6. Health Center Growth / Staffing 
• No updates at this time. We await our Growth Request to go through the County 

approval process.   
 

7. General Updates 
• Health Center staff and providers have started a two-session training series on 

Gender Affirming Care. The training aims to educate staff, provide resources, 
and share tools and best practices.  



 

 

Sacramento County Health Center 
Co-Applicant Board 

 
 

02/07/24 

• Sacramento County Department of Health Services is in the process of 
redesigning the website. The redesign process includes soliciting input from 
users, community members, staff and Board members. If you have not already 
completed the survey, go to https://forms.office.com/g/SfDQUqvjf0. Please do not 
disclose personal health information.  

o We are aware that the existing website has accessibility issues. The 
redesign team has contacted County IT to ensure they are tracking the 
issue as part of the new design/features. 

• Pursuing CAB laptops remains an active project. We should be able to use 
existing laptops and simply add a standalone Microsoft Office package and 
license. Julian is also exploring camera options, speaker and microphone options 
should the laptop not have built-in options.  

 

https://forms.office.com/g/SfDQUqvjf0


 

 

Sacramento County Health Center 
Co-Applicant Board 

 
 

11/17/23 

Medical Director Report to CAB 
February 14, 2024 

 
1.  Programs 

• Referral Processing  
o We continue to fine tune the workflow to decrease the processing time.  
o The go live date for the Care Team Model pilot is February 13.  
o Staff for the pilot have been hired.  
o Recruitment for a Referral Nurse Supervisor continues. 

• Referral Scanning 
o The new workflow has staff prioritizing scanning of abnormal image reports to 

ensure providers act on the results quickly. 
 
2.  Audits – State and Federal  

• Facility and Medical Record Review  
o The Medical Director is meeting with all clinical program leads including Adult 

Medine, Pediatrics, Obstetrics, school-based sites, and the Homeless program to 
discuss the audit requirements, how to display our compliance, and to identify 
gaps.  

3.  Staffing 
• Radiology technician (X-ray tech): We are interviewing candidates to assist the current 

X-ray tech and to give us time to recruit a permanent Sr. Radiology Technician. 
• Nurse Practitioner: We requested the County reopen the list of candidates due to the low 

response during the first round of recruitment. 
 



Clinic Services FY 2024-25 Growth Requests  Page | 1 

Department of Health Services      Proposed Growth - FY 2024-25 
Primary Health Division 
Clinic Services 

 
Mid-Year Growth & Conversions 

(In Process/Completed) 
Item FTEs Rationale / Information 

Health Program 
Manager (HPM) 1.0 

This position was already created through position conversions. This is a key position 
to the Health Center Leadership Team and will be responsible for operational 
leadership, patient care oversight, and managing specialty teams such as Referrals, 
Call Center, and Member Services, for example. The position will also assist with 
oversight of the Administration team.  

 
Proposed Growth  
(in priority order) 

Item FTEs Rationale / Information 

Convert 10 Limited 
Term Positions to 
Permanent Status. 

 
DHS DIRECTOR 

DENIED REQUEST 

10.0 

Convert 10.0 current LT positions into Permanent status (1.0 FTE Licensed Vocational 
Nurse, 1.0 FTE Sr Account Clerk, 2.0 FTE Registered Nurse Lv 2, 4.0 FTE Office 
Assistant Lv 2, 1.0 FTE Medical Assistant Lv 2, and 1.0 FTE Pharmacy Technician). 
Funding is ending on these positions on 12/31/24.  These positions are supporting 
crucial clinic operations including Referrals, Call Center and Registration, Refugee, 
Family Medicine, Clinical Pharmacy support, and Administrative functions. Positions 
are needed going forward in order to ensure compliance with regulations, patient 
access, and mandated services. Once funding ends on 12/31/24, the positions will be 
funded with Medi-Cal reimbursements. 

Nurse Practitioner 
and Medical 

Assistant 
 

DHS DIRECTOR 
APPROVED REQUEST 

 
 

2.0 

Create a new Nurse Practitioner (NP) position and reallocate 1.0 Medical Assistant LT 
to perm. Additional position will address access issues by adding a clinician to 
complete visits with patients. The NP will work in various programs where there is 
current backlog. Assigned patients not seen are in conflict with IPA contracts and 
timeliness to care is a California Department of Managed Health Care and 
Department of Health Care Service requirement. The position is expected to generate 
sufficient Medi-Cal revenue through billable patient visits through the FQHC's PPS 
rate to completely cover its costs each year. The number of visits completed by this 
new position is projected to be around 2100 visits per year, with an estimated annual 
revenue of $557,000 based on the FQHC's interim rate. After three years, revenue 
will be realized at the full PPS rate after DHCS's annual reconciliation process is 
completed. Growth request also includes money in one-time supply costs to 
purchase supplies and equipment needed to set up an existing space at the Primary 
Care Center as an exam room for the additional clinician.   

Senior Account Clerk 
 

DHS DIRECTOR 
APPROVED REQUEST 

 

1.0 

Reallocate vacant Public Health Aide to Sr Account Clerk Position for Clinic 
Administration to assist with processing of Refugee claims, Quest lab files, check 
coding and more.  The work is currently handled by an agency temp employee and 
the volume of work assigned will increase with a full-time position. The duties are 
part of ongoing operations as long as the clinic keeps providing these types of services 
for Refugee etc. The position will be funded through Medi-Cal reimbursements. 

Senior Office 
Assistant 

 
DHS DIRECTOR 

DENIED REQUEST 

1.0 

Create a new Senior Office Assistant position for the clinic, to help with Provider 
Panel Management. There is no dedicated staff for this task, and as clinic operations 
grow, it is becoming more and more crucial to have dedicated staff for this role as 
properly creating and maintenance of patient panels will positively affect efficiency 
in all clinical programs and clinical support programs. This position will be funded 
through Medi-Cal reimbursements. 



Clinic Services FY 2024-25 Growth Requests  Page | 2 

Pharmacy Technician 
 

DHS DIRECTOR 
APPROVED REQUEST 

 

1.0 

Create a new Pharmacy Technician position for the clinic. This position will complete 
Prior Authorizations for medications, allowing providers to focus on productive 
clinical time. This is currently handled by a Registry (non-County) staff. The perm 
position will allow for continuity for the specialized pharmacy technician function 
that requires expanded drug knowledge and computer skills. In addition, this position 
will conduct diabetes education classes, conduct diabetic retinal screening and other 
testing to help manage this chronic condition, and help meet contractual and 
regulatory HEDIS Quality standards. This position will be funded through Medi-Cal 
reimbursements. 

Medical Assistant 
 

DHS DIRECTOR 
DENIED REQUEST 

1.0 

Create a new Medical Assistant Lv 2 position to help reduce gaps in care and meet 
contractual and regulatory HEDIS Quality standards. Currently this task is completed 
by a Registry (non-County) Registered Nurse, but should be completed with a 
permanent Medical Assistant, Level 2 for operational efficiency.  Clinic would end the 
Registry RN's contract, saving the clinic $58,511 per year. This position will be funded 
through Medi-Cal reimbursements. 

Pharmacy Supplies 
 

DHS DIRECTOR 
APPROVED REQUEST 

 

 

Primary Health Pharmacy is requesting an increase of $387,129 in its pharmaceutical 
supplies/purchases charges to Clinic Services.  These appropriations are utilized to 
purchase medications and medical supplies for the program.  The increase 
corresponds with the growth in patients at the Clinic and increased number of high-
cost medications being prescribed by the clinicians.  The increase will be funded from 
the Medi-Cal reconciliation funding from DHCS received each year for patient 
services provided in prior fiscal years, and from annual Medi-Cal reimbursements.  
(Corresponding growth request in FC 7201600) 

TOTAL – Director 
Approved Growth 

Positions 

15.0 
4.0 
FTE 

 

 

The Clinic has additional identified needs which will be addressed in future Fiscal Year requests, and after evaluation of 
the items above. 

 

New growth requested by Director 2/13/24: Add $2,000,000 for SCOE contract to allow for site expansion in FY 2024-
25.  Funding is from Medi-Cal PPS revenue for eligible visits.  County pays SCOE for eligible visits, and County receives 
the Medi-Cal revenue.   

 

The growth requests still need to be approved by:  

Deputy County Executive 

Office of County Executive 

Board of Supervisors 

 

If approved, the growth will be added to the budget in July 2024.   



ZIP Code (a) None/Uninsured 
(b)

Medicaid / CHIP/ 
Other Public (c)

Medicare (d) Private (e) Total Patients (f) Cumulative # Percent Cum. Percent

95820 171 1304 89 4 1,568 1,568 9.4% 9.4%
95824 207 1158 63 4 1,432 3,000 8.6% 18.0%
95823 228 1084 59 2 1,373 4,373 8.2% 26.2%
95828 136 542 51 1 730 5,103 4.4% 30.6%
95821 33 673 11 2 719 5,822 4.3% 34.9%
95608 26 623 9 1 659 6,481 4.0% 38.9%
95670 89 542 19 2 652 7,133 3.9% 42.8%
95825 39 580 14 1 634 7,767 3.8% 46.6%
95660 63 549 10 622 8,389 3.7% 50.3%
95842 38 524 6 1 569 8,958 3.4% 53.7%
95843 16 461 7 484 9,442 2.9% 56.6%
95822 72 375 34 1 482 9,924 2.9% 59.5%
95838 113 332 15 3 463 10,387 2.8% 62.3%
95815 104 276 19 1 400 10,787 2.4% 64.7%
95826 20 324 20 364 11,151 2.2% 66.9%
95811 59 224 70 2 355 11,506 2.1% 69.0%
95610 28 320 2 350 11,856 2.1% 71.1%
95841 27 308 8 343 12,199 2.1% 73.2%
95817 18 223 31 272 12,471 1.6% 74.8%
95758 24 205 18 247 12,718 1.5% 76.3%
95621 13 228 4 245 12,963 1.5% 77.8%
95834 27 212 6 245 13,208 1.5% 79.2%
95833 46 176 9 1 232 13,440 1.4% 80.6%
95628 9 178 187 13,627 1.1% 81.7%
95827 27 150 7 184 13,811 1.1% 82.8%
95624 15 155 10 180 13,991 1.1% 83.9%
95757 7 163 10 180 14,171 1.1% 85.0%
95832 35 117 11 163 14,334 1.0% 86.0%
95835 15 135 11 161 14,495 1.0% 87.0%
95747 4 143 1 2 150 14,645 0.9% 87.9%
95831 13 115 7 135 14,780 0.8% 88.7%
95673 19 98 2 119 14,899 0.7% 89.4%
95829 10 96 12 118 15,017 0.7% 90.1%
95864 6 97 3 106 15,123 0.6% 90.7%
95632 14 75 4 6 99 15,222 0.6% 91.3%
95662 7 82 3 92 15,314 0.6% 91.9%
95818 13 67 12 92 15,406 0.6% 92.4%
95678 1 90 91 15,497 0.5% 93.0%
95691 3 87 90 15,587 0.5% 93.5%
95630 10 71 4 85 15,672 0.5% 94.0%
95814 6 54 16 76 15,748 0.5% 94.5%
95991 72 72 15,820 0.4% 94.9%
95816 8 45 8 61 15,881 0.4% 95.3%
95605 1 57 58 15,939 0.3% 95.6%
95661 1 57 58 15,997 0.3% 96.0%
95765 56 56 16,053 0.3% 96.3%
95742 4 43 3 50 16,103 0.3% 96.6%
95812 11 32 5 48 16,151 0.3% 96.9%
95626 4 29 2 35 16,186 0.2% 97.1%
95677 1 28 1 30 16,216 0.2% 97.3%
95693 7 17 1 25 16,241 0.1% 97.4%
95819 2 18 4 24 16,265 0.1% 97.6%
95961 4 17 21 16,286 0.1% 97.7%
95648 2 17 19 16,305 0.1% 97.8%
95641 14 1 2 17 16,322 0.1% 97.9%
95655 12 4 1 17 16,339 0.1% 98.0%
95690 7 8 15 16,354 0.1% 98.1%
95638 11 3 14 16,368 0.1% 98.2%
95993 14 14 16,382 0.1% 98.3%
94533 13 13 16,395 0.1% 98.4%
95746 13 13 16,408 0.1% 98.4%

Other Zip Code 33 217 8 4 262 16,670 1.6% 100.0%
Unknown Residence 0 0 0 0 0 16,670 0.0% 100.0%

Total 1,896 14,006 724 44 16,670 16,670 100.0% 100.0%

Patients by ZIP Code

HRSA Homeless Grant: H80CS00045 | COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO DOH & HUMAN SERVICES
Reporting Period: January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023

Comments (Max 4000 characters)



Line Age Groups Male Patients (a) Female Patients (b)

1 Under Age 1 103 119
2 Age 1 197 147
3 Age 2 166 172
4 Age 3 162 157
5 Age 4 171 159
6 Age 5 163 152
7 Age 6 159 119
8 Age 7 153 134
9 Age 8 132 163

10 Age 9 155 123
11 Age 10 142 140
12 Age 11 146 136
13 Age 12 140 156
14 Age 13 141 132
15 Age 14 118 115
16 Age 15 125 131
17 Age 16 115 147
18 Age 17 98 121
19 Age 18 103 106
20 Age 19 69 85
21 Age 20 60 93
22 Age 21 62 107
23 Age 22 63 110
24 Age 23 55 100
25 Age 24 64 93
26 Ages 25-29 377 641
27 Ages 30-34 534 748
28 Ages 35-39 593 853
29 Ages 40-44 617 833
30 Ages 45-49 547 799
31 Ages 50-54 445 587
32 Ages 55-59 402 495
33 Ages 60-64 425 452
34 Ages 65-69 278 303
35 Ages 70-74 122 168
36 Ages 75-79 41 57
37 Ages 80-84 23 20
38 Ages 85 and over 12 19
39 Total Patients (Sum of Lines 1-38) 7,478 9,192

Table 3A: Patients by Age and by Sex Assigned at Birth

HRSA Homeless Grant: H80CS00045 | COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO DOH & HUMAN SERVICES
Reporting Period: January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023



Yes, Mexican, 
Mexican 

American, 
Chicano/a (a1)

Yes, Puerto Rican 
(a2)

Yes, Cuban (a3)

Yes, Another 
Hispanic, Latino/a, 
or Spanish Origin 

(a4)

Yes, Hispanic, 
Latino/a, Spanish 
Origin, Combined 

(a5)                                                                                 

Total Hispanic, 
Latino/a, or 

Spanish Origin (a) 
(Sum Columns a1 + 
a2 + a3 + a4 + a5)

Not Hispanic, 
Latino/a, or Spanish 

Origin (b)

1a Asian Indian ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 487 
1b Chinese ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 71 
1c Filipino ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 29 
1d Japanese ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10

1e Korean ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10

1f Vietnamese ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 55 
1g Other Asian ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 35 ≤10 35 3,787 

1
Total Asian (Sum Lines 1a + 1b + 1c + 1d + 1e 
+ 1f + 1g) ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 35 ≤10 35 4,429 

2a Native Hawaiian ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 11 
2b Other Pacific Islander ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 120 

2c Guamanian or Chamorro ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10

2d Samoan ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10

2
Total Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 
(Sum Lines 2a + 2b + 2c + 2d)

≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 131 
3 Black/African American 14 ≤10 ≤10 29 ≤10 43 1,298 
4 American Indian/Alaska Native ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 90 
5 White 2,305 23 ≤10 2,144 65 4,537 4,725 
6 More than one race ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 ≤10 105 
7 Unreported/Chose not to disclose race 206 ≤10 ≤10 255 ≤10 461 310 

8
Total Patients 
(Sum of Lines 1 + 2 + 3 to 7) 2,525 23 ≤10 2,463 65 5,076 11,088 

Line
12 65.4%

13 Lesbian or Gay 74 20 Male 5,876 
14 Heterosexual (or straight)                 11,451 21 Female 7,668 

15 Bisexual 94 22

Transgender Man /  
Transgender Male /

Transmasculine
10 

16 Other 83 23

Transgender Woman 

/ Transgender 
Female /
Transfeminine

12 

17 Don't know 291 24 Other 27 

18 Chose not to disclose 539 25
Chose not to 
disclose

49 

18a Unknown 4,138 25a Unknown 3,028 

19 Total Patients (Sum of Lines 13 to 18a)                 16,670 26
Total Patients (Sum 
of Lines 20 to 25a)

16,670 

Total  
(d) (Sums Columns

a+b+c)

Unreported / Chose 
Not to Disclose 

Ethnicity 
( c )

131 

16,566 402 

1,173 

120 

402 
105 

71 

9,262 
90 

3,822 

1,341 

11 

 <10 
 <10 

Patients by Sexual Orientation Number (a)

4,464 

Line
Patients by Gender 

Identity

487 

29 
 <10 
 <10 

55 

Table 3B: Demographic Characteristics

HRSA Homeless Grant: H80CS00045 | COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO DOH & HUMAN SERVICES

Line Patients by Race

Patients by Race and Hispanic or Latino/a Ethnicity

Reporting Period: January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023

Patients Best Served in a Language Other than English Number (a)
Patients Best Served in a Language Other than English 10,837 

Number (a)Line



Line

1 95.0%
2 2.6%
3 1.0%
4 0.7%
5 0.8%
6

0-17 18+
7 0.3% 11.1%

8a 30.2% 53.8%
8b 0.0% 0.0%
8 30.2% 53.8%
9a 0.0% 4.0%
9 0.0% 4.3%

10a 0.0% 0.0%
10b 0.0% 0.0%
10 0.0% 0.0%
11 0.2% 0.1%
12 30.6% 69.4%

13a 192,321 1,187 0 0 193,508
13b 0 0 0 0 0
13c 192,321 1,187 0 0 193,508

S.No
14
15
16 1.3%
17 2.8%
18 0.4%
19 2.2%
20 1.8%

21a 0.5%
21 0.0%
22 0.0%
23 7.6%
24 2.3%
25 0.3%

26 97.7%

Percentage
Income as Percent of Poverty Guideline

Table 4: Selected Patient Characteristics
Reporting Period: January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023

HRSA Homeless Grant: H80CS00045 | COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO DOH & HUMAN SERVICES
Characteristic Number of Patients (a)

100% and below 15,829
101 - 150% 441
151 - 200% 160
Over 200% 111
Unknown 129
Total (Sum of Lines 1-5) 16,670
Primary Third Party Medical Insurance 0-17 Years Old (a) 18 and Older (b)

None/Uninsured 46 1,850
Medicaid (Title XIX) 5,031 8,975
CHIP Medicaid 0 0

Total Medicaid (Sum lines 8a+8b) 5,031 8,975
Dually Eligible (Medicare and Medicaid) 0 660

Medicare (Inclusive of dually eligible and other Title XVIII 0 724
Other Public Insurance (Non-CHIP)  (specify_____________) 0 0
Other Public Insurance CHIP 0 0

Total Public Insurance (Sum lines 10a+10b) 0 0
Private Insurance 32 12

Total (Sum of Lines 7+8+9+10+11) 5,109 11,561

Migratory (330g awardees only)

Managed Care Utilization

S.No Managed Care Utilization Medicaid (a) Medicare (b)
Other Public Including 
Non-Medicaid CHIP (c)

Private (d) Total (e)

Capitated Member Months
Fee-for-service Member Months
Total Member Months (Sum of Lines 13a+13b)
Special Populations Number of Patients (a)

Seasonal (330g awardees only)
Total Agricultural Workers or Dependents (All health centers report this line) 221

Homeless Shelter (330h awardees only) 463
Transitional (330h awardees only) 61
Doubling Up (330h awardees only) 364
Street (330h awardees only) 301
Permanent Supportive Housing (330h awardees only) 85
Other (330h awardees only) 0
Unknown (330h awardees only) 0

Total Patients Served at a Health Center Located In or Immediately Accessible to a Public Housing Site (All 
health centers report this line)

16,289

Total Homeless (All health centers report this line) 1,274
Total School-Based Service Site Patients (All health centers report this line) 388

Total Veterans (All health centers report this line) 44



Line FTEs (a) Clinic Visits (b) Virtual Visits (b2) Patients (c)
1 2.5 2,570 2,661
2 0.0 0 0
3 6.1 13,263 3,021
4 0.0 0 0
5 1.6 4,497 454
7 0.4 441 9

8 10.6 20,771 6,145

9a 2.2 5,033 3,005
9b 0.03 105 4
10 0.0 0 0

10a 2.2 5,138 3,009

11 12.3 869 2
12 23.5
13 0.0
14 1.8

15 50.4 26,778 9,156 16,160

16 0.0 0 0
17 0.2 166 0

17a 0.0 0 0
18 0.0

19 0.2 166 0 150

20a 0.3 658 120
20a1 0.0 0 0
20a2 8.1 3,058 15
20b 10.6 3,101 142
20c 0.0 0 0

20 19.0 6,817 277 1,091

21 0.0 0 0 0
22 0.0 0 0 0

22a 0.0 0 0
22b 0.0 0 0
22c 0.0

22d 0.0 0 0 0

23a 0.0
23b 3.5
23c 2.8
23d 0.0

23 6.3 0 0 0

24 0.0 0 0
25 0.0 0 0
26 1.6
27 0.0

27a 2.0
27b 3.0
27c 0.0
28 0.0

29 6.6 0 0 0

29a 0.0
29b 3.9
30a 6.7
30b 6.2
30c 0.0
31 1.0
32 31.7

33 45.7

34 132.0 33,761 9,433

Line Personnel (a1) Clinic Visits (b) Virtual Visits (b2) Patients (c)

20a01 126 2,582 494 2,338
20a02 11 672 215 664
20a03 1 2 1 3
20a04 0 0 0 0

Line Personnel (a1) Clinic Visits (b) Virtual Visits (b2) Patients (c)

21a 74 577 226 671
21b 9 160 127 249
21c 0 0 0 0
21d 0 0 0 0
21e 4 44 1 34
21f 0 0 0 0
21g 3 4 0 3
21h 2 2 1 2

Nurse Practitioners (Medical)
Physician Assistants
Certified Nurse Midwives
Psychiatrists
Licensed Clinial Psychologists
Licensed Clinical Social Workers

Physician Assistants
Certified Nurse Midwives

Total Pharmacy Personnel (Sum lines 23a-d)

Other Licensed Mental Health Providers
Comments (Max 4000 characters)

Physicians (other than Psychiatrists)

Total Facility and Non-Clinical Support Personnel (Lines 
30a - 32)

Grand Total (Lines 
15+19+20+21+22+22d+23+29+29a+29b+33)

Table 5:  Selected Service Detail Addendum
Reporting Period: January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023

HRSA Homeless Grant: H80CS00045 | COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO DOH & HUMAN SERVICES

Personnel by Major Service Category: Substance Use 
Disorder Detail

Patient Support Personnel

Eligibility Assistance Workers
Interpretation Personnel
Community Health Workers
Other Enabling Services (specify__) 

Total Enabling Services (Lines 24-28) 

Other Programs and Services (specify__) 
Quality Improvement Personnel

Management and Support Personnel
Fiscal and Billing Personnel
IT Personnel
Facility Personnel

Personnel by Major Service Category: Mental Health 
Service Detail
Physicians (other than Psychiatrists)
Nurse Practitioners

Transportation Personnel

Total Mental Health Services (Sum lines 20a-c)

Substance Use Disorder Services
Other Professional Services (specify__) 

Ophthalmologists
Optometrists
Other Vision Care Personnel

Total Vision Services (Sum lines 22a-c)

Pharmacists

Case Managers
Health Education Specialists
Outreach Workers

Clinical Pharmacists
Pharmacy Technicians
Other Pharmacy Personnel

Other Mental Health Personnel

X-Ray Personnel
Total Medical Care Services 

(Sum lines 8+10a through 14)
Dentists
Dental Hygienists
Dental Therapists
Other Dental Personnel

Total Dental Services (Sum lines 16-18)

Psychiatrists
Licensed Clinical Psychologists
Licensed Clinical Social Workers
Other Licensed Mental Health Providers

Laboratory Personnel

Internists
Obstetrician/Gynecologists
Pediatricians
Other Specialty Physicians

Total Physicians (Sum lines 1-7)

Nurse Practitioners
Physician Assistants
Certified Nurse Midwives

Total NP, PA, and CNMs (Sum lines 9a - 10)

Nurses
Other Medical Personnel

General Practitioners

Table 5:  Staffing and Utilization
Reporting Period: January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023

HRSA Homeless Grant: H80CS00045 | COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO DOH & HUMAN SERVICES
Personnel by Major Service Category
Family Physicians



Table 6A

Applicable ICD-10-CM Code
Number of Visits by Diagnosis 

Regardless of Primacy (a)
Number of Patients with Diagnosis 

(b)

1-2
Symptomatic / Asymptomatic human immunodeficiency virus 
(HIV)

B20, B97.35, O98.7-, Z21 60 37

3 Tuberculosis A15- through A19-, O98.0-, Z86.15, Z22.7 99 73
4 Sexually transmitted infections A50- through A64-, Z22.4 149 108

4a Hepatitis B 
B16.0 through B16.2, B16.9, B17.0, B18.0, B18.1, B19.1-, 
O98.4- 93 55

4b Hepatitis C B17.1-, B18.2, B19.2- 184 111
4c Novel coronavirus (SARS-CoV-2) disease U07.1 130 124
4d Post COVID-19 condition U09.9 30 18

5 Asthma J45- 946 635

6 Chronic lower respiratory diseases
J40 (count J40 only when code U07.1 is not present), J41- 
through J44-, J47-

343 201

6a
Acute respiratory illness due to novel coronavirus (SARS-CoV-2) 
disease

J12.82, J12.89, J20.8, J40, J22, J98.8, J80 (count codes 
listed only when code U07.1 is also present)

<10 <10

7 Abnormal breast findings, female 
C50.01-, C50.11-, C50.21-, C50.31-, C50.41-, C50.51-, 
C50.61-, C50.81-, C50.91-, C79.81, D05-, D48.6-, D49.3, 
N60- through N65-, R92-

467 345

8 Abnormal cervical findings 
C53-, C79.82, D06-, N87.0, N87.1, N87.9, R87.61-, 
R87.629, R87.810, R87.820

144 102

9 Diabetes mellitus E08- through E13-, O24- (exclude O24.41-) 4,659 1,811

10 Heart disease (selected) 
I01-, I02- (exclude I02.9), I20- through I25-, I27-, I28-,  I30- 
through I52-

1,006 570

11 Hypertension I10- through I16-, O10-,O11- 5,138 2,611

12 Contact dermatitis and other eczema 
L23- through L25-, L30- (exclude L30.1, L30.3, L30.4, 
L30.5), L58-

455 364

13 Dehydration E86- <10

14 Exposure to heat or cold T33-, T34-, T67-, T68-, T69-, W92-, W93-, X30-, X31-, X32-

14a Overweight and obesity 
E66-, Z68- (exclude Z68.1, Z68.20 through Z68.24, Z68.51, 
Z68.52)

16,310 6,564

15 Otitis media and Eustachian tube disorders H65- through H69- 109 88

16 Selected perinatal/neonatal medical conditions 
A33, P19-, P22- through P29- (exclude P29.3), P35- 
through P96- (exclude P54-, P91.6-,  P92-, P96.81)

73 45

17

Lack of expected normal physiological development (such as 
delayed milestone, failure to gain weight, failure to thrive); 
nutritional deficiencies in children only. Does not include sexual 
or mental development. 

E40- through E46-, E50- through E63-, P92-, R62- (exclude 
R62.7), R63.3

301 211

Table 6A - Selected Diagnoses and Services Rendered
Reporting Period: January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023

HRSA Homeless Grant: H80CS00045 | COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO DOH & HUMAN SERVICES

Diagnostic Category

Selected Infectious and Parasitic Diseases

Selected Diseases of the Respiratory System

Selected Other Medical Conditions

Selected Childhood Conditions (limited to ages 0 through 17)

Page 1 of 4

<10

<10

<10



Table 6A

18 Alcohol-related disorders F10-, G62.1, O99.31- 166 93

19
Other substance related disorders (excluding tobacco use 
disorders) 

F11- through F19- (exclude F17-), G62.0, O99.32- 343 205

19a Tobacco use disorder F17-, O99.33-, Z72.0 697 586
20a Depression and other mood disorders F30- through F39- 2,765 1,044

20b Anxiety disorders, including post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD) F06.4, F40- through F42-, F43.0, F43.1-, F43.8, F93.0 4,121 1,276

20c Attention deficit and disruptive behavior disorders F90- through F91- 767 162

20d Other mental disorders, excluding drug or alcohol dependence 

F01- through F09- (exclude F06.4), F20- through F29-, F43- 
through F48- (exclude F43.0- and F43.1-), F50- through 
F99- (exclude F55-, F64-, F84.2, F90-, F91-, F93.0, F98-), 
O99.34-, R45.1, R45.2, R45.5, R45.6, R45.7, R45.81, 
R45.82, R48.0

3,108 1,173

20e Human trafficking
T74.5- through T74.6-, T76.5- through T76.6-, Z04.81, 
Z04.82, Z62.813, Z91.42

<10

20f Intimate partner violence T74.11, T74.21, T74.31, Z69.11

Applicable ICD-10-CM, CPT-4/I/II/PLA or HCPCS Code Number of Visits (a) Number of Patients (b)

21 HIV test
CPT-4: 86689, 86701 through 86703, 87389 through 
87391, 87534 through 87539, 87806

5,623 5,555

21a Hepatitis B test
CPT-4: 80074, 86704 through 86707, 87340, 87341, 
87350, 87467, 87912

212 201

21b Hepatitis C test CPT-4: 80074, 86803, 86804, 87520 through 87522, 87902 585 562

21c Novel coronavirus (SARS-CoV-2) diagnostic test
CPT-4: 87426, 87428, 87635, 87636, 87637
HCPCS: U0001, U0002, U0003, U0004, U0005
CPT PLA: 0202U, 0223U, 0225U, 0240U, 0241U

175 169

21d Novel coronavirus (SARS-CoV-2) antibody test
CPT-4: 86318, 86328, 86408, 86409, 86413, 86428, 86769, 
86811
CPT PLA: 0224U, 0226U

<10 <10

21e
Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP)-associated management of all 
patients on PrEP

Possible codes to explore for PrEP management:
CPT-4: 99401-99404
ICD-10: Z11.3, Z11.4, Z20.2, Z20.6, Z29.81, Z51.81, Z71.51, 
Z71.7, Z79.899
Limited to prescribed PrEP based on a patient’s risk for HIV 
exposure AND limited to emtricitabine/tenofovir disoproxil 
fumarate (FTC/TDF), emtricitabine/tenofovir alafenamide 
(FTC/TAF), or cabotegravir for PrEP

36 17

22 Mammogram
CPT-4:  77063, 77065, 77066, 77067 
ICD-10: Z12.31
HCPCS: G0279

117 111

23 Pap test

CPT-4: 88141 through 88153, 88155, 88164 through 
88167, 88174, 88175
ICD-10: Z01.41-, Z01.42, Z12.4 (exclude Z01.411 and 
Z01.419)
HCPCS: G0123, G0143, G0144, G0145, G0147, G0148

891 835

Selected Diagnostic Tests/Screening/Preventive Services

Selected Mental Health Conditions, Substance Use Disorders, and Exploitations

Service Category

Page 2 of 4

<10

<10

<10



Table 6A

Applicable ICD-10-CM, CPT-4/I/II/PLA or HCPCS Code Number of Visits (a) Number of Patients (b)Service Category

24

Selected immunizations: hepatitis A; hemophilus Influenza B 
(HiB); pneumococcal; diphtheria, tetanus, pertussis (DTaP) (DTP) 
(DT); measles, mumps, rubella (MMR); poliovirus; varicella; 
hepatitis B

CPT-4: 90632, 90633, 90634, 90636, 90643, 90644, 90645, 
90646, 90647, 90648, 90669, 90670, 90696, 90697, 90698, 
90700, 90701, 90702, 90703, 90704, 90705, 90706, 90707, 
90708, 90710, 90712, 90713, 90714, 90715, 90716, 90718, 
90720, 90721, 90723, 90730, 90731, 90732, 90740, 90743, 
90744, 90745, 90746, 90747, 90748

4,351 3,590

24a Seasonal flu vaccine
CPT-4: 90630, 90653 through 90657, 90658, 90661, 
90662, 90672, 90673, 90674, 90682, 90685 through 
90689, 90694, 90756

3,205 2,939

24b Coronavirus (SARS-CoV-2) vaccine

CPT-I: 0001A-0004A, 0011A- 0013A, 0021A-0022A, 0031A-
0034A, 0041A-0044A, 0051A-0054A, 0064A, 0071A-
0074A, 0081A-0083A, 0091A-0094A, 0104A, 0111A-
0113A, 0124A, 0134A, 0144A, 0154A, 0164A, 0173A, 
91300-91317 CDT: D1701-D1714 
Codes listed include those available as of the release date 
of this manual.

1,086 949

25 Contraceptive management ICD-10: Z30- 681 407

26 Health supervision of infant or child (ages 0 through 11) 
CPT-4: 99381 through 99383, 99391 through 99393 
ICD-10: Z00.1-, Z76.1, Z76.2

2,708 1,713

26a Childhood lead test screening (9 to 72 months)
ICD-10: Z13.88
CPT-4: 83655

978 953

26b Screening, Brief Intervention, and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT)
CPT-4: 99408, 99409
HCPCS: G0396, G0397, G0443, H0050 <10 <10

26c Smoke and tobacco use cessation counseling
CPT-4:  99406, 99407
HCPCS: S9075 <10

26d Comprehensive and intermediate eye exams CPT-4: 92002, 92004, 92012, 92014 0 0

26e Childhood development screenings and evaluations
CPT-4: 96110, 96112, 96113, 96127 
ICD-10: Z13.4-

24 23

Applicable ADA Code Number of Visits (a) Number of Patients (b)

27 Emergency services CDT: D0140, D9110 0 0

28 Oral exams CDT: D0120, D0145, D0150, D0160, D0170, D0171, D0180 <10 <10

29 Prophylaxis—adult or child CDT: D1110, D1120 126 116
30 Sealants CDT: D1351 30 30

31 Fluoride treatment—adult or child 
CDT: D1206, D1208
CPT-4: 99188 

147 134

32 Restorative services CDT: D21xx through D29xx 0 0
33 Oral surgery (extractions and other surgical procedures) CDT: D7xxx 0 0
34 Rehabilitative services (Endo, Perio, Prostho, Ortho) CDT: D3xxx, D4xxx, D5xxx, D6xxx, D8xxx <10 <10

Sources 
of codes:

Service Category
Selected Dental Services

• ICD-10-CM (2022) National Center for Health Statistics (NCHS)
• (CPT) (2022). American Medical Association (AMA).
• Code on Dental Procedures and Nomenclature CDT Code (2022) – Dental Procedure Codes –American Dental Association (ADA).

Comments (Max 4000 characters)
Line 31 is actually 205 visits and 182 patients. The EHB upload gave us an error stating that on table 6A HCH emergency services line 31 was higher than our total dental visits on table 5, and we could not 
explain it. Line 31 correlates to fluoride treatment, not emergency services, but we removed the medical providers that performed fluoride treatments from 6A so it only reflects our dental provider. 

Page 3 of 4

<10



0

Line
1
2
3
4
5
6

Line Patients Having First Visit 
with Health Center (a)

Patients Having First Visit with Another 
Provider (b)

7 47 29 33.6%
8 27 14
9 <10 17

Line Total Patients with 2nd Birthday  (a) Number of Records Reviewed (b) Number of Patients Immunized (c)

10 338 338 47 13.9%

Line Total Female Patients 
Aged 23 through 64 (a)

Number of Records Reviewed (b) Number of Patients Tested (c)

11 5,169 5,169 2,481 48.0%

Line Total Female Patients 
Aged 51 through 73 (a)

Number of Records Reviewed (b) Number of Patients with Mammogram 
(c)

11a 1,687 1,687 761 45.1%

Line Total Patients Aged 3 through 16  (a) Number of Records Reviewed (b) Number of Patients with Counseling 
and BMI Documented (c)

12 3,821 3,821 824 21.6%

Line Total Patients Aged 18 and Older (a) Number of Records Reviewed (b) Number of Patients with BMI Charted 
and Follow-Up Plan Documented as 

13 7,871 7,871 2,369 30.1%

Line Total Patients Aged 18 and Older (a) Number of Records Reviewed (b) Number of Patients Assessed for 
Tobacco Use and Provided Intervention 

14a 5,592 5,592 4,395 78.6%

Line Total Patients High Risk of 
Cardiovascular Events (a)

Number of Records Reviewed (b) Number of Patients with Acceptable 
Plan (c)

17a 2,366 2,366 1,764 74.6%

Line Total Patients 18 and Older with IVD 
Diagnosis or AMI, CABG, or PCI 

Number of Records Reviewed (b) Number of Patients with 
Documentation of Use of Aspirin or 

18 328 328 238 72.6%

Line Total Patients Aged 50 through 74 (a) Number of Records Reviewed (b) Number of Patients with Appropriate 
Screening for Colorectal Cancer (c)

19 4,594 4,594 1,623 35.3%

Line Total Patients First Diagnosed with HIV 
(a)

Number of Records Reviewed (b) Number of Patients Seen Within 30 
Days of First Diagnosis of HIV (c)

20 <10 <10 <10 100.0%

Line Total Patients Aged 15 through 65 (a) Number of Records Reviewed (b) Number of Patients Tested for HIV (c)

20a 11,000 11,000 9,468 86.1%

Line Total Patients Aged 12 and Older (a) Number of Records Reviewed (b) Number of Patients Screened for 
Depression and Follow-Up Plan 

21 11,232 11,232 6,231 55.5%

Line Total Patients Aged 12 and Older with 
Major Depression or Dysthymia (a)

Number of Records Reviewed (b) Number of Patients who Reached 
Remission (c)

21a 162 162 3 1.9%

Line Total Patients Aged 6 through 9 at 
Moderate to High Risk for Caries (a)

Number of Records Reviewed (b) Number of Patients with Sealants to 
First Molars (c) 

22 18 18 9 50.0%

HIV Screening

MEASURE: Percentage of patients 15 through 65 years of 
age who were tested for HIV when within age range

Section L—Depression Measures
Preventive Care and Screening: Screening for Depression 
and Follow-Up Plan
MEASURE: Percentage of patients 12 years of age and 
older who were (1) screened for depression with a 
standardized tool and, if screening was positive, (2) had a 
follow-up plan documented

Depression Remission at Twelve Months

MEASURE: Percentage of patients 12 years of age and 
older with major depression or dysthymia who reached 
remission 12 months (+/- 60 days) after an index event

Section M—Dental Sealants for Children between 6–9 Years

Dental Sealants for Children between 6-9 Years

MEASURE: Percentage of children 6 through 9 years of 
age, at moderate to high risk of caries who received a 
sealant on a first permanent molar

Comments (Max 4000 characters)

MEASURE: Percentage of patients whose first-ever HIV 
diagnosis was made by health center personnel between 
December 1 of the prior year and November 30 of the 
measurement period and who were seen for follow-up 
treatment within 30 days of that first-ever diagnosis

Section H—Statin Therapy for the Prevention and Treatment of Cardiovascular Disease
Statin Therapy for the Prevention and Treatment of 
Cardiovascular Disease
MEASURE: Percentage of patients at high risk of 
cardiovascular events who were prescribed or were on 
statin therapy 

Section I—Ischemic Vascular Disease (IVD): Use of Aspirin or Another Antiplatelet
Ischemic Vascular Disease (IVD): Use of Aspirin or 
Another Antiplatelet
MEASURE: Percentage of patients 18 years of age and 
older with a diagnosis of IVD or AMI, CABG, or PCI 
procedure with aspirin or another antiplatelet

Section J—Colorectal Cancer Screening

Colorectal Cancer Screening

MEASURE: Percentage of patients 50 through 74 years of 
age who had appropriate screening for colorectal cancer

Section K—HIV Measures

HIV Linkage to Care

MEASURE: Percentage of patients aged 18 years of age 
and older who (1) were screened for tobacco use one or 
more times during the measurement period, and (2) if 
identified to be a tobacco user received cessation 
counseling intervention

MEASURE: Percentage of women 23-64 years of age who 
were screened for cervical cancer

Breast Cancer Screening

MEASURE: Percentage of women 51–73 years of age who 
had a mammogram to screen for breast cancer

Section E—Weight Assessment and Counseling for Nutrition and Physical Activity of Children and Adolescents
Weight Assessment and Counseling for Nutrition and 
Physical Activity for Children/Adolescents
MEASURE: Percentage of patients 3-16 years of age with a 
BMI percentile, and counseling on nutrition and physical 
activity documented

Section F—Preventive Care and Screening: Body Mass Index (BMI) Screening and Follow-Up Plan
Preventive Care and Screening: Body Mass Index (BMI) 
Screening and Follow-Up Plan
MEASURE: Percentage of patients 18 years of age and 
older with (1) BMI documented and (2) follow-up plan 
documented if BMI is outside normal parameters

Section G—Preventive Care and Screening: Tobacco Use: Screening and Cessation Intervention
Preventive Care and Screening: Tobacco Use: Screening 
and Cessation Intervention

Cervical Cancer Screening

Total Patients (Sum of Lines 1-5) 140
Section B—Early Entry into Prenatal Care

Early Entry into Prenatal Care

First Trimester
Second Trimester
Third Trimester

Section C—Childhood Immunization Status

Childhood Immunization Status

MEASURE: Percentage of children 2 years of age who 
received age appropriate vaccines by their 2nd birthday

Section D—Cervical and Breast Cancer Screening

Ages 20-24 42
Ages 25-44 93
Ages 45 and over <10

Age Number of Patients (a)
Less than 15 years <10
Ages 15-19 <10

Table 6B: Quality of Care Measures

Prenatal Care Provided by Referral Only? (Indicate Yes or No) No
Section A—Age Categories for Prenatal Patients: Demographic Characteristics of Prenatal Care Patients

Reporting Period: January 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023
HRSA Homeless Grant: H80CS00045 | COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO DOH & HUMAN SERVICES



Line Patients (a)
0 <10
2 0

Line
Prenatal Care Patients 
who Delivered During 

the Year (1a)

Live Births: < 1500 
grams 
(1b)

Live Births : 1500 - 
2499 grams 

(1c)

Live Births : > = 2500 
grams 
(1d)

1a1m <10 <10 <10 <10
1a2m <10 <10 <10 <10
1a3m <10 <10 <10 <10
1a4m <10 <10 <10 <10
1a5m <10 <10 <10 <10
1a6m <10 <10 <10 <10
1a7m <10 <10 <10 <10
1b1m <10 <10 <10 <10
1b2m <10 <10 <10 <10
1b3m <10 <10 <10 <10
1b4m <10 <10 <10 <10
1cm <10 <10 <10 <10
1dm <10 <10 <10 <10
1em <10 <10 <10 <10
1fm <10 <10 <10 <10
1gm <10 <10 <10 <10

<10 <10 <10 <10

1a1p <10 <10 <10 <10
1a2p <10 <10 <10 <10
1a3p <10 <10 <10 <10
1a4p <10 <10 <10 <10
1a5p <10 <10 <10 <10
1a6p <10 <10 <10 <10
1a7p <10 <10 <10 <10
1b1p <10 <10 <10 <10
1b2p <10 <10 <10 <10
1b3p <10 <10 <10 <10
1b4p <10 <10 <10 <10
1cp <10 <10 <10 <10
1dp <10 <10 <10 <10
1ep <10 <10 <10 <10
1fp <10 <10 <10 <10
1gp <10 <10 <10 <10

<10 <10 <10 <10

1a1c <10 <10 <10 <10
1a2c <10 <10 <10 <10
1a3c <10 <10 <10 <10
1a4c <10 <10 <10 <10
1a5c <10 <10 <10 <10
1a6c <10 <10 <10 <10
1a7c <10 <10 <10 <10
1b1c <10 <10 <10 <10
1b2c <10 <10 <10 <10
1b3c <10 <10 <10 <10
1b4c <10 <10 <10 <10
1cc <10 <10 <10 <10
1dc <10 <10 <10 <10
1ec <10 <10 <10 <10
1fc <10 <10 <10 <10
1gc <10 <10 <10 <10

<10 <10 <10 <10

1a1a <10 <10 <10 <10
1a2a <10 <10 <10 <10
1a3a <10 <10 <10 <10
1a4a <10 <10 <10 <10
1a5a <10 <10 <10 <10
1a6a <10 <10 <10 <10
1a7a <10 <10 <10 <10
1b1a <10 <10 <10 <10
1b2a <10 <10 <10 <10
1b3a <10 <10 <10 <10
1b4a <10 <10 <10 <10
1ca <10 <10 <10 <10
1da <10 <10 <10 <10
1ea <10 <10 <10 <10
1fa <10 <10 <10 <10
1ga <10 <10 <10 <10

<10 <10 <10 <10

1a1o <10 <10 <10 <10
1a2o <10 <10 <10 <10
1a3o <10 <10 <10 <10
1a4o <10 <10 <10 <10
1a5o <10 <10 <10 <10
1a6o <10 <10 <10 <10
1a7o <10 <10 <10 <10
1b1o <10 <10 <10 <10
1b2o <10 <10 <10 <10
1b3o <10 <10 <10 <10
1b4o <10 <10 <10 <10
1co <10 <10 <10 <10
1do <10 <10 <10 <10
1eo <10 <10 <10 <10
1fo <10 <10 <10 <10
1go <10 <10 <10 <10

<10 <10 <10 <10
<10 <10 <10 <10

2a1 0 0 0 0
2a2 <10 <10 <10 <10
2a3 <10 <10 <10 <10
2a4 <10 <10 <10 <10
2a5 <10 <10 <10 <10
2a6 <10 <10 <10 <10
2a7 29 <10 <10 28
2b1 <10 <10 <10 <10
2b2 <10 <10 <10 <10
2b3 <10 <10 <10 <10
2b4 <10 <10 <10 <10
2c <10 <10 <10 <10
2d <10 <10 <10 <10
2e <10 <10 <10 <10
2f <10 <10 <10 <10
2g <10 <10 <10 <10

29 <10 <10 28

h 0 0 0 0
i 29 <10 <10 28

Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose Race
Total Not Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin

Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native
White
More than One Race

Vietnamese
Other Asian
Native Hawaiian
Other Pacific Islander
Guamanian or Chamorro

Asian Indian
Chinese
Filipino
Japanese
Korean

More than One Race
Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose Race

Subtotal Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin Combined
Total Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin
Not Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin

Guamanian or Chamorro
Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native
White

Korean
Vietnamese
Other Asian
Native Hawaiian
Other Pacific Islander

Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin Combined
Asian Indian
Chinese
Filipino
Japanese

American Indian/Alaska Native
White
More than One Race
Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose Race

Subtotal Another Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin

Other Pacific Islander
Guamanian or Chamorro
Samoan
Black/African American

Filipino
Japanese
Korean
Vietnamese
Other Asian

Chinese

Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native
White
More than One Race

Other Pacific Islander
Guamanian or Chamorro

Native Hawaiian

Chinese
Asian Indian

Filipino
Japanese
Korean

Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose Race
Subtotal Cuban
Another Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin

Asian Indian

HIV-Positive Pregnant Patients

Table 7: Health Outcomes and Disparities
Reporting Period: January 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023

HRSA Homeless Grant: H80CS00045 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO DOH & HUMAN SERVICES, Sacramento, CA
Section A: Deliveries and Birth Weight

Description

Deliveries Performed by Health Center's Providers

Race and Ethnicity

Mexican, Mexican American, Chicano/a
Asian Indian

Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose Race
Subtotal Mexican, Mexican American, Chicano/a

Chinese

Other Asian

Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native
White
More than One Race

Asian Indian

Chinese
Filipino
Japanese
Korean
Vietnamese
Other Asian
Native Hawaiian
Other Pacific Islander
Guamanian or Chamorro

Total
Unreported /Chose Not to Disclose Race and Ethnicity

Puerto Rican

Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native
White
More than One Race
Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose Race

Subtotal Puerto Rican

Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose Race and Ethnicity

Native Hawaiian
Other Pacific Islander
Guamanian or Chamorro

Cuban

Samoan

Filipino
Japanese
Korean
Vietnamese

Vietnamese
Other Asian
Native Hawaiian



Line
Total Patients 18 through 

85 Years of Age with 
Hypertension (2a)

Number of Records 
Reviewed (2b)

Patients with 
Hypertension 

Controlled (2c)

1a1m <10 <10 <10
1a2m <10 <10 <10
1a3m <10 <10 <10
1a4m <10 <10 <10
1a5m <10 <10 <10
1a6m <10 <10 <10
1a7m <10 <10 <10
1b1m <10 <10 <10
1b2m <10 <10 <10
1b3m <10 <10 <10
1b4m <10 <10 <10
1cm <10 <10 <10
1dm <10 <10 <10
1em 580 580 366
1fm <10 <10 <10
1gm 30 30 14

610 610 380

1a1p <10 <10 <10
1a2p <10 <10 <10
1a3p <10 <10 <10
1a4p <10 <10 <10
1a5p <10 <10 <10
1a6p <10 <10 <10
1a7p <10 <10 <10
1b1p <10 <10 <10
1b2p <10 <10 <10
1b3p <10 <10 <10
1b4p <10 <10 <10
1cp <10 <10 <10
1dp <10 <10 <10
1ep <10 <10 <10
1fp <10 <10 <10
1gp <10 <10 <10

<10 <10 <10

1a1c <10 <10 <10
1a2c <10 <10 <10
1a3c <10 <10 <10
1a4c <10 <10 <10
1a5c <10 <10 <10
1a6c <10 <10 <10
1a7c <10 <10 <10
1b1c <10 <10 <10

Other Asian
Native Hawaiian

Puerto Rican
Asian Indian
Chinese

Other Pacific Islander

Native Hawaiian

Chinese
Filipino
Japanese
Korean
Vietnamese
Other Asian

More than One Race
Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose 

Subtotal Mexican, Mexican American, 
Chicano/a

Other Pacific Islander
Guamanian or Chamorro
Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native
White

White
More than One Race
Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose 

Subtotal Puerto Rican
Cuban

Asian Indian

Table 7B: Health Outcomes and Disparities
Reporting Period: January 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023

HRSA Homeless Grant: H80CS00045 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO DOH & HUMAN SERVICES, Sacramento, CA
Section B: Controlling High Blood Pressure

Race and Ethnicity

Mexican, Mexican American, Chicano/a

Guamanian or Chamorro
Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native

Filipino
Japanese
Korean
Vietnamese
Other Asian
Native Hawaiian

Asian Indian
Chinese
Filipino
Japanese
Korean
Vietnamese



1b2c <10 <10 <10
1b3c <10 <10 <10
1b4c <10 <10 <10
1cc <10 <10 <10
1dc <10 <10 <10
1ec <10 <10 <10
1fc <10 <10 <10
1gc <10 <10 <10

<10 <10 <10

1a1a <10 <10 <10
1a2a <10 <10 <10
1a3a <10 <10 <10
1a4a <10 <10 <10
1a5a <10 <10 <10
1a6a <10 <10 <10
1a7a <10 <10 <10
1b1a <10 <10 <10
1b2a <10 <10 <10
1b3a <10 <10 <10
1b4a <10 <10 <10
1ca <10 <10 <10
1da <10 <10 <10
1ea 464 464 262
1fa <10 <10 <10
1ga <10 <10 <10

464 464 262

1a1o <10 <10 <10
1a2o <10 <10 <10
1a3o <10 <10 <10
1a4o <10 <10 <10
1a5o <10 <10 <10
1a6o <10 <10 <10
1a7o <10 <10 <10
1b1o <10 <10 <10
1b2o <10 <10 <10
1b3o <10 <10 <10
1b4o <10 <10 <10
1co <10 <10 <10
1do <10 <10 <10
1eo 12 12 <10
1fo <10 <10 <10
1go <10 <10 <10

12 12 0

1,086 1,086 642

2a1 19 19 16
2a2 13 13 9
2a3 11 11 5
2a4 <10 <10 <10
2a5 <10 <10 <10

Total Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin

Korean

Filipino
Japanese

White
More than One Race
Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose 

Subtotal Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin, 
Combined

Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native

White
More than One Race
Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose 

Subtotal Another Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish 
Origin

Japanese
Korean
Vietnamese

Native Hawaiian
Other Pacific Islander
Guamanian or Chamorro

Other Asian

Not Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin
Asian Indian
Chinese

Native Hawaiian
Other Pacific Islander
Guamanian or Chamorro
Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native

Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin Combined
Asian Indian

Filipino
Chinese

Korean
Vietnamese
Other Asian

White
More than One Race
Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose 

Subtotal Cuban
Another Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin

Asian Indian
Chinese
Filipino
Japanese

Other Pacific Islander
Guamanian or Chamorro
Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native



2a6 11 11 <10
2a7 246 246 141
2b1 <10 <10 <10
2b2 20 20 <10
2b3 <10 <10 <10
2b4 <10 <10 <10
2c 357 357 175
2d 13 13 <10
2e 540 540 211
2f 16 16 <10
2g 34 34 12

1,280 1,280 569

h 33 33 11
i 2,399 2,399 1,222

Total Not Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin

Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native
White
More than One Race
Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose 

Vietnamese
Other Asian
Native Hawaiian
Other Pacific Islander
Guamanian or Chamorro

Total

Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose Race and Ethnicity
Unreported /Chose Not to Disclose 

Comments (Max 4000 characters)



Line
Total Patients 18 through 75 

Years of Age with Diabetes (3a)
Number of Records Reviewed 

(3b)
Patients with HbA1c >9.0% or No 

Test During Year (3f)

1a1m <10 <10 <10
1a2m <10 <10 <10
1a3m <10 <10 <10
1a4m <10 <10 <10
1a5m <10 <10 <10
1a6m <10 <10 <10
1a7m <10 <10 <10
1b1m <10 <10 <10
1b2m <10 <10 <10
1b3m <10 <10 <10
1b4m <10 <10 <10
1cm <10 <10 <10
1dm <10 <10 <10
1em 552 552 157
1fm <10 <10 <10
1gm 26 26 13

578 578 170

1a1p <10 <10 <10
1a2p <10 <10 <10
1a3p <10 <10 <10
1a4p <10 <10 <10
1a5p <10 <10 <10
1a6p <10 <10 <10
1a7p <10 <10 <10
1b1p <10 <10 <10
1b2p <10 <10 <10
1b3p <10 <10 <10
1b4p <10 <10 <10
1cp <10 <10 <10
1dp <10 <10 <10
1ep <10 <10 <10
1fp <10 <10 <10
1gp <10 <10 <10

<10 <10 <10

1a1c <10 <10 <10
1a2c <10 <10 <10
1a3c <10 <10 <10
1a4c <10 <10 <10
1a5c <10 <10 <10
1a6c <10 <10 <10
1a7c <10 <10 <10
1b1c <10 <10 <10
1b2c <10 <10 <10
1b3c <10 <10 <10
1b4c <10 <10 <10
1cc <10 <10 <10
1dc <10 <10 <10
1ec <10 <10 <10
1fc <10 <10 <10
1gc <10 <10 <10

<10 <10 <10

1a1a <10 <10 <10

Reporting Period: January 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023
Table 7: Health Outcomes and Disparities

Guamanian or Chamorro
Other Pacific Islander

Asian Indian
Chinese
Filipino

Section C: Diabetes: Hemoglobin A1c Poor Control

Race and Ethnicity

Mexican, Mexican American, Chicano/a

Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose 
Subtotal Mexican, Mexican American, 
Chicano/a

Japanese
Korean

Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native
White
More than One Race

HRSA Homeless Grant: H80CS00045 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO DOH & HUMAN SERVICES, Sacramento, CA

Vietnamese
Other Asian
Native Hawaiian

Puerto Rican
Asian Indian
Chinese

Other Pacific Islander
Guamanian or Chamorro
Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native
White

Filipino
Japanese
Korean
Vietnamese
Other Asian
Native Hawaiian

Filipino
Japanese
Korean
Vietnamese
Other Asian
Native Hawaiian

More than One Race
Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose 

Subtotal Puerto Rican
Cuban

Asian Indian
Chinese

More than One Race
Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose 

Subtotal Cuban
Another Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin

Asian Indian

Other Pacific Islander
Guamanian or Chamorro
Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native
White



1a2a <10 <10 <10
1a3a <10 <10 <10
1a4a <10 <10 <10
1a5a <10 <10 <10
1a6a <10 <10 <10
1a7a <10 <10 <10
1b1a <10 <10 <10
1b2a <10 <10 <10
1b3a <10 <10 <10
1b4a <10 <10 <10
1ca <10 <10 <10
1da <10 <10 <10
1ea 398 398 133
1fa <10 <10 <10
1ga 21 21 7

419 419 140

1a1o <10 <10 <10
1a2o <10 <10 <10
1a3o <10 <10 <10
1a4o <10 <10 <10
1a5o <10 <10 <10
1a6o <10 <10 <10
1a7o <10 <10 <10
1b1o <10 <10 <10
1b2o <10 <10 <10
1b3o <10 <10 <10
1b4o <10 <10 <10
1co <10 <10 <10
1do <10 <10 <10
1eo <10 <10 <10
1fo <10 <10 <10
1go <10 <10 <10

<10 <10 <10

997 997 310

2a1 16 16 <10
2a2 <10 <10 <10
2a3 <10 <10 <10
2a4 <10 <10 <10
2a5 <10 <10 <10
2a6 11 11 <10
2a7 207 207 53
2b1 <10 <10 <10
2b2 21 21 <10
2b3 <10 <10 <10
2b4 <10 <10 <10
2c 171 171 63
2d 11 11 <10
2e 272 272 88
2f <10 <10 <10
2g 29 29 <10

738 738 204

h 21 21 10
i 1,756 1,756 524

Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose 
Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose Race and Ethnicity

Total
Comments (Max 4000 characters)

Chinese

Other Pacific Islander
Guamanian or Chamorro
Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native
White

Filipino
Japanese
Korean
Vietnamese
Other Asian
Native Hawaiian

Filipino
Japanese
Korean
Vietnamese
Other Asian
Native Hawaiian

More than One Race
Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose 

Subtotal Another Hispanic, Latino/a, or 
Spanish Origin
Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin Combined

Asian Indian
Chinese

More than One Race
Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose 

Subtotal Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin, 
Combined

Not Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin
Asian Indian
Chinese

Other Pacific Islander
Guamanian or Chamorro
Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native
White

White

Unreported/Chose Not to Disclose 
Total Not Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish 
Origin

Total Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish Origin

More than One Race

Other Pacific Islander
Guamanian or Chamorro
Samoan
Black/African American
American Indian/Alaska Native

Filipino
Japanese
Korean
Vietnamese
Other Asian
Native Hawaiian



UDS REPORT - 2023

TABLE 8A

 ACCRUED
COST
( a ) 

 ALLOCATION OF
FACILITY AND NON-
CLINICAL SUPPORT 

SERVICES
( b ) 

 TOTAL COST AFTER
ALLOCATION OF 

FACILITY AND NON- 
CLINICAL SUPPORT 

SERVICES
( c ) 

1. Medical Staff                          10,805,379                            5,302,443                          16,107,822 
2. Lab and X-ray                               804,060                               596,871                            1,400,931 
3. Medical/Other Direct                            2,318,691                            1,137,834                            3,456,525 
4. TOTAL MEDICAL CARE SERVICES

(SUM LINES 1 THROUGH 3)
                         13,928,130                            7,037,148                          20,965,278 

5. Dental                                 27,053                                 13,276                                 40,329 
6. Mental Health                            3,516,235                            1,732,665                            5,248,900 
7. Substance Abuse                                         -   
8a. Pharmacy not including pharmaceuticals                            1,061,565                               520,934                            1,582,499 
8b. Pharmaceuticals                            1,091,191                            1,091,191 
9. Other Professional (Specify:           )                                         -   
9a Vision                                         -   
10. TOTAL OTHER CLINICAL SERVICES

(SUM LINES 5 THROUGH 9A)
                           5,696,044                            2,266,875                            7,962,919 

11a. Case Management                                         -   
11b. Transportation                                         -   
11c. Outreach                               415,898                               415,898 
11d. Patient and Community Education                                         -   
11e. Eligibility Assistance                               222,902                               222,902 
11 f. Interpretation Services                               808,579                               808,579 
11g. Other Enabling Services (specify:                        )                                         -   
11h. Community Health Workers                                         -   
11. Total Enabling Services Cost

(SUM LINES 11A THROUGH 11G)
                           1,447,379                               712,956                            2,160,335 

12. Other Related Services (specify:                                 )                                         -   
12a. Quality Improvement                               689,745                               338,474                            1,028,219 
13. TOTAL ENABLING AND OTHER SERVICES

(SUM LINES 11, 12, AND 12a)
                           2,137,124                            1,051,430                            3,188,554 

14. Facility                            1,880,506 
15. Non Clinical Support Services                            8,474,947 
16. TOTAL FACILITY AND NON CLINICAL SUPPORT SERVICES

(SUM LINES 14 AND 15)
                         10,355,453 

17. TOTAL ACCRUED COSTS
(SUM LINES 4 + 10 + 13 + 16)

                         32,116,751                          32,116,751 

18. Value of Donated Facilities, Services, and Supplies
(specify: Pharmaceuticals)

                                        -   

19. TOTAL WITH DONATIONS
(SUM LINES 17 AND 18)

                         32,116,751 

FINANCIAL COSTS FOR MEDICAL CARE

FINANCIAL COSTS FOR OTHER CLINICAL SERVICES

FINANCIAL COSTS OF ENABLING AND OTHER PROGRAM RELATED SERVICES

FACILITY AND NON-CLINICAL SUPPORT SERVICES AND TOTALS



Collection of 
Reconciliation 
/Wrap-Around 
Current Year

(c1)

Collection of 
Reconciliation 
/Wrap-Around 
Previous Years 

(c2)

Collection of 
Other Payments: 
P4P, Risk Pools, 

etc.
(c3)

Penalty/ 
Payback

(c4)

1 Medicaid Non-Managed Care $2,141,674 $3,252,868 $706,698 
2a Medicaid Managed Care (capitated) $9,252,397 $14,465,581 $3,647,244 $112,707 ($5,213,184)
2b Medicaid Managed Care (fee-for-service)
3 Total Medicaid (Sum of Lines 1+2a+2b) $11,394,071 $17,718,449 $0 $3,647,244 $112,707 $0 ($4,506,486)
4 Medicare Non-Managed Care $382,368 $140,173 $100,367

5a Medicare Managed Care (capitated) $247,914 $164,142 $83,772
5b Medicare Managed Care (fee-for-service)
6 Total Medicare (Sum of Lines 4+5a+5b) $630,282 $304,315 $0 $0 $0 $0 $184,139
7 Other Public, including Non-Medicaid CHIP, Non-Managed Care

8a Other Public, including Non-Medicaid CHIP, Managed Care (capitated)

8b Other Public, including Non-Medicaid CHIP, Managed Care (fee-for-service)

9 Total Other Public (Sum of Lines 7 + 8a + 8b) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
10 Private Non-Managed Care $144,968 $27,375 $117,593

11a Private Managed Care (capitated)
11b Private Managed Care (fee-for-service)
12 Total Private (Sum of Lines 10+11a+11b) $144,968 $27,375 $0 $0 $117,593
13 Self-Pay $1,367,683 $17,820 $211,271 $3,601,062
14 TOTAL (Sum of Lines 3+6+9+12+13) $13,537,004 $18,067,959 $0 $3,647,244 $112,707 $0 ($4,204,754) $211,271 $3,601,062

Bad Debt Write 
Off
(f) 

Comments (Max 4000 characters)

Table 9D: Patient Service Revenue
Reporting Period: January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023

HRSA Homeless Grant: H80CS00045 | COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO DOH & HUMAN SERVICES

Line Payer Category
Full Charges This 

Period 
(a) 

Amount Collected 
This Period 

(b)

Retroactive Settlements, Receipts, and Paybacks (c)

Adjustments
(d)

Sliding Fee 
Discounts

(e)



UDS REPORT CY 2023
TABLE 9E:  OTHER REVENUES
Reporting Period:  January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023

BPHC GRANTS (ENTER AMOUNT DRAWN DOWN – CONSISTENT WITH PMS 272)
1a Migrant Health Center
1b Community Health Center                   131,676 
1c Health Care for the Homeless               1,817,992 
1e Public Housing Primary Care
1g TOTAL HEALTH CENTER (SUM LINES 1a THROUGH 1e)               1,949,668 
1k Capital Development Grants , including School-Based Health Center Capital Grants                              -   
1l Coronavirus Preparedness and Response Supplemental Appropriations Act (H8C)                              -   
1m Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES) (H8D)                              -   
1n Expanding Capacity for Coronavirus Testing (ECT) (H8E and LAC ECT)                              -   
1o American Rescue Plan (ARP) (H8F, L2C, C8E)               1,017,961 
1p Expanding COVID-19 Vaccination (ECV)                              -   
1p2 Other COVID-Related Funding from BPHC (specify:____)                              -   
1q TOTAL COVID-19 SUPPLEMENTAL (SUM LINES 1l THROUGH 1p2)               1,017,961 
1 TOTAL BPHC GRANTS

(SUM LINES 1g + 1k + 1q)               2,967,629 
OTHER FEDERAL GRANTS

2 Ryan White Part C HIV Early Intervention
3 Other Federal Grants (specify:  __ARPA SLFRF_____)               1,168,367 
3a Medicare and Medicaid EHR Incentive Payments for Eligible Providers                              -   
3b Provider Relief Fund (specify: _________)                              -   
5 TOTAL OTHER FEDERAL GRANTS

(SUM LINES 2 - 3b)               1,168,367 
NON-FEDERAL GRANTS OR CONTRACTS

6 State Government Grants and Contracts (specify:  _REFUGEE & DHSC CWSRP___)               1,386,710 
6a State/Local Indigent Care Programs (specify: Realignment funds)               9,170,014 
7 Local Government Grants and Contracts (specify:  __________)                              -   
8 Foundation/Private Grants and Contracts (specify:  __________)

                             -   
9 TOTAL NON-FEDERAL GRANTS AND CONTRACTS

(SUM LINES 6 + 6a + 7 + 8)             10,556,724 
10 Other Revenue (non-patient related revenue not reported elsewhere) (specify: Reimbursement by 

other programs/department for cost of staff and other services, miscellaneous fees & refunds)
              1,703,805 

11 TOTAL REVENUE (LINES 1 + 5 + 9 + 10)             16,396,525 

Line Source
Amount                 

(a)



UDS 2019

a. Yes, installed at all sites and used by all providers
Indicate Yes a) if Installed at all sites and used by all providers: For the purposes of this response, 
“providers” mean all medical providers, including physicians, nurse practitioners, physician assistants, and 
certified nurse midwives. Although some or all of the dental, mental health, or other providers may also 
be using the system, as may medical support staff, this is not required to choose response (a). For the 
purposes of this response, “all sites” means all permanent sites where medical providers serve health 
center medical patients. It does not include administrative-only locations, hospitals or nursing homes, 
mobile vans, or sites used on a seasonal or temporary basis. You may check this option if a few newly 
hired, untrained employees are the only ones not using the system.

b. Yes, but only installed at some sites or used by some providers
Indicate Yes b) if Installed at some sites or used by some providers: Select option (b) if one or more 
permanent sites did not have the EHR installed or in use (even if this is planned), or if one or more medical 
providers (as defined on this page under [a]) do not yet use the system. When determining if all providers 
have access to the system, the health center should also consider part-time and locum providers who serve 
clinic patients. Do not select this option if the only medical providers who did not have access were those 
who were newly hired and still being 

c. No
Select “no” if no EHR was in use on December 31, even if you had the system installed and training had 
started.
This question seeks to determine whether the health center installed an EHR by December 31 and, if so, 
which product was in use, how broad system access was, and what features were available and in use. Do 
not include PMS or other billing systems, even though they can often produce much of the UDS data. If the 
health center purchased an EHR but has not yet put it into use, answer “no.” 
If response is "c. No" skip to Question 11.

1a.Is your system certified by the Office of the National Coordinator for Health IT (ONC) Health IT 
Certification Program? (Yes or No)

Yes

1a1. Vendor OCHIN Epic (Epic Systems Corporation)
1a2.Product Number EpicCare Ambulatory Base
1a3.Version Number May-23
1a4.ONC-certified Health IT Product List Number 15.04.04.1447.Epic.AM.25.1.230621
1b. Did you switch to your current EHR from a previous system this year? (Yes or No) No
1c. Do you use more than one EHR, data collection, and/or data analytics system across your 
organization? (Yes or No)

No

1c1. If yes, what is the reason?  (Select all that apply)

1c1. a. Additional EHR/data system(s) are used during transition from one primary EHR to another

1c1. b. Additional EHR/data system(s) are specific to one service type (e.g., dental, behavioral health, care 
coordination)

1c1. c. Additional EHR/data system(s) are used at specific service delivery sites with no plan to transition

1c1. d. Additional EHR/data system(s) are used for analysis and reporting (such as for clinical quality 
measures or custom reporting)
1c1. e. Other (please describe ______________________________)
1d. Question removed.
1e. Question removed.

a. Hospitals/Emergency rooms
b. Specialty providers
c. Other primary care providers
d. Labs or imaging
e. Health information exchange (HIE)
f. Community-based organizations/social service partners
g. None of the above
h. Other (please describe ______________________________)

a. Patient portals
b. Kiosks
c. Secure messaging between patient and provider
d. Online or virtual scheduling
e. Automated electronic outreach for care gap closure or preventive care reminders
f. Application programming interface (API)-cased patient access to their health record through mHealth 
apps
d. Other (please describe ______________________________)

Reporting Period: January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023

2. Question removed.
3. Question removed.
4. Which of the following key providers/health care settings does your health center electronically exchange clinical or patient information with? (Select all that apply.)

5. Does your health center engage patients through health IT in any of the following ways? (Select all that apply.)

Please indicate your EHR vendor, product name, version number, and ONC-certified health IT product list number:

Appendix D: Health Center Information Technology (HIT) Capabilites

HRSA Homeless Grant: H80CS00045 | COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO DOH & HUMAN SERVICES
1. Does your health center currently have an electronic health record (EHR) system installed and in use, at minimum for medical care, by December 31?
Indicate one option (a, b, or c)

If “Yes, but only installed at some service delivery sites or used by some providers” is selected, a box expands for health centers to identify how many service delivery sites 



UDS 2019

e. No, we DO NOT engage patients using HIT

a. We use the EHR to extract automated reports
b. We use the EHR but only to access individual patient health records
c. We use the EHR in combination with another data analytic system
d. We DO NOT use the EHR

a. Quality improvement
b. Population health management
c. Program evaluation
d. Research
e. Other (please describe ______________________________)
f. We DO NOT utilize HIT or EHR data beyond direct patient care

a. Yes
b. No, but we are in planning stages to collect this information
c. No, we are not planning to collect this information

11a. How many health center patients were screened for social risk factors using a standardized screener 
during the calendar year? (Only respond to this if the response to Question 11 is “a. Yes.”) 

3,006

a. Accountable Health Communities Screening Tools
b. Upstream Risks Screening Tool and Guide
c. iHELLP
d. Recommend Social and Behavioral Domains for EHRs
e. Protocol for Responding to and Assessing Patients’ Assets, Risks, and Experiences (PRAPARE)
f. Well Child Care, Evaluation, Community Resources, Advocacy Referral, Education (WE CARE)
g. WellRx
h. Health Leads Screening Toolkit
i. Other (please describe Staying Health Assessment (from DHCS), Refugee Health Assesessment, Relationship Safety Screening, Sociodemographic data sheet, PEARLS, SBIRT, PHQ2 and PHQ9, Domestic violence (OCHIN), GAD-7

j. We DO NOT use a standardized screener (skip to Question 12b)

a. Food insecurity 55
b. Housing insecurity 55
c. Financial strain 60
d. Lack of transportation/access to public transportation 31

a. Have not considered/unfamiliar with standardized screeners
b. Lack of funding for addressing these unmet social needs of patients
c. Lack of training for personnel to discuss these issues with patients
d. Inability to include with patient intake and clinical workflow
e. Not needed
f. Other (please describe ___________)

a. Yes
b. No
c. Not sure
Comments (Max 4000 characters)

12b. If you DO NOT use a standardized screener to collect this information, please indicate why. (Select all that apply.) (Only respond to this question if Question 11a is zero or 

13. Does your health center integrate a statewide Prescription Drug Monitoring Program (PDMP) database into the health information systems, such as health information 

8. Question removed.
9. Question removed.
10. How does your health center utilize HIT and EHR data beyond direct patient care? (Select all that apply.)

11. Does your health center collect data on individual patients' social risk factors, outside of the data countable in the UDS?

12. Which standardized screener(s) for social risk factors, if any, did you use during the calendar year? (Select all that apply. Only respond to this if Question 11a is greater 

12a. Of the total patients screened for social risk factors (Question 11a), please provide the total number of patients that screened positive for any of the following at any 

6. Question removed.
7. Question removed.



UDS 2019

a. How many physicians, certified nurse practitioners, physician assistants, and certified nurse midwives,
on-site or with whom the health center has contracts, have a Drug Addiction Treatment Act of 2000 
(DATA) waiver to treat opioid use disorder with medications specifically approved by the U.S. Food and 
Drug Administration (FDA) (i.e., buprenorphine) for that indication during the calendar year?

b. b. During the calendar year, how many patients received MAT for opioid use disorder from a physician, 
certified nurse practitioner, physician assistant, or certified nurse midwife with a DATA waiver working on
behalf of the health center?

2. Did your organization use telemedicine to provide remote (virtual) clinical care services? (Yes or No) Yes

If yes, who did you use telemedicine to communicate with? (Select all that apply.)
a. Patients at remote locations from your organization (e.g., home telemedicine, satellite locations)
b. Specialists outside your organization (e.g., specialists at referral centers)

If yes, what telehealth technologies did you use? (Select all that apply.)
a. Real-time telehealth (e.g., live video conferencing)
b. Store-and-forward medicine (e.g., secure email with photos or videos of patient examinations)
c. Remote patient monitoring
d. Mobile Health (mHealth)

If yes, what primary telemedicine services were used at your organization? (Select all that apply.)
a. Primary care
b. Oral health
c. Behavioral health: Mental health
d. Behavioral health: Substance use disorder
e. Dermatology
f. Chronic conditions
g. Disaster management
h. Consumer health education
i. Provider-to-provider consultation
j. Radiology
k. Nutrition and dietary counseling
l. Other (Please describe: __________________________)

If no, you did not have telemedicine services, please comment why. (Select all that apply.)
a.. Have not considered/unfamiliar with telehealth service options
b. Policy barriers (Select all that apply)

i. Lack of or limited reimbursement
 ii. Credentialing, licensing, or privileging

iii. Privacy and security
iv. Other (Please describe: __________________)

c. Inadequate broadband/telecommunication service (Select all that apply)
i. Cost of service

ii. Lack of infrastructure
iii. Other (Please describe: __________________)

d. Lack of funding for telehealth equipment
e. Lack of training for telehealth services
f. Not needed
g.  Other (Please describe: __________________)

Enter number of assists
Note: Assists DO NOT count as visits on the UDS tables. 

1,263

Reporting Period: January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023
Appendix E: Other Data Elements

HRSA Homeless Grant: H80CS00045 | COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO DOH & HUMAN SERVICES
1. Medication-Assisted Treatment (MAT) for Opioid Use Disorder

2. Telemedicine

3. Provide the number of all assists provided during the past year by all trained assisters (e.g., certified application counselor or equivalent)

62

39



Indicate Yes or No
If yes, which category best describes your health center’s role in the health professional education/training 
process? (Select all that apply.)
a. Sponsor 
b. Training site partner 
c. Other (please describe ________________)

Medical a. Pre-Graduate/Certificate b. Post-Graduate Training
1. Physicians 58 120
             a. Family Physicians 9 36
             b. General Practitioners 0 0
             c. Internists 8 56
             d. Obstetrician/Gynecologists 0 0
             e. Pediatricians 41 28
             f. Other Specialty Physicians 0 0
2. Nurse Practitioners 9 4
3. Physician Assistants 15 0
4. Certified Nurse Midwives 0 0
5. Registered Nurses 0 0
6. Licensed Practical Nurses/ Vocational Nurses 0 0
7. Medical Assistants 0 0
Dental a. Pre-Graduate/Certificate b. Post-Graduate Training
8. Dentists 0 0
9. Dental Hygienists 0 0
10. Dental Therapists 0 0
10a. Dental Assistants 0 0
Mental Health and Substance Use Disorder a. Pre-Graduate/Certificate b. Post-Graduate Training
11. Psychiatrists 10 16
12. Clinical Psychologists 0 1
13. Clinical Social Workers 0 0
14. Professional Counselors 0 0
15. Marriage and Family Therapists 0 0
16. Psychiatric Nurse Specialists 0 0
17. Mental Health Nurse Practitioners 0 0
18. Mental Health Physician Assistants 0 0
19. Substance Use Disorder Personnel 0 0
Vision a. Pre-Graduate/Certificate b. Post-Graduate Training
20. Ophthalmologists 0 0
21. Optometrists 0 0
Other Professionals a. Pre-Graduate/Certificate b. Post-Graduate Training
22. Chiropractors 0 0
23. Dieticians/Nutritionists 0 0
24. Pharmacists 0 0
25. Other (please describe ________) 0 0
3. Provide the number of health center personnel serving as preceptors at your health center 
4. Provide the number of health center personnel (non-preceptors) supporting ongoing health center 
training programs 

a. Monthly
b. Quarterly
c. Annually*
d. We DO NOT currently conduct provider satisfaction surveys
e. Other (please describe _________)

a. Monthly
b. Quarterly
c. Annually
d. We DO NOT currently conduct personnel satisfaction surveys
e. Other (please describe __*_______)
Comments (Max 4000 characters)

*annual survey includes providers and general staff

2. Please indicate the range of health professional education/training offered at your health center and how many individuals you have trained in each category 

57

122

5. How often does your health center conduct satisfaction surveys to providers (as identified in Appendix A, Listing of Personnel) working for the health center? 

*surveyed annually as part of general staff survey
6. How often does your health center conduct satisfaction surveys for general personnel (as identified in Appendix A, Listing of Personnel) working for the health 

Appendix F: Workforce

HRSA Homeless Grant: H80CS00045 | COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO DOH & HUMAN SERVICES
1. Does your health center provide any health professional education/training that is hands-on, practical, or clinical experience?

Reporting Period: January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023



1 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Sacramento County Health Center  

Quality Improvement Plan 

2024 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Department of Health Services 
Primary Health Division  
Approved by CAB on  
 
 
 



2 
 

OVERVIEW 

 
Sacramento County Health Center (SCHC) has a systematic approach to quality measurement and quality 
improvement. The Quality Improvement (QI) Plan outlines the process that includes methods to monitor 
performance and implement changes in practice when necessary, with follow up measurement to determine 
whether new practices positively affected performance. 

Review of data is essential to the QI process. Data can include but is not limited to performance indicators, 
satisfaction surveys, member concerns (complaints, grievances), service utilization, medication errors, 
chart review, etc. Compliance and risk management are also integral to quality management. The Health 
Center is a public entity and has separate units or departments for Compliance (HIPAA), risk management, 
contracts, fiscal, safety, information management, and legal counsel.  

 
Health Center Vision 

- To be an exceptional health care center valued by the communities we serve and our team. 
 
Health Center Mission  

- To provide high quality, patient-focused, equitable healthcare for the underserved in Sacramento 
County, while providing training for the next generation of local health care providers. 

 
Values  

• Accountability • Diversity 
 

• Excellence 
    

• Respect 

• Compassion • Equity 
 

• Education  

Quadruple Aim 
- Patients feel that the SCHC cares about and works to improve their well-being, safety, and 

experience in a respectful way; 
- Reducing health inequities and assisting patients in achieving better health outcomes through best 

practice and/or evidenced based guidelines; 
- Responsible management of funds to ensure economic sustainability of health center; and 
- Care Team members understand and believe in their role and are supported to carry it out in a 

positive environment. 
 
Guiding Principles for Service Provision 

- Access to care for routine, same day, and new member appointments; 
- Respect, sensitivity, and competency for populations served; 
- A safe and attractive environment for clients, visitors, and staff; 
- A work culture that acknowledges all team members provide essential high-quality services;  
- Effective communication and information sharing; 
- Effective and efficient use of resources to sustain the mission;  
- Implementation of data-informed practices; and 
- Continuous improvement. 

 
 
 
 



3 
 

PROGRAM STRUCTURE 

 
Quality Improvement Committee (QIC) 

1. The QIC provides operational leadership and accountability for clinical continuous quality 
improvement activities.   

2. QIC meets at least monthly or not less than ten (10) times per year.   
3. The QIC members represent different disciplines and service areas within the Health Center, and 

include the Division Manager, Medical Director, Pharmacy Director, QI Director, program 
supervisors, designated Administrative Services Officer, physicians, and other clinical staff.  

4. QIC responsibilities include: 
a. Develop the annual QI Plan that includes a specific approach to Continuous Quality 

Improvement (CQI) based on the Quadruple Aim and present it to the Co-Applicant Board 
(CAB) for adoption. 

b. Establish measurable objectives and indicators of quality based upon identified priorities. 
c. Oversee quality improvement teams working on projects 
d. Monitor data indicating progress toward clinical goals related to Patient Experience and 

Population Health Outcomes.  
e. For clinical indicators out of target range, develop actions and strategies for Health Center 

Management Team implementation. 
f. Report to the CAB on clinical quality improvement activities and outcomes at least quarterly. 

5. Management Team responsibilities include: 
a. Implement strategies and provide education to staff on clinical quality standards and metrics.  
b. Monitor data indicating progress toward the goals related to Reducing Costs and Care Team 

Well-Being.  
c. For economic and personnel indicators out of target range, develop actions and strategies for 

Health Center Management Team implementation. 
d. Report to the CAB on non-clinical quality improvement activities on a regular basis. 
e. Report back to the QIC. 

6. Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB) role includes: 
a. Execute authorities outlined in Clinic Services PP 01-02: Co-Applicant Board Authority.  
b. Delegate authority and responsibility for the QI Program to the QIC.   
c. Review, evaluate, and approve the Quality Improvement Plan annually and receive quarterly 

reports on identified quality indicators.   
 
 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS & ANALYSIS 

 
Performance Indicators are identified and measured as part of the quality improvement initiatives. 
They: 

- Have defined data elements;  
- Usually have a numerator (who/what was changed) and denominator (of what eligible group) 

available for measurement; and 
- Can detect changes in performance over time and allow for a comparison over time.  

Outcomes / Process Measurements are those that: 
- Identify measurable indicators to monitor the process or outcome; 



4 
 

- Collect data for specified time period, or ongoing; 
- Are compared to a performance threshold or target; and 
- Evaluate the effectiveness of defined action(s). 

 
Data Analysis establishes:  

- Priorities for improvement; 
- Actions necessary for improvement; 
- Whether process changes resulted in improvement; and 
- Performance of existing key processes. 

 
 Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) – Clinic Services frequently utilizes the Plan–Do–Study–Act 
(PDSA) method for focused intervention.   

 

 

COMMUNICATION AND COORDINATION 

 
Communication  

Problems may be identified from data, staff or management experience, concerns, audits, or agency 
feedback. Managers are responsible for: 

1. Sharing the plan including indicators and targets with staff at all levels; 

2. Including multidisciplinary staff from all areas of operations in problem identification; 
developing strategies, implementing interventions via QI team projects, and review of data 
analysis;  

3. Providing information alerts or policy and procedure guidance; and 

4. Imbedding key priorities into Health Center policies, training, and other core materials.  

 
 

PLAN 

 

Identify area target not met. 

Identify most likely cause(s) through data review. 

Identify potential solution(s) and data needed for evaluation. 

DO Implement solution(s) and collect data needed to evaluate the solution(s). 

STUDY Analyze the data and develop conclusions. 

ACT Recommend further study or action.  May need to abort, adapt, or adopt. This decision 
depends upon the results of the analysis.  If the proposed solution was effective, 
decisions are made regarding broader implementation including the development of a 
communication plan, etc.  If the solution was not effective, QI team returns to planning 
step.  



5 
 

CONFIDENTIALITY AND PRIVACY OF PERSONAL HEALTH INFORMATION 

 
All data and recommendations associated with quality management activities are solely for the 
improvement of patient experience, patient care, economic sustainability, or the well-being of the care 
team. All material related to patient care is confidential and accessible only to those parties responsible 
for assessing quality of care and service. All proceedings, records, data, reports, information, and any 
other material used in the clinical quality management process which involves peer review shall be held 
in strictest confidence and considered peer review protected.  

The Health Center will minimize use of identifiable protected health information for quality measurement 
to protect it from inappropriate disclosure. Reports for committee review regarding data analysis and 
trending shall not disclosure a client’s protected health information. Use of aggregate data or reports will 
be maintained in the CAB meeting minutes.  

Personal health information obtained because of a client complaint or appeal is kept in a secure area and 
is only made available to those who have a need to know. Computer access to personal health information 
about a client’s complaint or appeal is password protected and only accessible to those who need access.  

Clinic Services Policies & Procedures Manual and the County Office of Compliance have extensive 
policies and procedures for health information management and protected health information. 

 
 
 
 
 
Annually, the Health Center selects Quality Improvement goals and objectives for each part of the 
Quadruple Aim. The Quality Improvement Committee (QIC) is responsible for oversight of two of the 
Aims: Patient Experience and Population Health Outcomes. The Management Team is responsible for 
Reducing Costs and Care Team Well-Being. 
 
 
AIM: Patient Experience: Patients feel that the SCHC cares about and works to improve their well-
being, safety, and experience in a respectful way. 
 
• Goal 1: Improve Access to Care 

o Objective 1-1: Improve Access by Telephone During and After Hours 
 Reduce the amount of time patients spend on the phone by: 

 Reduce the Longest Queue time by at least 5 minutes under the 2023 
baseline. 

 Develop Daily Targets and Performance Dashboard using above metrics. 

o Objective 1-2: Reduce No Shows 
 Reduce No Shows by 5% for each program. 
 Develop PCP and department level OCHIN dashboards displaying provider 

utilization, schedule utilization, average lead time, no-show rate, and time lost. 
 Track appointment reminders to see how many are completed (i.e. patient responds 

by confirming or cancelling the appointment).  

2024 QUALITY IMPROVEMENT GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 



6 
 

o Objective 1-3: Increase Appointment Access  
 Increase availability of appointments after regular business hours by conducting a 

minimum of 12 after hours (Saturdays and/or evening) clinics. 
 Increase access to clinical resources for Gap Closure activities. 
 Develop PCP and department level OCHIN dashboards displaying provider 

utilization, schedule utilization, average lead time, no-show rate, and time lost. 
 Track the percentage of new members who get new member appointments within 

120 days of being assigned to SCHC and how many of these are completed (e.g. have 
all components including SHA).   

o Objective 1-4: Reduce Time from Referral/Order to Appointment 
 Ensure at least 25% of referrals are processed within the DHCS timely access 

requirements.  
 Develop Referral OCHIN dashboard displaying key metrics including but not limited 

to the time from order to sending to IPA for prior authorization, to authorization 
decision, to schedule, and then to visit completion. 

• Goal 2: Improve Customer Service 

o Objective 2-1: Improve Continuity of Care 
 Validate OCHIN provider dashboards for empaneled patients. 
 Develop training tools for PCP level quality activities, including how to utilize the 

provider dashboard. 
 Track the number of non-urgent appointments that are with the patient’s PCP as a 

measure of continuity of care.  

o Objective 2-2: Improve Pre-Visit Planning 
 Develop pre-visit planning workflows for patient registration in Family Medicine, 

Adult Medicine, Behavioral Health, and Pediatrics utilizing OCHIN tools for Health 
Maintenance.  

 Track pre-visit quality activities (i.e., checks of health maintenance section prior to 
patient visits). 

 Develop daily targets & performance dashboard using above metrics. 
 

• Goal 3: Improve Patient Engagement 

o Objective 3-1: Improve Patient Outreach 
 Increase the percentage of active adult patients with activated My Chart from 31% to 

35% by December 31, 2024. 
 Ensure contact by visit or outreach (call/letter/text) with all empaneled patients at 

least once per calendar year. 
 Develop OCHIN dashboard tools for tracking patient engagement. 

o Objective 3-2: Improve Supports for Health Literacy and Patient Education 
 Track access to and time to engage interpreter services. 
 Increase access to Pharmacy supported education services for patients with diabetes 

by 10% over 2023. 
 Expand access to patient education materials available in languages other than 

English. 
 
 
 



7 
 

Aim: Population Health Outcomes: Reducing health inequities and assisting patients in achieving better 
health outcomes through best practices, innovation, and/or evidence-based guidelines. 
 
Care Coordination 

• Goal 4: Prepare To Apply For NCQA PCMH Accreditation or Similar Program For Enhanced Care 
Team Approaches. 

o Objective 4-1: Staff Training For Project Leaders 

o Objective 4-2: Self-Assessment 

• Goal 5: Improve Care Coordination of Patients with High Service Utilization or Who Require 
Services Across Systems 

o Objective 5-1: Increase Percentage of Patients Receiving Follow Up (within seven days) of 
ED Visit or Hospitalization.  
 FUA 
 FUI 
 FUM 

o Objective 5-2: Increase Utilization Of Non-PCP Resources For Care Gap Closure. 
 Pharmacy Services 
 RN/MA Resources 

o Objective 5-3: Increase the Number of Multi-Visit Patients Participating In Complex Care 
Coordination (CCC) and Care Management. 
 Telephone coordination 
 Plan-provided and ECM services 

 
Clinical Performance Measures 
 
• Goal 5: Achieve Minimum Performance Level (MPL) on Select Uniform Data System (UDS) and 

Healthcare Effectiveness Data and Information Set (HEDIS) Quality Measures Focused on a Healthy 
Start in Life.  

o Objectives: 
 Prenatal/Postpartum care 
 Lead Screening 
 Childhood Immunizations at Age 2 (CIS) 
 Adolescent Immunizations (IMA) 
 Well-child visits for children 15 to 30 months of age (WCV-30) 
 Well-child visits for children and youth 3-21 years of age (WCV 3-21) 

 
• Goal 6a: Achieve MPL on Select UDS and HEDIS Quality Measures Focused on Primary or 

Secondary Prevention of Health Issues Prevalent among SCHC Patients. 

o Objectives: 
 Breast Cancer Screening (BCS) 
 Cervical Cancer Screening (CCS) 
 Colorectal Cancer Screening (CRCS) 



8 
 

 Influenza Immunizations 
 Tobacco Screening 

 
• Goal 6b:  Achieve High Performance Level (HPL) for HEDIS Quality Measures Focused on Primary 

Prevention of Health Issues Prevalent Among SCHC Patients. 

o Objectives: 
 Chlamydia Screening 
 Hypertension Management: Blood pressure Control 

 
• Goal 7:  Achieve MPL on Select UDS and HEDIS Quality Measures Focused on Care Coordination 

and Treatment for Chronic Conditions Prevalent among SCHC Patients. 

o Objectives: 
 Diabetes Management: A1c Testing and Control 
 Diabetes Management: Retinopathy screening 
 Diabetes Management: Kidney Care 
 Diabetes Management: Neuropathy 
 Cardiovascular Disease: Statin Therapy 
 HIV Care: Viral Suppression 

 
• Goal 8: Improve Performance on Select UDS and HEDIS Quality Measures Focused on Diagnosis 

and Treatment of Mental, Behavioral Health and Substance Use Related Conditions among SCHC 
Patients. 

o Objectives: 
 Depression Screening and Follow Up  
 Depression Response and Remission at 12-Months 

 
• Goal 9: Improve QI Support and Infrastructure. 

o Objective 9-1: Track Staff Effort and Financial Impact of QI Projects to Help Build the QI 
Program. 

o Objective 9-2: Develop OCHIN Standard Reporting Tools for Quality Performance. 
 Review and validate available measures within OCHIN for each patient experience, 

care coordination, and clinical quality metric. 
 Develop functional QI dashboards for the following areas: 

 Leadership/Administration 
 Adult Medicine, Family Medicine, Pediatrics, Integrated Behavioral 

Health, SCOE, Refugee  
 QI (Population Health), Care Management, Referrals 
 Front Desk, Registration, Call Center 
 Provider/Clinician 

 
• Goal 10: Address Racial and Ethnic Disparities Identified in Select UDS and HEDIS Quality 

Measures.                     

o Objective 10-1: Reduce Racial and Ethnic Health Disparities in The Control Of Diabetes and 
Hypertension. 



9 
 

o Objective 10-2: Reduce Racial and Ethnic Health Disparities in Access To Prenatal and 
Postpartum Care. 

o Objective 10-3: Reduce Racial and Ethnic Health Disparities in Complex Care Management. 
 Develop OCHIN dashboard reports that show racial and ethnic breakdowns for key 

performance measures. 
 Use the results to direct focus of quality improvement to health outcomes and groups 

with the greatest disparities and health burden.  
 Work with UC Davis experts on the effective measurement of health inequities and 

effective strategies to reduce them. 
 
 

Aim: Reducing Costs: Responsible management of funds to ensure economic sustainability of health 
center. 

Goal 1: Develop a Dashboard of Indicators to Monitor the Relative Costs and Revenues Associated with 
Specific Programs and Practices.  

o Objective 1: At Least Semi-Annually, Produce Calculations of the Number of Visits and Total 
Revenue per: 
 Clinical department/program (Adult Medicine, Behavioral Health Services, Dental Services, 

Family Medicine, Homeless Services, Mobile Services, Pediatrics, Refugee, School-Based 
Mental Health, Specialty Services)  

 Provider type 
 Provider FTE 
 Medium (i.e. video, phone, and in person appointments) 

Goal 2: Revise Provider Productivity Target and Optimal Patient Empanelment Numbers.  
 
 
Aim: Care Team Well-Being: Staff members understand and believe in their role and are supported to 
carry it out in a positive environment. 

Goal 1: Increase Recognition of the Quality of SCHC Services and Delivery Models. 

o Objective 1: Earn more HRSA Badges. 

o Objective 2: Prepare for Nationwide Accreditation for Patient-Centered Care Coordination (e.g., 
PCMH). 

 
Goal 2: Improve Morale and Retention of the Care Team. 

o Objective 1: Develop and Conduct Internal Personnel survey by July 2024. 

o Objective 2: Identify One to Three Areas for Action from the Personnel Survey Findings to Improve 
Care-Team Well-Being by December 2024.  

o Objective 3: Review Personnel Survey Findings and Institutional Policies and Practices to Determine 
if Changes Can Be Made to Improve Retention. 

 
Goal 3: Develop Structure for Multi-Level Staff Engagement and Communication.  

o Objective 1: Develop and/or Review Individual Position Duty Statements; Revise if needed. 



10 
 

o Objective 2: Develop Expectations for 1:1 Supervisory Meetings with Staff. 

o Objective 3: Schedule at least Quarterly Meetings for Supervisors and Managers to Meet with Staff 
to Promote Communication and Standardization.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
For several years, SCHC has been working on projects to address specific key measures. For 2024, we 
will continue working on increasing performance on key measures, with an additional concentrated focus 
on ensuring that Management has the tools needed, included OCHIN, to establish a culture of quality at 
the health center.    

1. The first category of projects is those that affect all or most clinical programs at SCHC and to 
which most programs can and should contribute. The clinical programs are Adult Medicine, 
Family Medicine, Integrated Behavioral Health, Pediatric Preventive Dental Services, Pediatrics, 
Radiology, Refugee Health Assessment, and School-Based Mental Health. 

2. The second category of projects is those that all or most clinical programs at SCHC and will be 
led by staff from clinical support programs. Administration, Quality Improvement, Registration, 
Member Services, and Referrals are examples of clinical support programs.   

3. The third category of projects is those that affect more than one clinical program area, but which 
will be led by a single clinical program. 

4. The fourth category of projects is those that are specific to and led by a single program area, 
whether clinical or non-clinical. 

When appropriate, projects will incorporate strategies to improve other related measures (e.g., W-30 
project will work on CIS and lead screening measures, and Diabetes A1c Control project will also work 
on kidney health and eye exam measures.) 

Additional projects may be proposed to or by the QIC as the need arises, such as not being on course to 
achieve the objectives (see previous section) or converting tracking objectives to targeted objectives. QI 
projects may be proposed to QIC using the standard form and process by any provider or program 
representative. QIC will evaluate proposals and incorporate approved projects into overall QI plan and 
schedule. 
 
Category 1A Projects: Clinic-Wide Projects that Impact all Programs. 

2024 Projects 
Review and validate patient OCHIN registries and key performance measures  
Design and develop OCHIN dashboards 
Design and develop OCHIN training standards.  
 Lead: OCHIN Steering Committee & QIC 
 
Category 1B Projects: Clinic-Wide Projects to Which Most Programs Contribute 

2023 Projects Continuing in 2024 
Reduce No Shows/Increase Provider Utilization 

Lead: QIC 

2024 QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FOCUSED ON PATIENT EXPERIENCE 
AND PATIENT HEALTH OUTCOMES  



11 
 

Category 2 Projects: Clinic-Wide Projects Led by Support Programs 

2023 Projects Continuing in 2024 
Increase New Patient Outreach and the Percentage Who Receive an Initial Health Assessment   
 Lead: Member Services  
 
Reduce Wait Times in the Call Center 
 Lead: Call Center 
 
Conduct Pre-Visit Planning to Eliminate Missed Opportunities for Health Maintenance 
 Lead: Registration 
 
Reduce Processing Time for Non-Urgent Referrals 

Lead: Referrals  
 
Increase the Number of Patients That Receive a Depression Screening and Follow Up 
 Lead: Integrated Behavioral Health Team 
 
Category 3 Projects: Affecting More than One Clinical Program Led by one Clinical Program 

2023 Projects Continuing in 2024 
Increase the Number of Patients That Receive a Cervical Cancer Screening 
 Lead: Family and Adult Medicine 
 
Increase the Number of Patients That Receive Follow Up After ED Visit or Hospitalization for Mental 
Health or Substance Use 
 Lead: Integrated Behavioral Health 
 
Increase Well-Child Visits 0-30 Months (including required immunizations) 
 Lead: Pediatrics 
 
Increase the Percentage of Diabetic Patients with Controlled Blood Sugar 
 Lead: Adult Medicine/Diabetes Team 
 
Increase the Number of Patients That Receive a Breast Cancer Screening 
 Lead: QI Team 
 
Increase the Number of Patients That Receive a Colorectal Cancer Screening  
 Lead: QI Team 
 
Category 4 Projects: Affecting a Single Clinical Program Led by that Clinical Program 

2023 Projects Continuing in 2024 
Increase the Number of Pregnant Patients That Receive a Prenatal Screening 
 Lead: Family Medicine and Adult Medicine 
 
Increase the Number of Post-Partum Patients That Receive a Post-Partum Visit 
 Lead: Family Medicine and QI Team 



03-01-01 

 
 County of Sacramento 

Department of Health Services 
Division of Primary Health 

Policy and Procedure 

Policy Issuer 
(Unit/Program) Clinic Services 

Policy Number 03-01 
Effective Date 09-30-10 

Revision Date 01-31-2402-08-
24 

Title: Telephone Protocol Functional Area: Clinic Operations 

Approved By: Andrew Mendonsa, Psy.D., MBA, Division Manager 

 

Policy: 
The Sacramento County Health Center is committed to excellent customer service by assisting 
individuals by phone promptly, respectfully, and sensitively.   
 
Procedures: 

A. General guidelines for staff assigned to phones 
1. Answer the phone in a professional and courteous manner and identify yourself. 

e.g., “Thank you for calling the Sacramento County Health Center. This is NAME. 
How may I help you today?” 

2. Update the patient contact information at every encounter (address, phone 
numbers, and emergency contact) in the Electronic Health Record (EHR).   

3. Verify eligibility while assisting the patient. 
4. Refer to Policy and Procedure 03-08 Appointment Scheduling if scheduling an 

appointment. 
5. If the caller is upset, respond in a calm, understanding, and professional manner. 

Request assistance from a colleague or supervisor as needed.   
6. Before placing a caller on hold, ask the caller “May I place you on a brief hold?” 

Allow the caller to respond before placing them on hold. 
7. For non-English speaking and hearing impaired callers, ask the caller to hold for an 

interpreter (refer to Interpretation Services Guide). Document primary language and 
the need for an interpreter in the EHR. 

a. From the main toolbar open the registration tab.  
b. Select the “Additional Pat Info” radio button on the left side. 
c. Document the patients language needs. e.g., Female Dari interpreter 

needed. 
B. Management and direction of calls: 

1. If the caller wants to make, change, or get information about an appointment, 
proceed with the call per PP 03-08 Appointment Scheduling.  

2. All other requests:    

Commented [A1]:  

Commented [A2R1]: Is there an opportunity somewhere to 
inform patients that MyChart is available in the future?  Do we have 
a tutorial to start using MyChart? 
 

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/SCHC%20Staff%20Resources/Eligibility%20Verification%20Instructions.pdf
http://inside.dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-03-08-Appt-Sched-07-29-16.docx


03-01-02 

a. Give the caller the correct departments phone number and other pertinent 
information, then transfer the call and provide a warm handoff. e.g., I have 
Patient Name on the line and he needs to… 

b. Let the caller know if they can use MyChart to address their concern or 
answer their question if they are a MyChart user. 
 

Department Phone Reason to Transfer Call 

Behavioral Health 
Clinician of the Day 
 

916-268-1931  
(916) 536-8340 
Urgent 
 
 

• Urgent: Suicide and homicide ideation 
(urgent) 
o Keep the caller on the line and have a 

colleague call the Behavioral Health 
Clinician for assistance 

(916) 875-0573 
Non-urgent 

• Request for a new patient appointment 
 

Family Medicine (916) 876-3342 • Make, change, and reschedule appointments 
Pediatric  (916) 876-5437 • Make, change, and reschedule appointments 
Pharmacy Fax  

(916) 854-9327 
• Do not transfer any calls to Pharmacy 
• Patient requesting refill prescriptions  

o Ask the patient if they have contacted 
their pharmacy. If not, have them call their 
pharmacy.  

o If the patient has already contacted their 
pharmacy and there has not been 
resolution, send Refill Medication 
Encounter to SA174 Pharmacy Resource 
Pool using the “.SA174REFILLREQUEST” 
template. Be specific with which pharmacy 
and which medications are being 
requested. Delete the rest.  
 If the patient is unable to name the 

medications, but can give other 
identifying information, such as what 
the medication is for, then add that 
information to the encounter instead 
of the medication name. 

 If a request is open for the same 
medication(s), then add an 
addendum to that request instead of 
starting a new one. 

 Inform patient that the request will 
be reviewed within 72 hours by the 
medical team.  

 Include the days’ supply remaining 
in the request. If request needs 
response within 48 hours or if this 
is the 3rd request for the same 
medication, mark as “High” 
priority. 

Refer to PP 05-01 Pharmacy Refill Procedure 

Commented [A3]: Discuss this with Clerical Supervisors to 
ensure that people are trained on this and we know what MyChart 
can and cannot do.  OK to approve policy - but note this for staff 
training. 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-05-01-Pharm-Refill-Procedure.docx


03-01-03 

and Refill Request Workflow for full procedures. 
• Patient requesting prescriptions to be 

sent to another pharmacy  
o Inform the patient to contact the 

preferred pharmacy and have them 
request a transfer from the original 
pharmacy. 

o Inform the patient that if it is a 
controlled medication that not all 
controlled medications can be 
transferred. 

o Send a Telephone Encounter to the 
Primary Care Provider using the 
“.SA174 TransferRx” template. 

• Calls from an outside pharmacy 
o Ask the pharmacy to fax a request 

to 916-854-9327.  
o If the pharmacy is not able to fax or 

is not receiving a response to their 
fax, initiate a Telephone Encounter 
using the “.SA174 PharmCall” 
Template. 
 Gather the information in the 

template: name of pharmacy, 
name of pharmacist, call back 
number, and fax number. 

 Determine what the pharmacy is 
requesting and list the specific 
medication(s) next to the category 
of the request. 

 If there are faxing instructions for 
the category, relay the information 
to the caller. 

 Delete the other categories, so that 
only the applicable one is showing. 

 Route the encounter to SA174 
Pharmacy Resource Pool for all 
categories, except route to 
provider’s MA for ICD-10 calls. 

 

Referrals Team 
 

(916) 874-9334 • Referral questions 
• Any calls with referral and specialist questions  
• Healthy Partners (HP) Diagnostic Questions 

Registered Nurse  

  Adult Medicine  
 

Send Telephone 
Encounter To:  
AM Advice/Triage 
MyChart RN Pool   

• Callers report an urgent medical problem  
• Medical questions 
• Medication reaction 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Complex Script Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Space Before:  1 pt

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: After:  0"



03-01-04 

  Family Medicine   Send Telephone 
Encounter To: 
FM Advice/Triage 

• Patient requesting an urgent appointment, and 
no appts. are available within 48 hours  

• Providers & other professionals 
• Hospital discharge and no available 

appointments within 10 days 
• Quest (or other professional) calling with critical 

labs 

  Pediatrics  Send Telephone 
Encounter To: 
Peds Advice/Triage 

Other Requests  Send a telephone encounter for  
• Checking on forms/letters 
• Medical question regarding visits 
• Lab results   
• Checking on will-call and forms/letters that can’t 

be located  
• Patient requesting sooner (not urgent) appt. 
• Non-medical questions or concerns 

Department Routing Guide  
Medical Records Request (916) 874-9298 
Member Services Team/Healthy Partners (916) 874-1805 
Refugee Health Assessment Program  (916) 874-9227 
Pediatric Clinic (916) 876-5437 
Radiology Appointment or Questions  (916) 874-9522 
Employment Verification for DHS Staff  DHS, Human Resources (916) 875-1300 
Department of Human Assistance  800-560-0976 

 
C. Creating and sending a telephone encounter message from the callers EHR:  

1. Messages must be professionally written, accurate, complete, and prompt. Slang is 
unacceptable. 

2. If a patient indicates an urgent medical problem send a telephone encounter to the 
triage nurse pool for the department (AM Advice/Triage; FM Advice/Triage; Peds 
Advice/Triage).  

3. For non-Medical issues that patient self identifies as urgent or time sensitive ( within 
72 hours), send a telephone encounter and flag message as high priority.    

4. Review “Patient Encounter Selection” if there is a recent encounter regarding the 
same issue. Select the encounter. Edit the note per the patient’s request. Save and 
route the encounter.  

If the patient calls with a new concern, request, or question:   
a. Click “New Encounter” to create a telephone encounter. 
b. Select the date  
c. Enter the PCP  
d. Click accept (this action will open a new encounter) 
e. Complete the following section:  

i. Contact Section: Incoming call, outgoing, other   
ii. Reason for call (select from the drop-down menu) 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Complex Script Font: 11 pt, Bold

Formatted: Normal, Space Before:  1 pt

Formatted Table

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Complex Script Font: 11 pt

Formatted: After:  0"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Complex Script Font:
Arial, 11 pt, Bold

Formatted Table

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight



03-01-05 

iii. Routing (see the department Message Routing Guide)  
iv. My Note: type the message per the caller’s request  
v. On the left side, “Close the Workspace”  
vi. Select “Accept” below the note to save the information    

5. The designated medical staff will respond or consult the provider and respond to the 
message within two working days.  

6. Per provider directive, the designated medical staff (medical assistant, registered 
nurse, or pharmacist) will contact the caller and document the action taken utilizing 
the same encounter.  

a. The designated staff can edit the note to document what actions were 
taken or they can create a new note in the same encounter.  

b. To save the documentation, click the radio buttons,“Close the Workspace” 
and “Accept.”    

 
References: 
Interpreter Services Guide 
02-02 Interpreter for Patient Care 
03-08 Appointment Scheduling 
04-01 Urgent Services 
05-01 Pharmacy Refill Procedure  
Call Center Call Routing – Primary Care Workflow 
How to Verify Eligibility 
 
Contact: Health Program Manager for Operations  
 
Co-Applicant Board Approval:  
Date 
 
 

Formatted: Hyperlink, Font: (Default) Arial, Complex Script
Font: Arial

Formatted: Hyperlink, Font: (Default) Arial, Complex Script
Font: Arial

Formatted: Hyperlink, Font: (Default) Arial, Complex Script
Font: Arial

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinics/Clinics%20Forms/Posted%20Forms/Interpreter%20Services%20Guide%2003-01-17.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-02-02-Interpreter-for-Patient-Care-03-01-17.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-03-08-Appt-Sched-07-29-16.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-04-01-Urgent-Services-07-28-16.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-05-01-Pharm-Refill-Procedure.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/OCHIN/Workflows/Registration%20Workflows/Call%20Center%20Call%20Routing%20-%20Primary%20Care.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/SCHC%20Staff%20Resources/Eligibility%20Verification%20Instructions.pdf


03-01-01 

 
 County of Sacramento 

Department of Health Services 
Division of Primary Health 

Policy and Procedure 

Policy Issuer 
(Unit/Program) Clinic Services 

Policy Number 03-01 
Effective Date 09-30-10 

Revision Date 01-31-2402-08-
24 

Title: Telephone Protocol Functional Area: Clinic Operations 

Approved By: Andrew Mendonsa, Psy.D., MBA, Division Manager 

 

Policy: 
The Sacramento County Health Center is committed to excellent customer service by assisting 
individuals by phone promptly, respectfully, and sensitively.   
 
Procedures: 

A. General guidelines for staff assigned to phones 
1. Answer the phone in a professional and courteous manner and identify yourself. 

e.g., “Thank you for calling the Sacramento County Health Center. This is NAME. 
How may I help you today?” 

2. Update the patient contact information at every encounter (address, phone 
numbers, and emergency contact) in the Electronic Health Record (EHR).   

3. Verify eligibility while assisting the patient. 
4. Refer to Policy and Procedure 03-08 Appointment Scheduling if scheduling an 

appointment. 
5. If the caller is upset, respond in a calm, understanding, and professional manner. 

Request assistance from a colleague or supervisor as needed.   
6. Before placing a caller on hold, ask the caller “May I place you on a brief hold?” 

Allow the caller to respond before placing them on hold. 
7. For non-English speaking and hearing impaired callers, ask the caller to hold for an 

interpreter (refer to Interpretation Services Guide). Document primary language and 
the need for an interpreter in the EHR. 

a. From the main toolbar open the registration tab.  
b. Select the “Additional Pat Info” radio button on the left side. 
c. Document the patients language needs. e.g., Female Dari interpreter 

needed. 
B. Management and direction of calls: 

1. If the caller wants to make, change, or get information about an appointment, 
proceed with the call per PP 03-08 Appointment Scheduling.  

2. All other requests:    

Commented [A1]:  

Commented [A2R1]: Is there an opportunity somewhere to 
inform patients that MyChart is available in the future?  Do we have 
a tutorial to start using MyChart? 
 

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/SCHC%20Staff%20Resources/Eligibility%20Verification%20Instructions.pdf
http://inside.dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-03-08-Appt-Sched-07-29-16.docx


03-01-02 

a. Give the caller the correct departments phone number and other pertinent 
information, then transfer the call and provide a warm handoff. e.g., I have 
Patient Name on the line and he needs to… 

b. Let the caller know if they can use MyChart to address their concern or 
answer their question if they are a MyChart user. 
 

Department Phone Reason to Transfer Call 

Behavioral Health 
Clinician of the Day 
 

916-268-1931  
(916) 536-8340 
Urgent 
 
 

• Urgent: Suicide and homicide ideation 
(urgent) 
o Keep the caller on the line and have a 

colleague call the Behavioral Health 
Clinician for assistance 

(916) 875-0573 
Non-urgent 

• Request for a new patient appointment 
 

Family Medicine (916) 876-3342 • Make, change, and reschedule appointments 
Pediatric  (916) 876-5437 • Make, change, and reschedule appointments 
Pharmacy Fax  

(916) 854-9327 
• Do not transfer any calls to Pharmacy 
• Patient requesting refill prescriptions  

o Ask the patient if they have contacted 
their pharmacy. If not, have them call their 
pharmacy.  

o If the patient has already contacted their 
pharmacy and there has not been 
resolution, send Refill Medication 
Encounter to SA174 Pharmacy Resource 
Pool using the “.SA174REFILLREQUEST” 
template. Be specific with which pharmacy 
and which medications are being 
requested. Delete the rest.  
 If the patient is unable to name the 

medications, but can give other 
identifying information, such as what 
the medication is for, then add that 
information to the encounter instead 
of the medication name. 

 If a request is open for the same 
medication(s), then add an 
addendum to that request instead of 
starting a new one. 

 Inform patient that the request will 
be reviewed within 72 hours by the 
medical team.  

 Include the days’ supply remaining 
in the request. If request needs 
response within 48 hours or if this 
is the 3rd request for the same 
medication, mark as “High” 
priority. 

Refer to PP 05-01 Pharmacy Refill Procedure 

Commented [A3]: Discuss this with Clerical Supervisors to 
ensure that people are trained on this and we know what MyChart 
can and cannot do.  OK to approve policy - but note this for staff 
training. 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-05-01-Pharm-Refill-Procedure.docx


03-01-03 

and Refill Request Workflow for full procedures. 
• Patient requesting prescriptions to be 

sent to another pharmacy  
o Inform the patient to contact the 

preferred pharmacy and have them 
request a transfer from the original 
pharmacy. 

o Inform the patient that if it is a 
controlled medication that not all 
controlled medications can be 
transferred. 

o Send a Telephone Encounter to the 
Primary Care Provider using the 
“.SA174 TransferRx” template. 

• Calls from an outside pharmacy 
o Ask the pharmacy to fax a request 

to 916-854-9327.  
o If the pharmacy is not able to fax or 

is not receiving a response to their 
fax, initiate a Telephone Encounter 
using the “.SA174 PharmCall” 
Template. 
 Gather the information in the 

template: name of pharmacy, 
name of pharmacist, call back 
number, and fax number. 

 Determine what the pharmacy is 
requesting and list the specific 
medication(s) next to the category 
of the request. 

 If there are faxing instructions for 
the category, relay the information 
to the caller. 

 Delete the other categories, so that 
only the applicable one is showing. 

 Route the encounter to SA174 
Pharmacy Resource Pool for all 
categories, except route to 
provider’s MA for ICD-10 calls. 

 

Referrals Team 
 

(916) 874-9334 • Referral questions 
• Any calls with referral and specialist questions  
• Healthy Partners (HP) Diagnostic Questions 

Registered Nurse  

  Adult Medicine  
 

Send Telephone 
Encounter To:  
AM Advice/Triage 
MyChart RN Pool   

• Callers report an urgent medical problem  
• Medical questions 
• Medication reaction 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Complex Script Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Space Before:  1 pt

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: After:  0"



03-01-04 

  Family Medicine   Send Telephone 
Encounter To: 
FM Advice/Triage 

• Patient requesting an urgent appointment, and 
no appts. are available within 48 hours  

• Providers & other professionals 
• Hospital discharge and no available 

appointments within 10 days 
• Quest (or other professional) calling with critical 

labs 

  Pediatrics  Send Telephone 
Encounter To: 
Peds Advice/Triage 

Other Requests  Send a telephone encounter for  
• Checking on forms/letters 
• Medical question regarding visits 
• Lab results   
• Checking on will-call and forms/letters that can’t 

be located  
• Patient requesting sooner (not urgent) appt. 
• Non-medical questions or concerns 

Department Routing Guide  
Medical Records Request (916) 874-9298 
Member Services Team/Healthy Partners (916) 874-1805 
Refugee Health Assessment Program  (916) 874-9227 
Pediatric Clinic (916) 876-5437 
Radiology Appointment or Questions  (916) 874-9522 
Employment Verification for DHS Staff  DHS, Human Resources (916) 875-1300 
Department of Human Assistance  800-560-0976 

 
C. Creating and sending a telephone encounter message from the callers EHR:  

1. Messages must be professionally written, accurate, complete, and prompt. Slang is 
unacceptable. 

2. If a patient indicates an urgent medical problem send a telephone encounter to the 
triage nurse pool for the department (AM Advice/Triage; FM Advice/Triage; Peds 
Advice/Triage).  

3. For non-Medical issues that patient self identifies as urgent or time sensitive ( within 
72 hours), send a telephone encounter and flag message as high priority.    

4. Review “Patient Encounter Selection” if there is a recent encounter regarding the 
same issue. Select the encounter. Edit the note per the patient’s request. Save and 
route the encounter.  

If the patient calls with a new concern, request, or question:   
a. Click “New Encounter” to create a telephone encounter. 
b. Select the date  
c. Enter the PCP  
d. Click accept (this action will open a new encounter) 
e. Complete the following section:  

i. Contact Section: Incoming call, outgoing, other   
ii. Reason for call (select from the drop-down menu) 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Complex Script Font: 11 pt, Bold

Formatted: Normal, Space Before:  1 pt

Formatted Table

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Complex Script Font: 11 pt

Formatted: After:  0"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Complex Script Font:
Arial, 11 pt, Bold

Formatted Table

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight



03-01-05 

iii. Routing (see the department Message Routing Guide)  
iv. My Note: type the message per the caller’s request  
v. On the left side, “Close the Workspace”  
vi. Select “Accept” below the note to save the information    

5. The designated medical staff will respond or consult the provider and respond to the 
message within two working days.  

6. Per provider directive, the designated medical staff (medical assistant, registered 
nurse, or pharmacist) will contact the caller and document the action taken utilizing 
the same encounter.  

a. The designated staff can edit the note to document what actions were 
taken or they can create a new note in the same encounter.  

b. To save the documentation, click the radio buttons,“Close the Workspace” 
and “Accept.”    

 
References: 
Interpreter Services Guide 
02-02 Interpreter for Patient Care 
03-08 Appointment Scheduling 
04-01 Urgent Services 
05-01 Pharmacy Refill Procedure  
Call Center Call Routing – Primary Care Workflow 
How to Verify Eligibility 
 
Contact: Health Program Manager for Operations  
 
Co-Applicant Board Approval:  
Date 
 
 

Formatted: Hyperlink, Font: (Default) Arial, Complex Script
Font: Arial

Formatted: Hyperlink, Font: (Default) Arial, Complex Script
Font: Arial

Formatted: Hyperlink, Font: (Default) Arial, Complex Script
Font: Arial

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinics/Clinics%20Forms/Posted%20Forms/Interpreter%20Services%20Guide%2003-01-17.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-02-02-Interpreter-for-Patient-Care-03-01-17.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-03-08-Appt-Sched-07-29-16.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-04-01-Urgent-Services-07-28-16.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-05-01-Pharm-Refill-Procedure.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/OCHIN/Workflows/Registration%20Workflows/Call%20Center%20Call%20Routing%20-%20Primary%20Care.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/SCHC%20Staff%20Resources/Eligibility%20Verification%20Instructions.pdf


04-12-1  

 
County of Sacramento 

Department of Health Services 
Division of Primary Health 

Policy and Procedure 

Policy Issuer 
(Unit/Program) Clinic Services 
Policy Number 04-12 
Effective Date 05-07-15 

Revision Date 06-19-20021-
0180-24 

Title: Patient Satisfaction Survey Functional Area: Clinic Services 
Approved By: Sharon Hutchins, Health Program Manager 

 
 
Policy: 
Sacramento County Health Center (SCHC) Sacramento County Health Center (SCHC) Clinic 
Services has a standardized approach to obtain and review information about a patient’s overall 
satisfaction and perceived quality of care. Surveys are used for self- assessment and as part of 
the periodic assessment of the quality of service provided by the Health CenterSCHC in 
compliance withwith the Health Resources & Services Administration (HRSA) quality 
improvement/ assurance requirements. 

Procedures: 
A. Survey Tool 

1. SCHC surveys its patients receiving three types of services 
a. Primary care medical services 
b. Preventive dental services 
c. Integrated behavioral health services 

1.2.  A validated survey tool is used to be able to compare SCHC’s results to those of 
similar clinics regarding performance on the followingto assess the following key 
topics for all three types of services: 
a. Access to care 
b. Customer service 
c. Facility condition 
d. Clinical care received 
e. Overall visit experience 

2.3. The survey is offered in English and Spanish to ensure ease of completion. 
Additional languages may be considered are not offered by the vendor, h. However, 
the survey can be sight translated by staff for patients who accept this help (see 
Section D below). 

3.4. The survey is on a two-sided scantron form that is ordered through the 
vendor. Scantron forms are machine-readable, multiple-choice answer sheets. 

B. Survey Period 
a.1. A survey periodThe survey is distributed  is completed every six months,  

(usually in May and October, barring unusual events like a Public Health 
Emergency). 

b.2. A survey period is to be two full weeks an entire month. Do not select a two 

Commented [R1]: Can it be electronic? 

Commented [ag2]: How many questions is the 
survey? 
 

Commented [SH3]: Discussion about using the current 
vendor, a new vendor, or 
creating/administering/analyzing surveys at SCHC.  
CAB will need to decide.  

Formatted: Indent: Before:  0.69", Numbered + Level: 1
+ Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at:  0.58" + Indent at:  0.83"



04-12-2  

week period that includes a site closure (i.e. holidays). 
C. Preparation 

1. Prior to the survey period, the Clerical SupervisorCompliance Officer or designee 
shall: 
a. Notify all Health CenterSCHC staff of the upcoming survey period. 
b. Send the vendor an updated list of payoer types and providers. 
c.b. Order a sufficient number of surveys in( English and Spanish) from the vendor 

and send the vendor an updated list of payor types, sites, and service codes. 
SCHC does not collect individual provider-level data. . 

c. Distribute surveys to the designated site coordinator for each site as designated 
by the Compliance Officer. 

d. The site coordinator will: 
i. Set up locked collection boxes in each clinic site marked “Completed 

Patient Surveys.”. 
ii. Prepare sufficient boxes of #2 pencils for patient use. 
iii. Ensure hard surfaces, (table, or clipboards) are available for patients 

to complete fill out the survey. 
iv. Review the scantron completion instructions and approved survey script 

with all registration staff. 
2. Send the surveys allto the registration staff in at all the SCHCHealth Center (all sites 

at which the three services are provided (See section A1)). 
 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: i,
ii, iii, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Right + Aligned at: 
1.45" + Indent at:  1.7"

Commented [ag4]: Boxes are often empty 
 
Not enough clipboards.  The only table downstairs has 
a tablecloth on it so the pencil goes through the paper. 



04-12-3  

e. Set up locked collection boxes in each clinic with an opening 
marked “Completed Patient Surveys”. 

f. Prepare two boxes of #2 pencils for patient use. 
g. Ensure hard surfaces (table or clipboards) are available for patients to fill 

out the survey. 
h. Review the scantron completion instructions and approved script 

with all registration staff. 
I.D. Administering the Survey 

1. Registration staff shall: 
a. Write and bubble in the site location and provider numberservice type code 

at the top right side of the survey with a #2 pencil or black or blue pen. Do 
not use pens with ink that soaks through the paper such as a(i.e. Sharpie). 

b. Ask the patient if s/hethey needs help in completing the survey. Provide 
Aassistance as needed, especially to thosepatients with visual impairment,  or 
literacy challenges, or who speak a language other than English or Spanish as 
needed (refer to Policy 02-02 or ask your supervisor how to do so).. 

c. Provide each patient with a survey and a #2 pencil during patient registration 
and encourage them to complete and submit the survey immediately 
following their service. 

d. Provide the following instructions/information to each patient or 
patient/guardian/parent of a patient: 
1. Please complete the survey to help us improve the quality of our services. 
1.2. Use the provided #2 pencil. Black or blue ink pens are also 

acceptable. Colored pencils, pens, or markers of any kind will not work. 
2.3. Fill in the circles completely. Do not make a check mark or line 

through your choice. Make Do not make any no stray marks on the 
form. 

4. Do not fold or bend the form.  
3.5. Place the completed form into the locked survey box. 
4.6. Completion of the survey is voluntary and will not affect the care you 

receive in our clinic. 
7. The survey is anonymousanonymous, and all responses will be kept 

confidential.  
5.1. Please complete the survey to help us improve the quality of our 

services. 
2. The Clerical Supervisor (Adult Medicine, Family Medicine, Pediatrics) Senior Health 

Program Coordinator (for school sitesSCOE) or Supervising RN (for mobile van and 
Loaves & Fishes) for the program area will designate a specific staff member (e.g.,.d 
an Office Assistant or Public Health AssistantHA) daily to assist with translation by a 
vendor via video.  

2.3. Patients who choose not to complete the surveys are not to be treated differently 
fromly than patients who choose to do so. 

Formatted: Highlight



04-12-4  

3.4. A collection box is available in each clinic lobbyhealth centerSCHC site,   (Suite 
1100, 2100, 2200, 2600, school-based sites, mobile van, and SCHC SCHC Loaves 
& Fishes site,) in a high visibility location on the exit route for patients. 

4.5. If a staff member receives a survey from a patient, s/he should place the survey 
in a collection box immediately, without reading the contents. 

J.E. Data Collection 
1. The Clerical Supervisorsite designee collects completed Patient Satisfactions 

Surveys periodically throughout the sampling period and reviews them for 
completion errors. 



04-12-5  

a.  
a.b. If a surveys is not completed correctly,  are incorrectly filled out by staff or 

by patients, the Clerical Supervisor site coordinator will reviewsgo over the 
scantron completion instructions and approved script with all registration staff 
again. 

2. The Clerical SupervisorEach site coordinator submits completedsends submitted 
surveys to the designated Senior Office Assistant (SOA) for Quality Improvement 
and Compliance. 

3. The designated Senior Office AssistantSOA shall: 
a. Review all completed submitted surveys to ensure the site location 

and service type code provider number is written and bubbled in. 
b. Contact the vendor prior to sending in completed submitted surveys to 

provide additional data separation instructions as needed (i.e. separate 
“Uninsured” comments from “Medi-Ccal” comments). 

c. Mail all completed submitted surveys to the vendor for scanning. All 
sSurveys are to be packed in a the same box and shipped with a 
tracking number. 

d. Draft reports for review once results are received from vendor. 
e. Send the completed reports to the Health Program Manager for review with 

the Deputy Director for Quality and Compliance. 
K.F. Review and Recommendations: 

1. There arSe several bodies that review the survey reports once completed . This 
includinges the Health Center Management Team, the Quality Improvement 
Committee (QIC), and the treatment teams. Each group may recommend actions 
based on the findings or trends. 

2. If actions are indicated, the Health Center Management Team will document actions, 
resolution, and provide feedback to the QIC. 

3. The reports will be shared at the Co-Applicant Board (CAB) mMeeting during staff 
report. Modifications in service delivery and operations may be implemented based 
on data trends and CAB recommendations and requests. 

 
 
 
References: 
 
N/A 
Attachments: 
Attachment A: Patient Satisfaction Survey - Staff Script 

Contact: 
 
Sandra Johnson, Senior Public Health Program CoordinatorHealth Program Manager for Quality 
and Compliance 

 
Co-Applicant Board Approval Date:  

Commented [ag5]: Agree with Sharon 

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Attachments/Patient%20Satisfaction%20Survey%20Staff%20Script.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Attachments/Patient%20Satisfaction%20Survey%20Staff%20Script.pdf


04-12-6  

06/19/2020 
  



04-12-7  

Appendix A: Patient Satisfaction Survey 
Staff Script 

 
Note: If the patient speaks a language other thandoes not read English or Spanish, an 
interpreter will be needed to administer the survey.  For patients who have visual 
impairment, a staff member will need to read the survey to the patient.  

 

“We want to know how you feel about the care you get at our health center. We invite you to 
complete this feedback survey and then return it to one of the locked boxes marked Completed 
Patient Surveys. Completion of the survey is voluntary and anonymous. Your feedback will help us 
improve the quality of our services.” 

 

“Are you interested in providing feedback to us today?” 

If the patient answers no,  

“We understand that your time is valuable.  Perhaps another time.” 

 

If the patient answers yes,  

 “Would you like to fill out the written version of the survey yourself?  If not, we 
would be happy to help you complete the survey once your appointment is over.”  

   

Patient wishes to complete the survey on their own,  

Hand them the survey form and a #2 pencil. 

“You may start the survey as soon as you get it and complete it oOnce your 
appointment is finished,. Pplease read the survey and fill in the circles for 
your answer choices completely with the provided pencil. Please do not 
make a line through your answer choice.  Fill in the entire bubble.  You may 
start the survey ahead o 

Please do not fold or bend the form.  When you are done, please put the 
finished survey in the locked box marked Completed Patient Surveys” [add 
location information]  and put the pencil in the Used Pencils jar.” 

  

Patient would like help to complete the survey, 

We would be happy to help.  Once your appointment is finished, please let 
your Medical Assistant know that you would like help in filling out the survey 
and a staff member will come assist you.” Staff will offer to help patient 
submit the survey when it is completed. 

Patient Satisfaction Survey Registration Staff Script 
 
We want to know how you feel about the care you get at our health center. Please take a few 
minutes to complete this survey and then return it to one of the locked boxes marked “Completed 
Patient Surveys.”  

Commented [ag6]: Or provide a  reader for the blind 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Commented [ag7]: We often have long waits, so 
patients can do the survey at any point. 

Commented [ag8]: Mention where it is 

Formatted: Highlight



04-12-8  

 

Please fill in the circles completely with the provided pencil. Please do not make a line through 
your choice or fold or bend the form. Completion of the survey is voluntary and anonymous. Your 
feedback will help us improve the quality of our services. 

 



04-12-1  

 
County of Sacramento 

Department of Health Services 
Division of Primary Health 

Policy and Procedure 

Policy Issuer 
(Unit/Program) Clinic Services 
Policy Number 04-12 
Effective Date 05-07-15 

Revision Date 06-19-20021-
0180-24 

Title: Patient Satisfaction Survey Functional Area: Clinic Services 
Approved By: Sharon Hutchins, Health Program Manager 

 
 
Policy: 
Sacramento County Health Center (SCHC) Sacramento County Health Center (SCHC) Clinic 
Services has a standardized approach to obtain and review information about a patient’s overall 
satisfaction and perceived quality of care. Surveys are used for self- assessment and as part of 
the periodic assessment of the quality of service provided by the Health CenterSCHC in 
compliance withwith the Health Resources & Services Administration (HRSA) quality 
improvement/ assurance requirements. 

Procedures: 
A. Survey Tool 

1. SCHC surveys its patients receiving three types of services 
a. Primary care medical services 
b. Preventive dental services 
c. Integrated behavioral health services 

1.2.  A validated survey tool is used to be able to compare SCHC’s results to those of 
similar clinics regarding performance on the followingto assess the following key 
topics for all three types of services: 
a. Access to care 
b. Customer service 
c. Facility condition 
d. Clinical care received 
e. Overall visit experience 

2.3. The survey is offered in English and Spanish to ensure ease of completion. 
Additional languages may be considered are not offered by the vendor, h. However, 
the survey can be sight translated by staff for patients who accept this help (see 
Section D below). 

3.4. The survey is on a two-sided scantron form that is ordered through the 
vendor. Scantron forms are machine-readable, multiple-choice answer sheets. 

B. Survey Period 
a.1. A survey periodThe survey is distributed  is completed every six months,  

(usually in May and October, barring unusual events like a Public Health 
Emergency). 

b.2. A survey period is to be two full weeks an entire month. Do not select a two 

Commented [R1]: Can it be electronic? 

Commented [ag2]: How many questions is the 
survey? 
 

Commented [SH3]: Discussion about using the current 
vendor, a new vendor, or 
creating/administering/analyzing surveys at SCHC.  
CAB will need to decide.  

Formatted: Indent: Before:  0.69", Numbered + Level: 1
+ Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at:  0.58" + Indent at:  0.83"



04-12-2  

week period that includes a site closure (i.e. holidays). 
C. Preparation 

1. Prior to the survey period, the Clerical SupervisorCompliance Officer or designee 
shall: 
a. Notify all Health CenterSCHC staff of the upcoming survey period. 
b. Send the vendor an updated list of payoer types and providers. 
c.b. Order a sufficient number of surveys in( English and Spanish) from the vendor 

and send the vendor an updated list of payor types, sites, and service codes. 
SCHC does not collect individual provider-level data. . 

c. Distribute surveys to the designated site coordinator for each site as designated 
by the Compliance Officer. 

d. The site coordinator will: 
i. Set up locked collection boxes in each clinic site marked “Completed 

Patient Surveys.”. 
ii. Prepare sufficient boxes of #2 pencils for patient use. 
iii. Ensure hard surfaces, (table, or clipboards) are available for patients 

to complete fill out the survey. 
iv. Review the scantron completion instructions and approved survey script 

with all registration staff. 
2. Send the surveys allto the registration staff in at all the SCHCHealth Center (all sites 

at which the three services are provided (See section A1)). 
 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: i,
ii, iii, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Right + Aligned at: 
1.45" + Indent at:  1.7"

Commented [ag4]: Boxes are often empty 
 
Not enough clipboards.  The only table downstairs has 
a tablecloth on it so the pencil goes through the paper. 



04-12-3  

e. Set up locked collection boxes in each clinic with an opening 
marked “Completed Patient Surveys”. 

f. Prepare two boxes of #2 pencils for patient use. 
g. Ensure hard surfaces (table or clipboards) are available for patients to fill 

out the survey. 
h. Review the scantron completion instructions and approved script 

with all registration staff. 
I.D. Administering the Survey 

1. Registration staff shall: 
a. Write and bubble in the site location and provider numberservice type code 

at the top right side of the survey with a #2 pencil or black or blue pen. Do 
not use pens with ink that soaks through the paper such as a(i.e. Sharpie). 

b. Ask the patient if s/hethey needs help in completing the survey. Provide 
Aassistance as needed, especially to thosepatients with visual impairment,  or 
literacy challenges, or who speak a language other than English or Spanish as 
needed (refer to Policy 02-02 or ask your supervisor how to do so).. 

c. Provide each patient with a survey and a #2 pencil during patient registration 
and encourage them to complete and submit the survey immediately 
following their service. 

d. Provide the following instructions/information to each patient or 
patient/guardian/parent of a patient: 
1. Please complete the survey to help us improve the quality of our services. 
1.2. Use the provided #2 pencil. Black or blue ink pens are also 

acceptable. Colored pencils, pens, or markers of any kind will not work. 
2.3. Fill in the circles completely. Do not make a check mark or line 

through your choice. Make Do not make any no stray marks on the 
form. 

4. Do not fold or bend the form.  
3.5. Place the completed form into the locked survey box. 
4.6. Completion of the survey is voluntary and will not affect the care you 

receive in our clinic. 
7. The survey is anonymousanonymous, and all responses will be kept 

confidential.  
5.1. Please complete the survey to help us improve the quality of our 

services. 
2. The Clerical Supervisor (Adult Medicine, Family Medicine, Pediatrics) Senior Health 

Program Coordinator (for school sitesSCOE) or Supervising RN (for mobile van and 
Loaves & Fishes) for the program area will designate a specific staff member (e.g.,.d 
an Office Assistant or Public Health AssistantHA) daily to assist with translation by a 
vendor via video.  

2.3. Patients who choose not to complete the surveys are not to be treated differently 
fromly than patients who choose to do so. 

Formatted: Highlight



04-12-4  

3.4. A collection box is available in each clinic lobbyhealth centerSCHC site,   (Suite 
1100, 2100, 2200, 2600, school-based sites, mobile van, and SCHC SCHC Loaves 
& Fishes site,) in a high visibility location on the exit route for patients. 

4.5. If a staff member receives a survey from a patient, s/he should place the survey 
in a collection box immediately, without reading the contents. 

J.E. Data Collection 
1. The Clerical Supervisorsite designee collects completed Patient Satisfactions 

Surveys periodically throughout the sampling period and reviews them for 
completion errors. 



04-12-5  

a.  
a.b. If a surveys is not completed correctly,  are incorrectly filled out by staff or 

by patients, the Clerical Supervisor site coordinator will reviewsgo over the 
scantron completion instructions and approved script with all registration staff 
again. 

2. The Clerical SupervisorEach site coordinator submits completedsends submitted 
surveys to the designated Senior Office Assistant (SOA) for Quality Improvement 
and Compliance. 

3. The designated Senior Office AssistantSOA shall: 
a. Review all completed submitted surveys to ensure the site location 

and service type code provider number is written and bubbled in. 
b. Contact the vendor prior to sending in completed submitted surveys to 

provide additional data separation instructions as needed (i.e. separate 
“Uninsured” comments from “Medi-Ccal” comments). 

c. Mail all completed submitted surveys to the vendor for scanning. All 
sSurveys are to be packed in a the same box and shipped with a 
tracking number. 

d. Draft reports for review once results are received from vendor. 
e. Send the completed reports to the Health Program Manager for review with 

the Deputy Director for Quality and Compliance. 
K.F. Review and Recommendations: 

1. There arSe several bodies that review the survey reports once completed . This 
includinges the Health Center Management Team, the Quality Improvement 
Committee (QIC), and the treatment teams. Each group may recommend actions 
based on the findings or trends. 

2. If actions are indicated, the Health Center Management Team will document actions, 
resolution, and provide feedback to the QIC. 

3. The reports will be shared at the Co-Applicant Board (CAB) mMeeting during staff 
report. Modifications in service delivery and operations may be implemented based 
on data trends and CAB recommendations and requests. 

 
 
 
References: 
 
N/A 
Attachments: 
Attachment A: Patient Satisfaction Survey - Staff Script 

Contact: 
 
Sandra Johnson, Senior Public Health Program CoordinatorHealth Program Manager for Quality 
and Compliance 

 
Co-Applicant Board Approval Date:  

Commented [ag5]: Agree with Sharon 

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Attachments/Patient%20Satisfaction%20Survey%20Staff%20Script.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Attachments/Patient%20Satisfaction%20Survey%20Staff%20Script.pdf


04-12-6  

06/19/2020 
  



04-12-7  

Appendix A: Patient Satisfaction Survey 
Staff Script 

 
Note: If the patient speaks a language other thandoes not read English or Spanish, an 
interpreter will be needed to administer the survey.  For patients who have visual 
impairment, a staff member will need to read the survey to the patient.  

 

“We want to know how you feel about the care you get at our health center. We invite you to 
complete this feedback survey and then return it to one of the locked boxes marked Completed 
Patient Surveys. Completion of the survey is voluntary and anonymous. Your feedback will help us 
improve the quality of our services.” 

 

“Are you interested in providing feedback to us today?” 

If the patient answers no,  

“We understand that your time is valuable.  Perhaps another time.” 

 

If the patient answers yes,  

 “Would you like to fill out the written version of the survey yourself?  If not, we 
would be happy to help you complete the survey once your appointment is over.”  

   

Patient wishes to complete the survey on their own,  

Hand them the survey form and a #2 pencil. 

“You may start the survey as soon as you get it and complete it oOnce your 
appointment is finished,. Pplease read the survey and fill in the circles for 
your answer choices completely with the provided pencil. Please do not 
make a line through your answer choice.  Fill in the entire bubble.  You may 
start the survey ahead o 

Please do not fold or bend the form.  When you are done, please put the 
finished survey in the locked box marked Completed Patient Surveys” [add 
location information]  and put the pencil in the Used Pencils jar.” 

  

Patient would like help to complete the survey, 

We would be happy to help.  Once your appointment is finished, please let 
your Medical Assistant know that you would like help in filling out the survey 
and a staff member will come assist you.” 

Patient Satisfaction Survey Registration Staff Script 
 
We want to know how you feel about the care you get at our health center. Please take a few 
minutes to complete this survey and then return it to one of the locked boxes marked “Completed 
Patient Surveys.”  

Commented [ag6]: Or provide a  reader for the blind 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Commented [ag7]: We often have long waits, so 
patients can do the survey at any point. 

Commented [ag8]: Mention where it is 

Formatted: Highlight



04-12-8  

 

Please fill in the circles completely with the provided pencil. Please do not make a line through 
your choice or fold or bend the form. Completion of the survey is voluntary and anonymous. Your 
feedback will help us improve the quality of our services. 

 



07-05-1  

 
County of Sacramento 

Department of Health Services 
Division of Primary Health Services 

Policy and Procedure 

Policy Issuer 
(Unit/Program) Clinic Services 

Policy Number 07-05 
Effective Date 01-31-12 
Revision Date 01-26-2102-

018-234 
Title: Credentialing and Privileges Functional Area: Personnel 

Approved By: Susmita Mishra, MD, Medical Director 

 
Policy 
Credentialing and privileges policies and procedures shall address the process for appointments 
and reappointments of mMedical Sstaff and licensed contracted staff for Primary Health Clinical 
Services at the Sacramento County Health Center (SCHC). 
Credentialing standards and criteria are established commensurate with those of the National 
Council for Quality. Credentialing and privileging is completed in compliance with state and 
ab=nd federal laws and regulations and in alignment with the Sacramento County Policy 601: 
Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation. SCHC does not exclude, deny benefits to, or 
otherwise discriminate against any person based on protected characteristics which include 
race, color, national origin, religion, age, disability, gender identity; gender expression; sex, 
sexual orientation, political affiliation, genetic information, medical or mental health condition. 
The University of California, Davis (UCD), per contractual agreement, credentials licensed 
providers working under contract with SCHC from the following UCD departments:   

• Department of Internal Medicine 
• Department of Psychiatry 
• Department of Pediatrics 
• Department of Family Medicine 
• Department of Radiology 
• School of Medicine 
• School of Nursing 
• Department of Psychology 

The Co-Applicant Board has delegated the responsibility of credentialing and privileging to the 
SCHC Clinic Services Medical Director. In turn, the Medical Director has delegated 
responsibility for some credentialing to other entities, with final approval of the SCHC Medical 
Director and subject to CAB oversight. 

• Academic institutions, (including but not limited to UC Davis, Sutter Family Medicine 
Residency, and Walden University,) who place licensed or unlicensed trainees at SCHC via 
a contract or agreement, utilize their own procedures to credential trainees.  

• Each temporary medical staffing (“registry”) agency credentials the clinical staff they provide 
to work at SCHC. 

• The Sacramento Physicians' Initiative to Reach out, Innovate and Teach (SPIRIT) project 
and the SCHC jointly credential volunteer providers via agreement with the SPIRIT 
program. 

• SCHC directly credentials other volunteers. 
• SCHC directly credentials County employees. 

The Medical Director of SCHC privileges all clinical staff. 



07-05-2  

 
All County employees, acting within the scope of their licensure and employment, are insured, 
protected, and defended for their actions by the County. 
 

B.  
C.A. Purpose  

Credentialing and privileging are processes of verification of education, training, and 
experience as well asand formal recognition and attestation that licensed independent 
practitioners, or other licensed or certified staffpractitioners (OCLP), and other clinical 
staff, and volunteers are both qualified and competent to carry out their role at the Health 
CenterSCHC. Privileging provides permission for licensed an independent licensed 
practitioner’s (LIP), or other licensed or certifiedOCLPs practitioner’s scope of practice, in 
other words, to provide the clinical services within their scope of practice he or she may 
provide at the Sacramento County Health CenterSCHC.  

 
D.  
B. Definitions: 

Sacramento County Health Center uses the following terms as defined by HRSA in 
Policy Information Notice PIN-2002-22 for numbers 1 – 6 below. The lLanguage below is 
verbatim from that source. For details of what is in scope for each Licensed Independent 
Practitioners category, refer to their respective board (See Attachment A).   

1. Credentialing: The process of assessing and confirming the qualifications of a 
licensed or certified health care practitioner. 

2. Privileging/Competency: The process of authorizing a licensed or certified health 
care practitioner’s specific scope and content of patient care services. This is 
performed in conjunction with an evaluation of an individual’s clinical 
qualifications and/or performance. 

3. A.    Licensed or Certified Health Care PractitionerLicensed Independent 
Practitioner (LIP): an individual required to be licensed, registered, or certified by 
the State, commonwealth or territory in which a Health Center is located. These 
individuals include, but are not limited to, physicians, dentists, registered nurses, 
and others required to be licensed, registered, or certified (e.g., laboratory 
technicians, social workers, medical assistants, licensed practical nurses, dental 
hygienists, nutritionists). “Licensed or certified health care practitioners” can be 
divided into two categories: a) licensed independent practitioners (LIPs) and b) 
other licensed or certified practitioners.An individual permitted by law to provide 
patient care without direction or supervision, within the scope of the individual’s 
license and consistent with individually granted clinical privileges. This category 
includes physicians, psychologists, nurse practitioners (NP), clinical fellows, 
physician assistants (PA),registered dental hygienists in alternative practice 
(RDHAP), licensed clinical social workers (LCSW) and licensed marriage and 
family therapists (LMFT). For details of what is in scope for each LIP category, 
refer to their board (See Attachment A). Care and Services v Patient Care.  
Definition in regs?  Refer to regs?  See assessment form below page 43 

1.4. Licensed Independent Practitioners (LIP): physician, dentist, nurse practitioner, 
and nurse midwife or any other “individual permitted by law and the organization 

Commented [SH1]: Refer to specific regulations.  Refer to 
specific policies. 

Commented [R2R1]: Maybe we can say, “refer to each 
LIP’s licensing board for a list of duties they can provide 
without direction or supervision.” 
Instead of doing all of this research and potentially including 
it in the policy. What each “provider” is allowed to do is 
beyond the scope of this policy (in my opinion) 



07-05-3  

to provide care and services without direction or supervision, within the scope of 
the individual’s license and consistent with individually granted clinical privileges” 
(from Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations’(JCAHO) 
2002-2003 Comprehensive Accreditation Manual for Ambulatory Care). It is the 
Health Center that should determine which individuals (including staff that may 
not be covered under Federal Tort Claims Act such as volunteers, certain part-
time contractors, medical residents, and locum tenens) meet this definition based 
on law and the organization’s policy. 
PA: Sharon look up.  RDHAP – Robyn will provide (placed in the folder). 
California Medical Board – Robyn; PsycholgistsPsychologists = ???; Psychiatry, 
LMFT, LCSW, NP= we have document Nurse Practitioner Standards or some 
such….   If not CA med Board – individual MD (internal, family, peds, psychiatry), 
DO,  

2. B.    Other Licensed or Certified Practitioners (OLCP): An individual who is 
licensed, registered, or certified but is not permitted by law to provide patient care 
services without direction or supervision. Examples include, but are not limited to, 
laboratory technicians, social workers, medical assistants, licensed practical 
nurses, dental hygienists An individual who is licensed, registered, or certified by 
an accredited academic institution or a board recognized by the Sstate of 
California, but who is not permitted by law to provide patient care services without 
direction or supervision. This category includes but is not limited to nurses 
(regulation), , radiology technologists (regulations). For details of what is in scope 
for each OLCP category, refer to their board (See Attachment A). 

5.  
3. C.  Licensed Independent Practitioner (LIP): An individual permitted by law to 

provide care and services without direction or supervision, within the scope of the 
individual’s license and consistent with individually granted clinical privileges. This 
category includes physicians, nurse practitioners, clinical fellows, physician 
assistants, and Registered Dental Hygienists in Alternative Practice (RDHAPs). 

Other Licensed or Certified Practitioners (OLCP): An individual who is licensed, 
registered, or certified but is not permitted by law to provide patient care services 
without direction or supervision. This category includes nurses, licensed clinical 
social workers, and licensed marriage and family therapists. 

OOther Clinical Staff (OCS): An individual who is not licensed or registered but is 
permitted per clinical policy to provide patient care services within their 
professional scope of work (under direct supervision of a licensed professional. 
This category includesd but is not limited to medical assistants (MA), dental 
assistants, associate clinical social workers, and associate marriage family 
therapists .  What is patient care if they are not licensed? 

6.  
7. Volunteers and Trainees: There are three types of volunteers at the SCHC. 

a. An individual permitted by law to provide care and services without 
direction or supervision, within the scope of the individual’s license, and 
consistent with individually granted clinical privileges, and as listed in the 
contract. i.e., SPIRIT volunteers.   

b. An individual who is not licensed, registered, or certified but is permitted 
by clinical policy to provide patient support services (e.g., register patients, 
check eligibility for health insurance, link patients to external services) 



07-05-4  

under the direction of the SCHC clinical staff (e.g., Volunteer Office 
Assistants).  How do support services vary from care and services? 

c. An individual participating in a recognized academic program with which 
SCHC has a formal relationship, may provide direct clinical services as a 
learner under the supervision of SCHC clinical staff and their preceptor 
within a scope of duties defined by contract. These learners include 
medical residents, medical students, nursing students, nurse practitioner 
students, physician assistant students, and MA candidates, and associate 
mental health clinicians. and OCS, . 

6. Volunteers and Trainees: There are three types of volunteers at the 
SCHCacramento County Health Center. 

An individual permitted by law to provide care and services without direct direction or 
supervision, within the scope of the individual’s license and consistent with 
individually granted clinical privileges and as listed in the contract., i.e., SPIRIT 
vVolunteers. 

An individual who is not licensed, registered, or certified but is permitted by  Cclinical 
policy to provide patient support services under the direction of the SCHC 
cClinical Sstaff, i.e., Volunteer Medical Assistants through the County Volunteer 
Office. 

 
c) An individual participating in a recognized academic program with which SCHC 

has a formal relationship, may provide direct clinical services as a learner under 
the supervision of SCHC clinical staff and their preceptor within a specifically 
defined scope of duties. These learners include medical residents, medical 
students, nursing students, nurse practitioner students, physician assistant 
students, and and MA candidates and OCS, and OCS (OSCs), among others. 

E.  An individual participating in a recognized academic program with which SCHC 
has a formal relationship, may provide direct clinical services as a learner under 
the supervision of SCHC clinical staff and their preceptor within a specifically 
defined scope of duties. These learners include medical residents, medical 
students, nursing students, nurse practioner students, physician assistant 
students, and MA candidates (OSCs), among others. 

8. Primary Source Verification (PSV)::  Verification by the original source of a 
specific  credential to determine the accuracy of a qualification reported by an 
individual health care practitioner. PSV is completed, at a minimum, for the 
following (see Attachment A for details by position classification).:  Are all of these 
things on breeze?  Different sources?  This isn’t part of the definitions. 

a.  
a. Current licensure; 
b. Relevant education, training, or experience as pertaining to the 

classification or licensing boards  
c. Current competence; and 
d. Health fitness 

9. F.  Secondary Source Verification (SSV): Uses Mmethods to verify credentials 
when PSV is    not required.  SSV not defined.  When it is done is not part of the 
definition.   SSV is completed for the following: 

a. Government issued picture identification; 



07-05-5  

b. Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) (as applicable); 
c. Hospital Admitting Privileges (as applicable); 
d. Immunization such as current flu shot,  and Hepatitis B and COVID-19 

vVaccine status.;  
e. Tuberculosis clearance;  
f. Life Support Training (as applicable); and 
g. National Practitioner Data Bank Query (NPDB) (as applicable). 

   
Procedures: 
Credentialing verification occurs by obtaining primary source or secondary source verification in 
accordance with accepted national verification sites and standards. Credentialing documents for 
verification requiring verification and the verification sites for licensed staff (physicians, dentists, 
NPs, p 
 
Psychologists, registered nurses (RN), licensed vocational nurses (LVN), PAs, LCSWs, LMFTs, 
registered radiology technologists, and RDHAPs are included in the Aattachment A:labeled  
“Credentialing Verification Instructions.”  How it occurs isn’t a procedure.  The procedure would 
be 1.  Verify credentials. 2.  … 
Standards must include California state standards. Esp if they vary. 
Prefer to have the positions spelled out.  Too many acronyms 
 
Credentialing verification occurs by obtaining Primary source or Secondary source verification in 
accordance with accepted national verification sites and standards. Credentialing documents 
requiring verification and the verification sites for licensed staff (Physicians, Dentists, Nurse 
Practitioners, Registered Nurses, Licensed Vocational Nurses, Physician Assistants, Licensed 
Clinical Social Workers, Marriage and Family Therapists, Registered Radiology Technologists, 
and Registered Dental Hygienist in Alternate Practice) are included in the attachment labeled 
“Credentialing Verification Instructions.” 

Commented [SH3]: All is state controlled EXCEPT 1) 
radiology technicians and 2) physican specialties (Boards).  

Commented [SH4]: It will be too bulky to spell out all 
positions in each place and it is not needed for the users of 
the P&P. 



07-05-6  

Credentialing verification will also be performed for other Clinical Staff (OCS) as noted below. 
All contracted staff will have credentials maintained by the Contractor. Contractors are entities 
with which the County contracts has an executed agreement to provide specific services, and 
includeing, but are not limited to academic institutions and medical registry agencies. The 
Contractor must provide credentials to the Medical Director or designated Clinic Services 
personnel before being privileged at SCHCthe Health Center. This includes contracted 
specialists and hospital academic programs. The Medical Director will grant privileges to 
contracted staff.  Should be mandatory not on request.  Contractor isn’t defined.  Agencies, 
schools, etc. 

A. Credential Review: 
Review of credentials is conducted based on staff category. Attachment A details the 
specific documents and sites wthat will be examined for each item below for each 
position classification.  

B.  
C.B. Privilege Determination 

Granting of privileges is conducted based on a licensed or certified health care 
practitioner’s specific scope, content of patient care servicesappropriateness for the 
profession/position, the privileges requested by the applicants, and documentation of an 
individual’s clinical qualifications and/or performance. skills, experience, and 
competence. 

1. Privileging begins with the submission of an Application for Clinical Privileges 
specific to the appropriate staff category (See Attachments B, C, D, E).  This 
should be 1.  In the Procedures section. 

1. The SCHC Medical Director SCHC grants privileges to LIPs and OLCPs, 
Associate Clinical Social Worker, and Associate MFTs within the category of OCS 
(see B. 3).  Acronyms not clear who in category of ocs 

2.  
2.1. Privileging begins with the submission of an Application for Clinical Privileges 

specific to the appropriate staff category (See Attachments B, C, D, E). 
3. Review of transcripts, continuing education credits, curriculum vitae or resume, 

and letters of reference may be used to assist in determining which privileges to 
grant.Trainees have privileges as defined in the contract between the County and 
their academic institution. 

3. Privileging begins with the submission of an Application for Clinical Privileges 
specific to the appropriate staff category (See Attachments B, C, D, E).  This 
should be 1.  In the Procedures section. 

  
 Review of transcripts, continuing education credits, curriculum vitae or resume, 

and letters of reference may be used to assist in determining which privileges to 
grant.  Section A says these are required not “may” 

4.  
D.C. Responsibilities for whom?  For what? 

The Co-Applicant Board delegates the responsibility of credentialing and privileging to the 
Clinic Services Medical Director. The Medical Director  

Commented [SH5]: It is asked for each time.  I reworded 
this. 



07-05-7  

The Primary Health Services Medical Director is responsible for credentialing and 
privileging all licensed and credentialed medical staff, . The Primary Health Services 
Medical Director is responsible for credentialing other clinical staff, and volunteers not 
affiliated with a program with which SCHC has a formal agreement. The Medical Director 
designates an administrative services officer (ASO) who collects and verifies credentials 
under the supervision of the Medical Director. The assistantASO assistant implements 
and maintains the clinic’s specific database for the Credentialing and Privileging g 
program and compiles data for the Medical Director to review. Academic programs are 
responsible for credential the verification  of the credentials for learners; the specific 
process are is detailed in the contract between the program and SCHC.  The Medical 
Director has the final say and will not approve unless verification is provided and 
indemnity is guaranteed as per the contract between The Regents of the University of 
California and Sacramento County. 

1. Temporary medical staffing (“registry”) service agencies s are responsible for 
thecredential  verification of the credentials ofor the clinical staff they provide 
to SCHC.  Clinical staff needs to be defined and applied specifically to certain 
providers. 

2. Applicants, County employees, volunteers, and contracted staff have the 
burden ofmust produce the information listed below ing information in a timely 
manner (at least 90 days prior to start date) for an adequate evaluation of the 
qualifications and suitability of clinical privileges. The applicant’s failure to 
sustain the burdendo so shall be grounds for denial or termination of 
privileges. Secondary Source Verification: is used for OCS (MA)????. The 
employee provides a copy of their: 

a. MA certificate (if applicable) 
 CPR or BLS/ACLS as applicable certificate 
b.  
c. Vaccine status for Influenza, Hepatitis B, and COVID-19 
 Flu vaccination  
a. Purified protein derivative (PPD)PD documentation aka TB test 
d.  
b. Health assessment statement 
e.  
 Photo ID 
 Photo ID 
f.  

3. Competence 
a. Supervisors perform evaluation of core competencies for staff in their 

respective programs. The data is provided to the designated 
credentialing staff. See PP 04-23 Peer Review Health Clinicians and PP 
04-09 Peer Review Behavioral Health Clinicians.  

b. UCD Program Leads and faculty are responsible for review of medical 
residents delivering medical care under the supervision of the faculty 

Commented [6]: Who is this referring to?  Is 
"assistant" the ASO? 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Commented [ag7]: Why isn’t this referred to Attach A 

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-04-23-Peer-Review-Health-Clinicians.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-04-09-Peer-Review-Behavioral-Health-Clinicians.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-04-09-Peer-Review-Behavioral-Health-Clinicians.docx


07-05-8  

team. 
c. Every resident clinical encounter is reviewed and co-signed by SCHC 

supervising faculty. 
c.  
d. SCHC supervising faculty submit quarterly clinical competency 

evaluations to UC Davis Internal Medicine Residency. 
e. Residents participate in a fFile Rreview twice a year with the Associate 

Program Director or Program Director to review evaluations. 
f. If any corrective actions are implemented regarding a resident's clinical 

care of primary care patients, the Program Director will communicate 
with the SCHC Medical Director. 

4. The Peer Review Committee (PRC) and the , which includes the Medical Director 
andare responsible for at least one licensed physician, assessinges clinical 
competency for licensed health care providers (LIPs and OLCPs), according to 
PP 04-23 Peer Review Health Clinicians. the Peer Review Policy. 

5.4.  

E.D. Approval Process for Initial Hire 
Once employed, each practitioners (LIP, OLCP, Associate Mental Health Clinicians) must 
submit an “Application for Clinical Privileges” (Attachment B) to request Core and Special 
Request Privileges. The Medical Director will review the “Application for Clinical 
Privileges”, all supporting documentation of education, training, current experience and 
demonstrated performance, and may consult with Supervisors, Leads, or Managers of 
respective programs before granting or denying privileges. 

1.  
 
No more thanWithin 90 days following their start date, the Medical Director assesses 
clinical competency to determine whether to maintain the approved privileges. 

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinics/Clinics%20Forms/Posted%20Forms/Privileges%20Approval%20Form%2011-05-13.pdf


07-05-9  

F.E. Adverse Determination Process 
1. The process for reviewing clinical competency, ethics, and professionalism of 

providers and consequences of failure to demonstrate such competency is 
outlined in PP 04-23: Peer Review Policy Clinicians. 

2. For other personnel, the supervisor the County of Sacramento Department of 
Health Services (DHS) Human Resources Discipline Manual or the 
contractual requirements for contracted staff are used to determine whether . 

3. Personnel actions for Ccounty staff may be appealed per applicable County 
Human Resources guidelines and applicable represented labor groups 
approved contracts. 

G.F. Re-Credentialing and Re-Privileging 
1. Medical Director reviews credentials and privileges of LIPs, OLCPs, 

Associate Mental Health Clinicians at least every two years. 
2. The Medical Director renews privileges of practitioners based on maintenance 

of credentials and PRC eer Review Committee recommendations. 
3. Supervising nurses review the competency of MAs and nursesOCS by 

completing the Skill Check List every yearly. See Attachment F: RN Skills 
Checklist Attachment FEand Attachment G: MA Skills Checklist Attachment 
G.Supervising nurses review the competency of OCSs by completing the Skill Check List 
every year. We don’t have dental assistants which is listed in OCS. If we want to keep 
in, then who is reviewing competency? 

3.  
H. Adverse Determination Process: Re-Credentialing and Privileging 
I. Based on Medical Director recommendations for LIPs and OLCPs, a 60-day corrective 

action plan is given when a licensed or credentialed provider has not met performance 
measures. 

J.  
K. If there is not sufficient improvement within 60 days, the Medical Director will consult 

with the Health Program Manager for Operations and follow the County of 
Sacramento Department of Health Services (DHS)’ Human Resources Discipline 
Manual or the contractual requirements for contracted staff. 

L.  
M. Personnel actions for county staff may be appealed per applicable County Human 

Resources guidelines and applicable represented labor groups approved contracts. 
N.G. Confidentiality 

All credentialing and privileging proceedings, deliberation, records, related  activities, and 
information shall beis confidential, and not subject to discovery, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law. Disclosure of such proceedings and records shall be made only as 
required by law, or as needed to fulfill the credentialing activities within the scope of the 
policy. 

 
Attachments: 
Attachment A: Credentialing Verification Instructions 
Attachment B: Application for Clinical Privileges - Providers 
Attachment C: Application for Clinical Privileges - Radiology Technologists  

Commented [DB8]: End Sentence after Checklist for 
Attachment G. 

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-04-23-Peer-Review-Health-Clinicians.pdf
https://insidepersonnelservices.saccounty.gov/DepartmentServices/Documents/discipline_manual.pdf#search=Human%20Resources%20Discipline%20Manual
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/Nurse%20Skills%20Checklist.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/Nurse%20Skills%20Checklist.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/MA%20Skills%20Checklist.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/MA%20Skills%20Checklist.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/Application%20for%20Clinical%20Privileges%20-all%20providers.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/Application%20for%20Clinical%20Privileges%20-%20Radiology%20Tech.pdf


07-05-10  

Attachment D: Application for Clinical Privileges - Dental Hygienists  
Attachment DDE: Application for Clinical privileges - Behavioral Health Clinicians 
Attachment FEF: Registered Nurses Skills Checklist 
Attachment C: Application for Clinical Privileges-Radiology Technologists 
Attachment D: Application for Clinical Privileges-Dental Hygienists 
Attachment E: Application for Clinical Privileges-Registered Nurse 
Attachment F: Registered Nurses Skills Checklist 
Attachment GF: Medical Assistant Health Assessment 
Form Attachment G: Medical Assistant Health Attestation 
Form 
Attachment HGH:  
Medical Assistant Skills Check List

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/Application%20for%20Clinical%20Privileges%20%20Dental%20Hygienist.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/Application%20for%20Clinical%20Privileges%20-%20BH%20clinicians%201.12.23.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/Nurse%20Skills%20Checklist.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/MA%20Skills%20Checklist.pdf


07-05-11  

 
 
References: 
Health Resources and Services Administration (April 2023). Center Program Site Visit Protocol: 

Examples of Credentialing and Privileging Documentation.  SeeLink to document 
https://bphc.hrsa.gov/compliance/site-visits/site-visit-protocol/credentialing-privileging.   

Health Resources and Services Administration (). Policy Information Notice PIN-2002-22: 
Clarification of Bureau of Primary Health Care Credentialing and Privileging Policy outlined 
in Policy Information Notice 2001-16. Link to document    See link. 

 
PP 04-09 Peer Review Behavioral Health Clinicians 
PP 04-23: Peer Review Policy Clinicians 
Sacramento Department of Health Services (DHS)’s Human Resources Discipline Manual 
Contract between The Regents of the University of California and Sacramento County 

 
Contact: 
Diana Barney, ASO I 

 
Co-Applicant Board Approval Date: 02/19/2021 

https://bphc.hrsa.gov/compliance/site-visits/site-visit-protocol/credentialing-privileging.
https://learning.ftlf.com/sites/default/files/PIN%202002-22%20-%20Clarification%20of%20Bureau%20of%20Primary%20Health%20Care%20Credentialing%20and%20Privileging%20Policy%20outlined%20in%20Policy%20Information%20Notice%202001-16.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-04-09-Peer-Review-Behavioral-Health-Clinicians.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-04-23-Peer-Review-Health-Clinicians.pdf
https://insidepersonnelservices.saccounty.gov/DepartmentServices/Documents/discipline_manual.pdf#search=Human%20Resources%20Discipline%20Manual


Page 1 of 2 

Credentialing Verification Instructions1/13/2021 

 

Credentialing Verification Instructions                                                                                                                                                                         Attachment A 
Credentialing Activity Practitioner Type Verification Type Verification Source 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Verification of licensure, registration or 
certification 

All practitioner types Primary Source Perform “license search” on-line directly with licensing board (example: enter 
license search DDS CA) 

 
MD/DO/DPM/DDS: State of CA Consumer Affairs 

MD: Medical Board of California 

Psychologists: Psychology Board of California 
 

NP: State of CA Board of Registered Nurses; CA registered nurse license, 
Nurse Practitioner number issued by the BRN. 

 
RN: State of CA Board of Registered Nurses 

 
LVN: State of CA Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians 

RT: State of CA Department of Public Health Radiologic Health Branch 

LCSW/LMFT/MH Counselor: State of CA Board of Behavioral Sciences 

RDHAP: Dental Hygiene Board of California 

PA: Physician Assistant Board of California 

 
Curriculum Vitae 

Physicians 
Podiatrists 
Psychologists 

 Submitted to Medical Director 

 
Board Certification 

Physicians 
Podiatrists 
RDHAP 
Psychologists 

Primary Source Perform on-line query by specialty at American Board of Medical Specialties 

 
 
 
 

Education 

Physicians 
Podiatrists 
Nurse Practitioners 
Physician Assistants 
Psychologists 

Primary Source State Licensing Board 

Nurses 
Mental Health Workers 
Radiologic Technologists 
RDHAP 

 
Medical Assistants 

Secondary Source State Licensing Board 
 

Medical Assistant Training without Certification: per Title 16 of the 
California Code of Regulations section 1366.3 (a)(1) and (a)(2) 
and Medical Assistant Training with Certification: per Title 16 of the 
California Code of Regulations section 1366.3 (c)(1)(2)(3) 



Page 2 of 2 

Credentialing Verification Instructions1/13/2021 

 

 
 
 
 

Training 

Physicians 
Podiatrists 
Nurse Practitioners 
Physician Assistants 
Psychologists 

Primary Source State Licensing Board 

Nurses 
Mental Health Workers 
Radiologic Technologists 
Registered Dental 
Hygienist in Alternative 
Practice (RDHAP) 

Secondary Source State Licensing Board 
 
Medical Assistant Training without Certification: per Title 16 of the 
California Code of Regulations section 1366.3 (a)(1) and (a)(2) 
and Medical Assistant Training with Certification: per Title 16 of the 
California Code of Regulations section 1366.3 (c)(1)(2)(3) 

 
 

CME Documentation 

Nurse Practitioners Primary Source Certificate of completion of all courses taken within the last two years. 

Non-Board Certified Physicians 
Nurses 
Mental Health Workers 
Radiologic Technologists 

Secondary Source 
State Licensing Board or certificate of completion. 



Page 3 of 2 

Credentialing Verification Instructions1/13/2021 

 

Credentialing Verification Instructions 
Credentialing Activity Practitioner Type Verification Type Verification 

    

 
DEA 

Physicians 
Nurse Practitioners 
Physician Assistants 

Secondary Source Verification of current DEA certificate. Perform on-line query with 
Department of Justice-Conversion Control 

NPDB Query All licensed practitioner types Required, if reportable National Practitioner Data Base-Examination of malpractice payments and/or 
adverse actions taken against a practitioner 

 
ACLS/CPR 

Physicians 
Nurse Practitioners 
Physician Assistants 
Nurses 
Medical Assistants 

Secondary Source Certification Card 

Health Fitness All clinical staff Secondary Source Tuberculosis questionnaire and skin test and DHHS Clinical Privilege 
Application. 

Immunization All clinical staff Secondary Source Immunization log, per Employee Health Department 
Copy of Flu shot record 

Government Issue Photo ID All clinical staff Secondary Source Government issued photo ID (i.e. Driver’s License or Passport photo ID) 

 
 

Current Competence 

Physicians 
Nurse Practitioners 
Physician Assistants 
Psychologist 
Psychiatrist 

Primary Source Peer review group. 

All other clinical staff Secondary source Supervisor evaluation. 

 
Malpractice insurance verification. 

Physicians 
Nurse Practitioners 
Physician Assistants 
Nurses 
Psychologists 
Licensed Clinical 
Social workers 
(LCSWs 
Licensed Marriage 
and Family 
Therapists (LMFTs) 
Mental Health 
Counselors (MHC) 

Primary Source County self-insurance certification letter. 
UC Davis Medical Center certificate of professional liability insurance 
Registry certificate of professional liability insurance 
Sacramento County Board of Education certificate of professional liability 
insurance 



 

Sacramento County Health Center PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Appendix B 

 

Application for Clinical Privileges - Providers 
 Physician 
 Psychiatrist 
 FNP (Nurse Practitioner) 
 PA (Physician Assistant) 
 Psychologist 
 LCSW (Licensed Clinical Social Worker) 
 LMFT (Licensed Marriage & Family Therapist) 
 Registered Nurse 
 Licensed Vocational Nurse 
 Physical Therapist 

 

Qualifications 
To be eligible to apply for clinical core privileges in primary care, mental health, specialty, or sub-specialty care 
initially the applicant must have a current active licensure to practice in the State of California 

Required previous experience 
Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate current competence and provision of care 
reflective of the scope of privileges requested. 
Reappointment requirements 
To be eligible to renew core privileges, the applicant must have current demonstrated competency and quality 
reflective of the scope of privileges requested for the past 24 months based on results of ongoing professional 
practice evaluation and outcomes. Evidence of current ability to perform requested privileges is required of all 
applicants for renewal of privileges. 

 

Directions  
Applicant 
For each privilege requested, check the applicable core privilege box (es). Applicants have the burden of 
producing information deemed adequate by Sacramento County Health Center for a proper evaluation of current 
competence, current clinical activity, and other qualifications and for resolving any doubts related to 
qualifications for requested privileges. 

 
Medical Director 
Check the appropriate box for recommendation on the last page of this form. If not recommended or 
recommended with conditions, provide condition or explanation on the last page of this form. 

 
Other Requirements 
Note: Privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the appropriate equipment, 
license, staff, and other support required to provide the services defined in this document. Site- specific services 
will be defined by the Sacramento County Health Center. 
While this document defines qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical privileges, the applicant 
must also adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or accreditation requirements that the Sacramento 
County Health Center is obligated to meet. 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 1 



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 2 

 

 

 

Request for Clinical Privileges 
 

Applicant Name:    
 

Privilege Requested: 
 

Initial Appointment 

Reappointment 

Core Privileges 

 Adult Primary Care Core Privileges Requested 
Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide health education and screening to adolescent and adult 
patients with acute illnesses, chronic diseases, and functional disorders of all organ systems. 
Provider will assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with emergent conditions 
consistent with policy regarding emergencies. The core privileges in this specialty include the 
procedures on the procedure list and such other procedures that are extensions of the same 
techniques and skills. 

 

 Behavioral Health Core Privileges Requested 
Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide health education and screening to patients presenting 
with behavioral health symptoms, history, or current provisional diagnosis of mental illness 
and/or substance abuse. 
Provider will assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with emergent behavioral 
health conditions consistent with the Sacramento Health Center policy regarding emergencies. 
The core privileges in this specialty may include services on the Primary Care Services list 
and/or Behavioral Health Services and other services that are extensions of the same 
techniques and skills. This may also include behavioral health services for Medication Assisted 
Treatment 

 

 Pediatric/Adolescent Medicine Core Privileges Requested 
Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide health education and screening to pediatric patients up 
to the age of 18 with common illnesses, injuries, or disorders. This includes the care of the 
normal newborn as well as the uncomplicated premature infant equal to or greater than 36 
weeks gestation. Provider will assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with 
emergent conditions consistent with policy regarding emergencies. The core privileges in this 
specialty include the procedures on the Pediatric procedure list and such other procedures that 
are extensions of the same techniques and skills. 

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Effective from:  _/  _/   

Effective to:  / /  



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 3 

 

 

 

 Obstetrics Privileges Requested 
Evaluate, diagnose, perform history and physical examinations, and manage patients at any 
stage of pregnancy including providing comprehensive obstetrical care. Admit for 
hospitalization or L&D assessment. The core privileges in this specialty include the procedures 
on the Women’s Health & Obstetrics procedure list and such other procedures that are 
extensions of the same techniques and skills. 

 
 
 

 Other: Core Privileges Requested 
I request Privileging in: 
 Specialty Care or Sub-Specialty Care 
 Registered Nursing 
 Licensed Vocational Nursing 
 Physical Therapy 
 Radiology 
 Physician Assistant 
 Other 

 

List procedures or other specialized services you wish to provide for Health Center patients. 
*You may attach separate sheet if more space is required. 
**Verification of competency required. 

1.    
 

2.    
 

3.    
 

4.    
 
 

The “Core Procedure Lists” below are a sampling of procedures included in the respective cores. The 
lists are not intended to be all-encompassing lists but rather reflective of the categories/types of 
procedures included in the cores. 

If you wish to exclude any procedures, please strike through those procedures that you do 
not wish to request, initial, and date. 



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 4 

 

 

 
Core ADULT Primary Care Procedure List 

1. Arthrocentesis and joint injection 
2. Burns, superficial and partial thickness 
3. I & D abscess 
4. Local anesthetic techniques 
5. Manage uncomplicated minor closed fractures and uncomplicated dislocations 
6. Perform history and physical exam 
7. Perform simple skin biopsy or excision 
8. Remove non-penetrating foreign body from the eye, nose, or ear 
9. Suture uncomplicated lacerations 
10. Blood Glucose Point of Care Testing 
11. Hemoglobin A1c Point of Care Testing 
12. Influenza Point of Care Testing 
13. Mononucleosis Point of Care Testing 
14. Pregnancy Point of Care Testing 
15. RSV Point of Care Testing 
16. Strep A Point of Care Testing 
17. Urinalysis Point of Care Testing 
18. Fecal Occult Blood Point of Care Testing 
19. Pertussis Point of Care Testing 

 
 

Core CHILDRENS’S Primary Care Procedure List 
1. I & D abscess 
2. Manage uncomplicated minor closed fractures and uncomplicated dislocations 
3. Perform history and physical exam 
4. Perform simple skin biopsy or excision 
5. Remove non-penetrating corneal foreign body 
6. Suture uncomplicated lacerations 
7. Blood Glucose Point of Care Testing 
8. Hemoglobin A1c Point of Care Testing 
9. Influenza Point of Care Testing 
10. Mononucleosis Point of Care Testing 
11. Pregnancy Point of Care Testing 
12. RSV Point of Care Testing 
13. Strep A Point of Care Testing 
14. Urinalysis Point of Care Testing 
15. Fecal Occult Blood Point of Care Testing 
16. Pertussis Point of Care Testing 



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 5 

 

 

 
Core Women’s Health and Obstetrics Procedure List 

1. Breast mass and cyst aspiration 
2. Diaphragm fitting 
3. Endometrial biopsy 
4. Intrauterine device insertion and removal 
5. Contraceptive implant insertion and removal 
6. Colposcopy 
7. Cervical biopsy 
8. Cervical cryotherapy 
9. Episiotomy 
10. Local anesthesia 
11. Amniotomy 
12. Repair of obstetrical lacerations 
13. Uncomplicated cephalic vaginal delivery 
14. Routine operative obstetrics 

 
Core Behavioral Health Services List 
Provider may be granted privileges to perform brief, focused, and targeted therapeutic services 
included in the following modalities: 

 
1. Provide Individual, Group, and Family Interventions or therapy for treatment of focus 
2. Provide Care Coordination in the Clinic or with other agencies 
3. Provide linkages to appropriate support services 
4. Provide behavioral health education to patients, family members, and other agencies 
5. Provide Substance abuse use assessment, individual therapy, and referrals to group 

therapy 
 

Core Registered Nursing Services List 
1. Perform history and physical exam 
2. Maintain airway and/or trach care 
3. Recognize unstable patients, initiate and participate in basic life support 
4. Administer/titrate oxygen 
5. Perform pulse oximetry 
6. Measure temperature/obtain accurate vital signs (including demonstrating knowledge 

of pediatric norms) 
7. Recognize and address abnormalities 
8. Prepare and administer medications 
9. Calculate safe pediatric dose of medication 
10. Obtain specimens on children 
11. Assess and address immunologic status, including immunization status 
12. Assess and address pain and pain management 
13. Assess and address specific developmental needs of infants and children 



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 6 

 

 

 
Core Licensed Vocational Nursing Services List 

 
1. Assist primary care (including Internal Medicine, Family Medicine, Nurse Practitioners, 

Pediatrics), specialty care, and Refugee Health providers with the following procedures 
a. History and physical exam 
b. Blood Glucose Point of Care Testing 
c. Influenza Point of Care Testing 
d. Mononucleosis Point of Care Testing 
e. Pregnancy Point of Care Testing 
f. RSV Point of Care Testing 
g. Strep A Point of Care Testing 
h. Fecal Occult Blood Point of Care Testing 
i. Pertussis Point of Care Testing 
j. Perform simple skin biopsy and excision 
k. Remove non-penetrating foreign body from eye, nose, or ear 
l. Suture uncomplicated lacerations 
m. Joint injections 
n. I & D abscess 
o. Breast mass and cyst aspiration 
p. DiaphramDiaphragm fitting 
q. Endometrial biopsy 
r. Intrauterine device insertion and removal 
s. Contraceptive implant insertion and remove 
t. Colposcopy 
u. Cervical biopsy 
v. Local anesthesia 
w. Repair of obstetrical lacerations 
x. Start and maintain an IV 
y. Withdraw blood 
z. Maintain airway and/or trach care 
aa. Administer/titrate oxygen 
bb. Calculate safe pediatric dose of medication 

cc. Assess and address immunologic status, including immunization status 
dd. Other procedures for which the provider requests help 



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 7 

 

 

 
2. Perform the following procedures under the guidance of RN and/or provider 

a. Measure temperature/obtain accurate vital signs 
b. Take an initial patient history 
c. Complete Refugee Health Assessment 1st visit protocol 
d. Prepare and administer immunizations 
e. Prepare and administer medications, under provider orders 
f.        Perform pulse oximetry 
g. Recognize unstable patients , initiate and participate in basic life support 
h. Other duties assigned within scope of practice 

 
Core Physical Therapist Procedure List 

 
1. Physical Treatment 

a. Cervical, Thoracic, and lumbar sprains/strains 
b. Lumbar and Cervical radiculopathy 
c. Sacroiliac pain 
d. Scoliosis, lordosis, and kyphosis 
e. Work related injuries 
f. Neck pain 
g. Greater trochanteric bursitis 
h. Hip labral tears 
i. Iliotibial band syndrome 
j. Muscular headaches 
k. Restricted mobility 
l. Whiplash injury 
m. Vertigo 
n. Plantar fasciitis 
o. Acute and chronic ankle sprains 
p. Achilles tendonitis 
q. Balance deficits 
r. Tendonitis (tennis and golfer’s elbow) 
s. Hand, elbow, and wrist fractures 
t. Carpal tunnel syndrome 

2. Myofascial release 
3. Core stabilization 
4. Therapeutic exercise 
5. Active Therapeutic Motion Technique 
6. Biofeedback 
7. Kinesio taping method 
8. Temporomandibular joint dysfunction (TMJ) 

 
Acknowledgement of Practitioner 
I have requested only those privileges by which education, training, current experience, and 



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 8 

 

 

 
demonstrated performance I am qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at designated 
Sacramento County Health Center sites. 

 
I understand that in exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Sacramento 
County Health Center policies and rules applicable generally and any applicable to the particular 
situation. 
Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation. In 
such situations, my actions are governed by the applicable section of the appropriate policies or 
related documents. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Provider Signature Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

By signing below, I hereby attest that I have completed pre-employment 
clearance requirements and have no physical or mental conditions that may 
affect my ability to perform (within the accepted standards of professional 
performance with or without reasonable accommodations) the essential 
functions of my position and/or the privileges I have requested. 

 
I agree, as evidenced by my signature, that the information provided is true and 
complete to the best of my knowledge and that omission and falsification of 
information may be cause for termination or my privileges and/or employment 
from the Sacramento County Health Center. 



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 9 

 

 

 
Medical Director Recommendation 

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above- 
named applicant and have made the following recommendation(s): 

 
 Recommend all requested privileges 

 
 Recommend requested privileges with the changes as noted below 

 
The following privilege(s) is/are granted with conditions and/or modifications: 

 
Privilege Condition/Modification/Not granted 

  

  

  

 
 
 
 

Medical Director Signature Date 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Appendix C 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – Radiology Technologist 

11/02/18 Page 1 

 

 

  Radiology Technologist  
 

Qualifications 
To be eligible to apply to provide patient care with only indirect supervision in primary care, initially the applicant must 
have current California State Radiology Technologist License issued by the Board of Public Health Radiologic Health 
Branch. 

 
Required previous experience 
Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate current competence and provision of care, reflective of the 
scope of privileges requested. 

 
Reappointment requirements 
To be eligible to renew privileges in primary care, the applicant must have current demonstrated competency and quality, 
reflective of the scope of privileges requested, for the past 24 months based on results of ongoing professional practice 
evaluation and outcomes. Evidence of current ability to perform requested privileges is required of all applicants for 
renewal of privileges. 

 

 Directions  
 

Applicant 
Check the “Requested” box for each privilege requested. Applicants have the burden of producing information deemed 
adequate by Sacramento County Health Center for a proper evaluation of current competence, current clinical activity, and 
other qualifications and for resolving any doubts related to qualifications for requested privileges. 

 
Medical Director 
Check the appropriate box for recommendation on the last page of this form. If recommended with conditions or not 
recommended, provide condition or explanation on the last page of this form. 

 
Other Requirements 
Note that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the appropriate equipment, 
license, staff, and other support required to provide the services defined in this document. Site- specific services may be 
defined in Sacramento County Health Center. 

 
This document is focused on defining qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical privileges. The applicant must 
also adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or accreditation requirements that the health center is obligated to 
meet. 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – Radiology Technologist 

11/02/18 Page 2 

 

 

Radiology Technologist  
Request for Privileges 

Radiology Technologist 
 

 

 

Applicant Name:    
 

Privileges Requested for 

Initial Appointment 

Reappointment 

 
Core Privileges 

 
 Radiology Technologist Core Privileges Requested - ADULT 

 
 Radiology Technologist Core Privileges Requested - PEDIATRIC/ADOLESCENT 

 
 Radiology Technologist Core Privileges Requested - OTHER 

Please list other activities or specialized services you wish to provide for Health Center patients. * Verification of 
competency required. 

I request Privileging in: 
 

1.   
 

2.   
 

3.   

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Effective from:  _/  _/   

Effective to:  / /  



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – Radiology Technologist 

11/02/18 Page 3 

 

 

Radiology Technologist 
Core Procedure List 
This list is a sampling of procedures included in the core. This is not intended to be an all-encompassing list but rather, 
reflective of the categories/types of procedures included in the core. If you wish to exclude any procedures, please strike 
through those procedures that you do not wish to request, initial and date. 

General and Pediatrics 
1. Set technical factors to produce diagnostic images and adhere to ALARA 
2. Select continuous or pulsed fluoroscopy 
3. Determine appropriate exposure factors using the following: 

- Fixed kVp technique chart 
- Variable kVp technique chart 
- Calipers (to determine patient thickness for exposure) 

4. Select radiographic exposure factors: 
- Automatic Exposure Control (AEC) 
- kVp and mAs (manual) 

5. Operate radiographic unit and accessories 
6. Operate fluoroscopic unit and accessories 
7. Operate electronic imaging devices 
8. Perform post-processing on digital images in preparation for interpretation 
9. Use radiopaque anatomical side markers at the time of image acquisition 
10. Add electronic annotations on digital images to indicate position or other relevant information 
11. Select equipment and accessories for the examination requested 
12. Explain breathing instructions prior to making the exposure 
13. Position patient to demonstrate the desired anatomy using anatomical landmarks 
14. Modify exposure factors for circumstances such as involuntary motion, casts and splint, pathological conditions, 

contrast agent, or patient’s inability to cooperate 
15. Evaluate images for diagnostic quality 
16. Respond appropriately to digital exposure indicator values 
17. Determine corrective measures if image is not of diagnostic quality and take appropriate action 
18. Identify image artifacts and make appropriate corrections as needed 
19. Adapt radiographic and fluoroscopic procedures for patient condition and location 
20. Select appropriate geometric factors (e.g., SID, OID, focal spot size, tube angle 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – Radiology Technologist 

11/02/18 Page 4 

 

 

Radiology Technologist 
 

Acknowledgement of Practitioner 
I have requested only those privileges which by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated performance I 
am qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at designated Sacramento County Health Center sites. 

I understand that in exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Sacramento County Health Center policies 
and rules applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation. 

 
Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in emergency situations and in such situations my actions 
are governed by the applicable section of the appropriate policies or related documents. 

 

 
Radiology Technologist Signature Date 

 

Medical Director Recommendation 

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above-named applicant and make 
the following recommendation(s): 

 Recommend all requested privileges 
 Recommend requested privileges with the changes as noted below 

The following privilege(s) are granted with conditions and/or modifications: 
 

Privilege Condition/Modification/Not granted 
  

  

  

 
 

Medical Director Signature Date 

Health Attestation/Fitness for Duty 

By signing below, I hereby attest that I have completed pre-employment clearance requirements and have no physical or 
mental conditions that may affect my ability to perform (within the accepted standards of professional performance with or 
without reasonable accommodations) the essential functions of my position and/or the privileges I have requested. 

I agree, as evidenced by my signature, that the information provided is true and complete to the best of my knowledge and 
that omission and falsification of information may be cause for termination or my privileges and/or employment from the 
Sacramento County Health Center. 



PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Appendix D Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
   Registered Dental Hygienist in Alternative Practice  

Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

 

Qualifications 

To be eligible to apply to provide patient care with only indirect supervision, the applicant must be licensed as a 
Registered Dental Hygienist in Alternative Practice (RDHAP) by the CA Dental Board. 

 
Required previous experience 
Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate current competence and provision of care, 
reflective of the scope of privileges requested. 

 
Reappointment requirements 
To be eligible to renew privileges in patient care, the applicant must have current demonstrated competency and 
quality, reflective of the scope of privileges requested, for the past 24 months based on results of ongoing 
professional practice evaluation and outcomes. Evidence of current ability to perform requested privileges is 
required of all applicants for renewal of privileges. 

 

 Directions  
 

Applicant 
Check the “Requested” box for each privilege requested. Applicants have the burden of producing information 
deemed adequate by Sacramento County Health Center for a proper evaluation of current competence, current 
clinical activity, and other qualifications and for resolving any doubts related to qualifications for requested 
privileges. 

 
Medical Director 
Check the appropriate box for recommendation on the last page of this form. If recommended with conditions or 
not recommended, provide condition or explanation on the last page of this form. 

 
Other Requirements 
Note that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the appropriate 
equipment, license, staff, and other support required to provide the services defined in this document. Site- 
specific services may be defined in Sacramento County Health Center. 

 
This document focuses on defining qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical privileges. The 
applicant must also adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or accreditation requirements that the 
health center is obligated to meet. 



Request for Privileges 
Dental Hygienist 

Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

 
 

 

Applicant Name:    
 

Privileges Requested for 

Initial Appointment 

Reappointment 

 
Core Privileges 

 
 Registered Dental Hygienist in Alternative Practice: Core Privileges Requested – ADULT 

 

 Registered Dental Hygienist in Alternative Practice: Core Privileges Requested - PEDIATRIC/ADOLESCENT 

OFFICE USE ONLY 
 
Effective from:  _/  _/ 
 

  Effective 



Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

Core Procedure List 
This list is a sampling of procedures included in the core. This is not intended to be an all-encompassing list but 
rather, reflective of the categories/types of procedures included in the core. If you wish to exclude any 
procedures, please strike through those procedures that you do not wish to request, initial and date. 

 
 

Dental Hygienist-General and Pediatric 
 

1. Perform mouth mirror inspection of the oral cavity to include charting of obvious lesions, existing 
restorations, and missing teeth 

2. Phone in prescriptions at the direction of the dentist 
3. Receive and prepare patients for treatment, including seating, positioning of the chair, and placing napkin 
4. Complete Laboratory authorization forms 
5. Perform routine maintenance of dental equipment 
6. Perform sterilization and disinfection procedures 
7. Monitor and respond to post-surgical bleeding 
8. Polish coronal surfaces of teeth 
9. Transfer dental instruments 
10. Place amalgam for condensation by the dentist 
11. Remove sutures 
12. Dry canals 
13. Tie in archwires 
14. Apply topical fluoride 
15. Select and manipulate gypsums and waxes 
16. Place and remove dental dam 
17. Perform supragingival scaling 
18. Apply topical, therapeutic, and subgingival agents for the control of caries and periodontal disease 
19. Apply effective communication techniques with a variety of patients 
20. Provide patient preventive education and oral hygiene instruction 
21. Provide pre- and post-operative instructions 
22. Demonstrate knowledge of ethics/jurisprudence/patient confidentiality 
23. Demonstrate understanding of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Guidelines 
24. Identify features of rotary instruments 
25. Operate dental radiography equipment for the purpose of oral radiography 
26. Take Preliminary impressions 
27. Take and record Vital signs 
28. Monitor vital signs 
29. Maintain Emergency Kit 
30. Recognize and respond to basic medical emergencies 
31. Recognize and respond to basic dental emergencies 
32. Refer any screened patients with possible oral abnormalities to a dentist for a comprehensive 

examination, diagnosis, and treatment plan 



Sacramento County Health Center  
 

8 
BH Privilege Application updated 1/11/2023 

Acknowledgement of Practitioner 
I have requested only those privileges which by education, training, current experience, and 
demonstrated performance I am qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at designated 
Sacramento County Health Center sites. 

 
I understand that in exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Sacramento 
County Health Center policies and rules applicable generally and any applicable to the particular 
situation. 

 
Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in emergencies, and in such 
situations; my actions are governed by the applicable section of the appropriate policies or related 
documents. 

 

 
Dental Hygienist/Assistant Signature Date 

 
 
 

Medical Director Recommendation 

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above-named 
applicant and make the following recommendation(s): 

 Recommend all requested privileges. 
 Recommend requested privileges with the changes as noted below. 

The following privilege(s) are granted with conditions and/or modifications: 
 

Privilege Condition/Modification/Not granted 
  
  

  
 

 

Medical Director Signature Date  

Health Attestation/Fitness for Duty 

By signing below, I hereby attest that I have completed pre-employment clearance requirements and have no 
physical or mental conditions that may affect my ability to perform (within the accepted standards of professional 
performance with or without reasonable accommodations) the essential functions of my position and/or the 
privileges I have requested. 
 
I agree, as evidenced by my signature, that the information provided is true and complete to the best of my 
knowledge and that omission and falsification of information may be cause for termination or my privileges 
and/or employment from the Sacramento County Health Center. 



Sacramento County Health Center  
 

9 
BH Privilege Application updated 1/11/2023 

 
 
Attachment E                     Application for Clinical Privileges – Behavioral Health 

 Licensed Clinical Social Worker 
 Associate Clinical Social Worker 
 Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist 
 Associate Marriage and Family Therapist 

 

 

Qualifications 
Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW) 
To be eligible to apply to provide patient care with only indirect supervision in behavioral health. The applicant 
must have current California State LCSW License issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences.  
 
 
Associate Clinical Social Worker (ACSW) 
To be eligible to apply to provide patient care with direct supervision by a licensed behavioral health practitioner. 
The applicant must have current California State ACSW registered number issued by the Board of Behavioral 
Sciences.  
 
 
Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist (LMFT) 
To be eligible to apply to provide patient care with only indirect supervision in behavioral health. The applicant 
must have current California State LMFT License issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences.  
 
 
Associate Marriage and Family Therapist (AMFT) 
To be eligible to apply to provide patient care with direct supervision by a licensed behavioral health practitioner. 
The applicant must have current California State AMFT registered number issued by the Board of Behavioral 
Sciences.  
 
 
Required previous experience 
Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate current competence and provision of care, 
reflective of the scope of privileges requested.  
 
 
Reappointment requirements 
To be eligible to renew privileges in primary care, the applicant must have current demonstrated competency and 
quality, reflective of the scope of privileges requested, for the past 12 months based on results of ongoing 
professional practice evaluation and outcomes. Evidence of current ability to perform requested privileges is 
required of all applicants for renewal of privileges. 
 



Sacramento County Health Center  
 

10 
BH Privilege Application updated 1/11/2023 

 
Directions 
 
Applicant 
Check the “Requested” box for each privilege requested. Applicants have the burden of producing information 
deemed adequate by Sacramento County Health Center for a proper evaluation of current competence, current 
clinical activity, and other qualifications and for resolving any doubts related to qualifications for requested 
privileges. 
 
 
Medical Director 
Check the appropriate box for recommendation on the last page of this form. If recommended with conditions or 
not recommended, provide condition or explanation on the last page of this form. 
 
 
Other Requirements 
Note: that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the appropriate 
equipment, license, staff, and other support required to provide the services defined in this document. Site- 
specific services will be defined by the Sacramento County Health Center. 
While this document defines qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical privileges, the applicant 
must also adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or accreditation requirements that the Sacramento 
County Health Center is obligated to meet. 



Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

Request for Privileges 
 

 

 
Applicant Name: ________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Privileges Requested: 
 
Initial Appointment  
 
Reappointment          
  
 
Core Privileges 

 Licensed Clinical Social Worker/Marriage and Family Therapist Core Privileges Requested - ADULT 
Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide consultation to adult patients with symptoms of mental illness and/or substance 
use.   Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with emergent behavioral health conditions. The core 
privileges in this specialty include the services on the Behavioral Health Services list and such other services that are 
extensions of the same techniques and skills. This includes behavioral health services for Medication Assisted Treatment.  
 
 

 Licensed Clinical Social Worker/Marriage and Family Therapist Core Privileges Requested - 
PEDIATRIC/ADOLESCENT 

(Health Center based clinicians) 
Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide consultation to child and adolescent patients with symptoms of mental illness 
and/or substance use.  Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of child and adolescent patients with emergent 
behavioral health conditions. The core privileges in this specialty include the services on the Behavioral Health Services 
list and such other services that are extensions of the same techniques and skills. This includes behavioral health services 
for Medication Assisted Treatment. 
 

 Licensed Clinical Social Worker/Marriage and Family Therapist Core Privileges Requested - 
PEDIATRIC/ADOLESCENT 

(School based clinicians) 
Provide direct mental health services including counseling, consultation, mental health evaluations, treatment, mental 
health assessments and collateral case management for students, parents, and families; identify mental health and 
behavioral needs of students; provide clinical assessments, observation diagnosis, and develop treatment plans for 
students with emotional or behavioral needs.  
Serve as a member of the school team and integrate within the school-wide culture and system;  Provide behavioral 
health support within a multi-tiered intervention framework and engage in prevention and intervention activities; 
Provide mental health and wellness related support services to district staff and educational teams, including case 
consultation and advice concerning student status, diagnosis, and treatment;  Develop and maintain collaborative and 
effective working relationships with students, families, district, and County Office staff, and community partners. 
The core privileges in this specialty include the services on the Behavioral Health Services list and such other services that 
are extensions of the same techniques and skills. This includes behavioral health services for Medication Assisted 
Treatment. 
 
 
 

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Effective from: _/ _/   

Effective to: / /   



Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

 Associate Clinical Social Worker/Associate Marriage and Family Therapist Core Privileges Requested - 
PEDIATRIC/ADOLESCENT-(School Based Clinicians) 

Under the direct supervision of a Licensed Clinical Social Worker or Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist, provide 
outpatient mental health therapy as part of a school-based mental health and wellness team within Sacramento County’s 
continuum of care, while completing supervised clinical fieldwork requirement;  Provide comprehensive, strength based, 
culturally competent, trauma informed, flexible, effective mental health services and support to eligible at-risk children, 
youth, and families; Assist in the development and delivery of school-wide mental health and wellness interventions, 
programs, and trainings; Work closely with care teams at all sites, including but not limited to, graduate clinical interns 
and peer specialists. Provide task supervision to some interns as assigned. 
 
 

 Licensed Clinical Social Worker/Marriage and Family Therapist/Associate Clinical Social 
Workers/Associate Marriage and Family Therapist Core Privileges Requested - OTHER 

Please list other activities or specialized services you wish to provide for Health Center patients/School Based patients. 

 * Verification of competency required. 

I request Privileging in: 
 
                1.__________________________________________________ 
 
                2.__________________________________________________ 
 
                3.__________________________________________________ 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

The “Core Procedure Lists” below are a sampling of procedures included in the respective cores. The lists are not intended to be 
all-encompassing lists but rather reflective of the categories/types of procedures included in the cores. 

 
 
If you wish to exclude any procedures, please strike through those procedures that you do not wish to request, initial, 
and date. 
 
Core ADULT Behavioral Health Services List 
A LCSW/LMFT may be granted privileges to perform brief, focused, and targeted therapeutic services included in the 
following modalities: 

1. Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide consultation to adult patients with symptoms of mental illness 
and/or substance use  

2. Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with symptoms of emergent behavioral health 
conditions  

3. Arrange adult individual, group, and family interventions or therapy for treatment of focus 
4. Provide care coordination within the health center and with other agencies 
5. Provide substance use assessment, individual therapy, and referrals to structured group therapy 
6. Coordinate Behavioral Health Services for Medication Assisted Treatment 
7. Provide linkages to appropriate support services 
8. Consult with Primary Care Services medical staff 
9. Provide behavioral health education to patients, family members, and other agencies 
 
 

Core PEDIATRIC/ADOLESCENT Behavioral Health Services List (Health Center Based) 
A LCSW/LMFT may be granted privileges to perform brief, focused, and targeted therapeutic services included in the 
following modalities: 

1. Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide consultation to child and adolescent patients with symptoms of 
mental illness and/or substance use  

2. Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of child and adolescent patients with symptoms of emergent 
behavioral health conditions  

3. Arrange child and adolescent individual, group, and family interventions or therapy for treatment of focus 
4. Provide care coordination within the health center and with other agencies 
5. Provide substance use assessment, individual therapy, and referrals to structured group therapy 
6. Coordinate Behavioral Health Services for Medication Assisted Treatment 
7. Provide linkages to appropriate support services 
8. Consult with Primary Care Services medical staff 
9. Provide behavioral health education to patients, family members, and other agencies 

 
 
 



Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

Core PEDIATRIC/ADOLESCENT Behavioral Health Services List (School Based) 
A LCSW/LMFT may be granted privileges to perform brief, focused, and targeted therapeutic services included in the 
following modalities: 

1. Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide consultation to child and adolescent patients with symptoms of 
mental illness and/or substance use  

2. Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of child and adolescent patients with symptoms of emergent 
behavioral health conditions  

3. Provide child and adolescent individual, group, and family interventions or therapy for treatment of focus 
4. Provide mental health and wellness related support services to district staff and educational teams 
5. Provide substance use assessment, individual therapy, and referrals to structured group therapy 
6. Coordinate Behavioral Health Services for Medication Assisted Treatment 
7. Provide linkages to appropriate support services 
8. Serve as connector between the County Office of Education, County Office of Health Services, district, 

school and community organizations 
9. Provide behavioral health education to patients, family members, and other agencies 
10. Serve as a resource to school site staff regarding mental health services 
11. Attend and participate in assigned meetings, committees, conferences, in-services, and special events 
12. Collect data and prepare a variety of reports, including data entry and retrieval related to grant 

deliverables and evaluation 
13. Assess the need and deliver training to members of the educational team, parents, guardians, 

caregivers, and community agencies as appropriate 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

Acknowledgement of Practitioner 
I have requested only those privileges which by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated performance I am 
qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at designated Sacramento County Health Center sites.   
 
I understand that in exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Sacramento County Health Center policies and 
rules applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation. 
 
Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency. In an emergency, my actions are governed by the 
applicable section of the appropriate policies or related documents. 
 

Health Attestation/Fitness for Duty 
 

By signing below, I hereby attest that I have completed pre-employment clearance requirements and have no physical or mental 
conditions that may affect my ability to perform (within the accepted standards of professional performance with or without 
reasonable accommodations) the essential functions of my position and/or the privileges I have requested. 
 
I agree, as evidenced by my signature, that the information provided is true and complete to the best of my knowledge and that 
omission and falsification of information may be cause for termination or my privileges and/or employment from the Sacramento 
County Health Center.  
 
 
_____________________________________________                     __________________________________________  
Provider Signature                                                                             Date 
 

 
 
Medical Director Recommendation 
 
I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above-named applicant and have 
made the following recommendation(s): 
 

 Recommend all requested privileges 
 Recommend requested privileges with the changes as noted below 
 

     The following privilege(s) are granted with conditions and/or modifications:  

Privilege Condition/Modification/Not granted 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  
   
 

                                               ________________________________________________________________________________                                    ____________________________________________________________________ 

Medical Director Signature                                                                     Date 
    

 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Appendix E 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – RN 
06/05/2018 Page 1 

 

 

  Registered Nurse  
 

Qualifications 
To be eligible to apply for clinical core privileges in primary care the initial applicant must have a valid and current Registered 
Nurse license issued by the State of California Board of Registered Nursing and current Life Support Training Certificate (CPR). 
Required previous experience 
Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate current competence and provision of care, reflective of the 
scope of privileges requested. 
Reappointment requirements 
To be eligible to renew core privileges in primary care, the applicant must have demonstrated competency and quality for the 
past 24 months, reflective of the scope of privileges requested which is based on results of ongoing professional practice 
evaluation and outcomes. Evidence of current ability to perform the privileges requested is required of all applicants for 
renewal of privileges. 
 

 Directions  
Applicant 
For each privilege requested, check the applicable Core Privilege box(es). Applicants have the burden of producing information 
deemed adequate by Sacramento County Health Center for a proper evaluation of current competence, current clinical activity, 
and other qualifications and for resolving any doubts related to qualifications for requested privileges. 
 
Nurse Supervisor 
Check the appropriate box for recommendation on the last page of this form. If recommended with conditions or not 
recommended, provide condition or explanation on the last page of this form. 
Other Requirements 
Note that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the appropriate equipment, license, 
staff, and other support required to provide the services defined in this document. Site- specific services may be defined in 
Sacramento County Health Center. 
This document is focused on defining qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical privileges. The applicant must also 
adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or accreditation requirements that the health center is obligated to meet. 
 
Acknowledgement of Practitioner 
I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated performance I 
am qualified to perform and wish to exercise at designated Sacramento County Health Center sites. 
I understand that in exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Sacramento County Health Center policies and 
rules applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation. 
Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation my actions are 
governed by the applicable section of the appropriate policies or related documents. 

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Before:  0.26", Space
Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:  Exactly 13.9 pt, Tab stops: 
3.39", Left +  7.24", Left



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – RN 
06/05/2018 Page 2 

 

 

Registered Nurse  
Request for Privileges 

  Registered Nurse 
 
Applicant Name:    
 

Privileges Requested for Initial Appointment Reappointment 
Core Privileges 
 Primary Care Core Privileges Requested 
Under the guidance of supervising nurse, evaluate, treat, and provide consultation to adult patients with illnesses, diseases, and 
functional disorders of the circulatory, respiratory, endocrine, metabolic, musculoskeletal, hematopoietic, gastroenteric, and 
genitourinary systems. Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with emergent conditions consistent with policy 
regarding emergencies. The core privileges in this specialty include the procedures on the procedure list and such other 
procedures that are extensions of the same techniques and skills. 
 
 Med/Psych Core Privileges Requested 
As noted above for Primary Care AND 
Under the guidance of supervising nurse, evaluate, treat, and provide consultation to adolescent and adult patients with 
psychiatric disorders. Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with emergent conditions consistent with policy 
regarding emergencies. 
 
 Pediatric/Adolescent Medicine Core Privileges Requested 
Under the guidance of supervising nurse, evaluate, and treat pediatric patients up to the age of 18 with common illnesses, 
injuries, or disorders. This includes the care of the normal newborn as well as the uncomplicated premature infant equal to or 
greater than 36 weeks gestation. Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with emergent conditions consistent 
with policy regarding emergencies. The core privileges in this specialty include the procedures on the procedure list and such 
other procedures that are extensions of the same techniques and skills. 
 
 Registered Nurse Core Privileges Requested - OTHER 
Please list other activities or specialized procedures you wish to provide for Health Center patients. * Verification of 
competency required. 
I request Privileging in: 
 
1.   
 

2.   
 

3.   

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Effective from:  _/  _/   

Effective to:  / /  



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – RN 
06/05/2018 Page 3 

 

 

Registered Nurse 
Core Procedure List 
 

This list is a sampling of procedures included in the core. This is not intended to be an all-encompassing list but rather reflective 
of the categories/types of procedures included in the core. If you wish to exclude any procedures, please strike through those 
procedures that you do not wish to request, initial and date. 
 

General 
1. Perform history and physical exam 
2. Maintain airway and/or trach care 
3. Recognize unstable patient, initiate and participate in Basic Life Support 
4. Administer/titrate oxygen 
5. Perform pulse oximetry 
6. Measure temperature, obtain accurate vital signs 
7. Recognize and address abnormalities 
8. Prepare and administer medications 
9. Assess and address physical status and needs 
10. Assess and address immunologic status, including immunization status 
11. Assess and address pain and pain management 
 
 
Pediatrics 
1. Perform history and physical exam 
2. Maintain airway and/or trach care 
3. Recognize unstable pediatric client, initiate and participate in Basic Life 
Support 
4. Administer/titrate oxygen 
5. Perform pulse oximetry 
6. Measure temperature, obtain accurate vital signs and demonstrate 
knowledge of pediatric norms 
7. Obtain specimens on child 
8. Calculate safe pediatric dose of medication 
9. Prepare and administer medications 
10. Assess and address age specific developmental needs of infants and children 
11. Assess and address physical status and needs 
12. Assess and address immunologic status, including immunization status 
13. Assess and address pain and pain management 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – RN 
06/05/2018 Page 4 

 

 

Registered Nurse 
 

Acknowledgement of Practitioner 
I have requested only those privileges which by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated performance I am 
qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at designated Sacramento County Health Center sites. 
 
I understand that in exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Sacramento County Health Center policies and 
rules applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation. 
 
Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation my actions are 
governed by the applicable section of the appropriate policies or related documents. 

 

 

 

Provider Signature Date 
 
Medical Director Recommendation 
 
I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above-named applicant and make the 
following recommendation(s): 
 Recommend all requested privileges 
 Recommend requested privileges with the changes as noted below 
 
The following privilege(s) are granted with conditions and/or modifications: 
 

Privilege Condition/Modification/Not granted 
  

  

  

 
 
 

Fitness for Duty/Health Attestation 
By signing below, I hereby attest that I have completed pre-employment clearance requirements and have no physical or 
mental conditions that may affect my ability to perform (within the accepted standards of professional performance with or 
without reasonable accommodations) the essential functions of my position and/or the privileges I have requested. 

I agree, as evidenced by my signature, that the information provided is true and complete to the best of my knowledge and 
that omission and falsification of information may be cause for termination or my privileges and/or employment from the 
Sacramento County Health Center. 

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Before:  0.26", Line
spacing:  Exactly 13.9 pt, Tab stops:  3.39", Left +  7.24",

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Before:  0.26", Line
spacing:  Exactly 13.9 pt, Tab stops:  3.39", Left +  7.24",

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Before:  0.26", Line
spacing:  Exactly 13.9 pt, Tab stops:  3.39", Left +  7.24",

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Before:  0.26", Line
spacing:  Exactly 13.9 pt, Tab stops:  3.39", Left +  7.24",



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – RN 
06/05/2018 Page 5 

 

 

Medical Director Signature Date 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Nursing Staff Clinical Competence Summary 

PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Attachment 
 

03/23/18 1 

 

 

 
 

Provider Name:     
 

License:     
Eval. MM/YY 
(2 yr. period):     

 

Instructions: Provide an evaluation of the practitioner in each of the areas below and check boxes in the left hand 
column to indicate which information sources were used to make the assessment. 

 

Improvement 
Needed* 

Meets 
Expectations 

I. Patient Care: Compassionate, appropriate and effective ☐ ☐ 
☐ Direct Observation of Care 
☐ Transfer of Service or Care 

☐ Assist with Care 
☐ Call coverage 

Comments: 

☐ Use of consultations ☐ Student/Resident Evaluations  
☐ Satisfaction Data ☐ Morbidity/Mortality/CQI Reviews  

 
 

II. Medical/Clinical Knowledge: Demonstrates knowledge of established ☐ ☐ 
and evolving sciences and applies it to  
 and education of 
others. 

☐ Malpractice History ☐ Blood Utilization Comments: 
☐ Infection Control ☐ Invasive Procedures Review 

 

☐ Clinical Activity Report ☐ Utilization Management 
 

☐ Complications ☐ Teaching Conferences 
 

☐ Board Recertification ☐ Drug Utilization 
 

☐ Grand Rounds/CME 
Presentations Given 

☐ Prospective/Concurrent Case    
Management Discussions 

 

 

III. Practice-Based Learning and Improvement: Uses scientific evidence ☐ ☐ 
and methods to investigate, evaluate, improve care 

☐ Teaching Conferences ☐ Participation in performance Comments: 
☐ CME Attended improvement activities 

 

 
 

IV. Interpersonal and Communication Skills: Establishes and maintains ☐ ☐ 
professional relationships with patients, families and peers. 

☐ Patient complaints ☐ Direct Observation of Care Comments: 
☐ Satisfaction Data ☐ Transfer of Service or Care 

 

 
 

V. Systems-Based Practice: Understand the contexts and systems in ☐ ☐ 
which care is provided and applies this knowledge 

☐ CME Attended ☐ Medical Record Documentations Comments: 
☐ Attendance at Provider and/or Staff Meetings 

 

 
 

VI. Professionalism: Demonstrates a commitment to professional 
development, ethical practice, diversity and responsibility to patients, 
profession and society 

 

☐ Incident Reports
☐ Continuing Education 
Relevant to 

☐ Clinical Publications
Practice 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Nursing Staff Clinical Competence Summary 

PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Attachment 
 

03/23/18 2 

 

 

☐ ☐ 

 
Comments: 

 

 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Nursing Staff Clinical Competence Summary 

PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Attachment 
 

03/23/18 3 

 

 

 

*Action Plan for Improvements Needed: 
 
 

 

 

 
Sacramento County Health Center Outpatient Case Involvement 

 
Have Health Center privileges been utilized in the past two years?  ☐ Yes ☐ No 

If yes, estimate number of cases for past two 
years 

☐ 1-5 ☐ 6-25 ☐ 26- 
50 

☐ 51-100 ☐ more than 100 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Supervisor  Signature  Date 
 
 

Signed copy will be forwarded to ASO staff responsible for credentialing. 



PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Attachment 
 

Revised 11/09/2018 

 

 

 
County of Sacramento 
Department of Health Services 
Primary Health Division 
Sacramento County Health Center 

 
 
 

HEALTH ATTESTATION STATEMENT 
 
 

By signing below, I hereby attest that I have completed pre-employment clearance 
requirements and have no physical or mental conditions that may affect my ability to perform 
(within the accepted standards of professional performance with or without reasonable 
accommodations) the essential functions of my position. 

I agree, as evidenced by my signature, that the information provided is true and complete to 
the best of my knowledge. 

 
 
 
 

Employee Name:    

Employee Signature:    

Date:   



AAttachment G  

 

Attachment HG:                                                                                                                             County of Sacramento 
DHHS 

PHS/Clinic Services 
MA Skills Checklist 

Employee Name:      Program:      

Skills Assessment Performed By:  Date of Review: 
Standard Blood and Body Fluid Precautions            

Sterile Technique            

Prepare Sterile Tray            

Pap Smear Set up            

Assist with Pap            

Specimen Collection            

Assist with Surgeries/Biopsies            

Wound Care and Dressing Changes            

Documentation            

Assist with Suture/Staple Removal            

Documentation            

Proper Technique for Ear Lavage            

Pharmacy Refill Requests            

Hearing Screening            

EMR            

Enter Vitals            

Height/Weight in lbs            

Documentation of all services            

MA Note            

Scheduling            

Health History            

LMP            

Tobacco Use            

Pain Scale            

Emergencies            

Assist with Fractures            

Assist with Control of Bleeding            

Assist with Burns            

Initiate and assist with Cardiac/Respiratory Arrest            

Assist with Choking            

Assist with Codes            

Security Desk Phone Number            

Poison Control Phone Number            

Certification            

Current CPR            

Audiometry            

Phlebotomy            

HIPAA            

Compliant with HIPAA regulations            

Referrals            

Case Management            

SPIRIT            

Interagency            

Fax Cover Sheet            

Referral Handbook            

            

            



 

 

County of Sacramento DHHS 
PHS/Clinic Services 
MA Skills Checklist 

Employee Name:      

Program:      
Skills Assessment Performed By:      

Date:      

 Independent Requires 
Supervision 

Has Not 
Performed 

Does Not Pertain 
to Level of 

Certification 

Comment 

Lab Tests      

Vision testing/Snellen      

Pregnancy testing      

Urinalysis:      

Collection tubes      

Patient Instruction      

Pap Smear, processing of smear samples      

Throat swab      

Venipuncture      

Capillary blood collection      

Guaic stool collection      

Wound swabs      

Collection tubes      

Sputum collection      

Specimen preservation      

Labeling of specimens      

Lab maintenance      

General Duties      

Vital Signs      

Accurate body positioning for blood pressure     

Manual blood pressure check      

Pulse oximetry      

Stethoscope      

Orderly vital station      

ECG machine      

Lead placement      

Scale      

Breathing treatment/nebulizer      

Glucose check, proper administration      

Intramuscular Injections, proper administration     

Intradermal Injections, proper adminisitrationadministration     

Subcutaneous Injections, proper administration     



 

 

County of Sacramento DHHS 
PHS/Clinic Services 
MA Skills Checklist 

Employee Name:      

Program:      
Skills Assessment Performed By:      

Date:      

 Independent Requires 
Supervision 

Has Not 
Performed 

Does Not Pertain 
to Level of 

Certification 

Comment 

Tuberculin skin test, proper placement      

Wheelchairs      

Sterilization/Autoclave      

Hemoglobin      

Stretchers      

INR finger stick      

Patient education as instructed      
      
      

Exam Rooms:      

Cleanliness      

Paper change      

Disinfect      

Stocked with supplies      

Use of oxygen tank      

Routine level check      

Sharps container      

Standard blood and body fluid precautions     

Sterile technique      

Prepare sterile tray      

Pap smear set up      

Assist with Pap      

Specimen collection      

Assist with surgeries/biopsies      

Wound care and dressing changes      

Documentation      

Assist with suture/staple removal      

Documentation      

Proper Technique for ear lavage      

Pharmacy refill requests      

Hearing screening      

EMR      



 

 

THIS IS A REPEAT OF PAGE 
1 CAN WE DELETE THIS 

PAGE? 
County of Sacramento DHHS 

PHS/Clinic Services 
MA Skills Checklist 

Employee Name:      

Program:      
Skills Assessment Performed By:      

Date:      

 Independent Requires 
Supervision 

Has Not 
Performed 

Does Not Pertain 
to Level of 

Certification 

Comment 

Enter Vitals      

Height/Weight in lbs      

Documentation of all services      

MA Note      

Scheduling      

Health history      

LMP      

Tobacco use      

Pain scale      

Scheduling      

Emergencies      
Assist with fractures      

Assist with control of bleeding      

Assist with burns      

Initiate and assist with Cardiac/Respiratory Arrest     

Assist with choking      

Assist with codes      

Security Desk Phone Number      

Poison Control Phone Number      

Certification      
Current CPR      

Audiometry      

Phlebotomy      

HIPAA      
Compliant with HIPAA regulations      

Referrals      
Case Management      

SPIRIT      

Interagency      

Fax cover sheet      

Referral handbook      



 

 

Other Duties as Assigned      



 

 

County of Sacramento DHHS 
PHS/Clinic Services 
MA Skills Checklist 

Employee Name:      

Program:      
Skills Assessment Performed By:      

Date:      

 Independent Requires 
Supervision 

Has Not 
Performed 

Does Not Pertain 
to Level of 

Certification 

Comment 

Order supplies      

Answer phones and direct calls      

Filing      

Organizing medical records      

Computer skills/E-mail      

Organized work station      

Med Room maintenance      

 



07-05-1  

 
County of Sacramento 

Department of Health Services 
Division of Primary Health Services 

Policy and Procedure 

Policy Issuer 
(Unit/Program) Clinic Services 

Policy Number 07-05 
Effective Date 01-31-12 
Revision Date 01-26-2102-

018-234 
Title: Credentialing and Privileges Functional Area: Personnel 

Approved By: Susmita Mishra, MD, Medical Director 

 
Policy 
Credentialing and privileges policies and procedures shall address the process for appointments 
and reappointments of mMedical Sstaff and licensed contracted staff for Primary Health Clinical 
Services at the Sacramento County Health Center (SCHC). 
Credentialing standards and criteria are established commensurate with those of the National 
Council for Quality. Credentialing and privileging is completed in compliance with state and 
ab=nd federal laws and regulations and in alignment with the Sacramento County Policy 601: 
Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation. SCHC does not exclude, deny benefits to, or 
otherwise discriminate against any person based on protected characteristics which include 
race, color, national origin, religion, age, disability, gender identity; gender expression; sex, 
sexual orientation, political affiliation, genetic information, medical or mental health condition. 
The University of California, Davis (UCD), per contractual agreement, credentials licensed 
providers working under contract with SCHC from the following UCD departments:   

• Department of Internal Medicine 
• Department of Psychiatry 
• Department of Pediatrics 
• Department of Family Medicine 
• Department of Radiology 
• School of Medicine 
• School of Nursing 
• Department of Psychology 

The Co-Applicant Board has delegated the responsibility of credentialing and privileging to the 
SCHC Clinic Services Medical Director. In turn, the Medical Director has delegated 
responsibility for some credentialing to other entities, with final approval of the SCHC Medical 
Director and subject to CAB oversight. 

• Academic institutions, (including but not limited to UC Davis, Sutter Family Medicine 
Residency, and Walden University,) who place licensed or unlicensed trainees at SCHC via 
a contract or agreement, utilize their own procedures to credential trainees.  

• Each temporary medical staffing (“registry”) agency credentials the clinical staff they provide 
to work at SCHC. 

• The Sacramento Physicians' Initiative to Reach out, Innovate and Teach (SPIRIT) project 
and the SCHC jointly credential volunteer providers via agreement with the SPIRIT 
program. 

• SCHC directly credentials other volunteers. 
• SCHC directly credentials County employees. 

The Medical Director of SCHC privileges all clinical staff. 



07-05-2  

 
All County employees, acting within the scope of their licensure and employment, are insured, 
protected, and defended for their actions by the County. 
 

B.  
C.A. Purpose  

Credentialing and privileging are processes of verification of education, training, and 
experience as well asand formal recognition and attestation that licensed independent 
practitioners, or other licensed or certified staffpractitioners (OCLP), and other clinical 
staff, and volunteers are both qualified and competent to carry out their role at the Health 
CenterSCHC. Privileging provides permission for licensed an independent licensed 
practitioner’s (LIP), or other licensed or certifiedOCLPs practitioner’s scope of practice, in 
other words, to provide the clinical services within their scope of practice he or she may 
provide at the Sacramento County Health CenterSCHC.  

 
D.  
B. Definitions: 

Sacramento County Health Center uses the following terms as defined by HRSA in 
Policy Information Notice PIN-2002-22 for numbers 1 – 6 below. The lLanguage below is 
verbatim from that source. For details of what is in scope for each Licensed Independent 
Practitioners category, refer to their respective board (See Attachment A).   

1. Credentialing: The process of assessing and confirming the qualifications of a 
licensed or certified health care practitioner. 

2. Privileging/Competency: The process of authorizing a licensed or certified health 
care practitioner’s specific scope and content of patient care services. This is 
performed in conjunction with an evaluation of an individual’s clinical 
qualifications and/or performance. 

3. A.    Licensed or Certified Health Care PractitionerLicensed Independent 
Practitioner (LIP): an individual required to be licensed, registered, or certified by 
the State, commonwealth or territory in which a Health Center is located. These 
individuals include, but are not limited to, physicians, dentists, registered nurses, 
and others required to be licensed, registered, or certified (e.g., laboratory 
technicians, social workers, medical assistants, licensed practical nurses, dental 
hygienists, nutritionists). “Licensed or certified health care practitioners” can be 
divided into two categories: a) licensed independent practitioners (LIPs) and b) 
other licensed or certified practitioners.An individual permitted by law to provide 
patient care without direction or supervision, within the scope of the individual’s 
license and consistent with individually granted clinical privileges. This category 
includes physicians, psychologists, nurse practitioners (NP), clinical fellows, 
physician assistants (PA),registered dental hygienists in alternative practice 
(RDHAP), licensed clinical social workers (LCSW) and licensed marriage and 
family therapists (LMFT). For details of what is in scope for each LIP category, 
refer to their board (See Attachment A). Care and Services v Patient Care.  
Definition in regs?  Refer to regs?  See assessment form below page 43 

1.4. Licensed Independent Practitioners (LIP): physician, dentist, nurse practitioner, 
and nurse midwife or any other “individual permitted by law and the organization 

Commented [SH1]: Refer to specific regulations.  Refer to 
specific policies. 

Commented [R2R1]: Maybe we can say, “refer to each 
LIP’s licensing board for a list of duties they can provide 
without direction or supervision.” 
Instead of doing all of this research and potentially including 
it in the policy. What each “provider” is allowed to do is 
beyond the scope of this policy (in my opinion) 



07-05-3  

to provide care and services without direction or supervision, within the scope of 
the individual’s license and consistent with individually granted clinical privileges” 
(from Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations’(JCAHO) 
2002-2003 Comprehensive Accreditation Manual for Ambulatory Care). It is the 
Health Center that should determine which individuals (including staff that may 
not be covered under Federal Tort Claims Act such as volunteers, certain part-
time contractors, medical residents, and locum tenens) meet this definition based 
on law and the organization’s policy. 
PA: Sharon look up.  RDHAP – Robyn will provide (placed in the folder). 
California Medical Board – Robyn; PsycholgistsPsychologists = ???; Psychiatry, 
LMFT, LCSW, NP= we have document Nurse Practitioner Standards or some 
such….   If not CA med Board – individual MD (internal, family, peds, psychiatry), 
DO,  

2. B.    Other Licensed or Certified Practitioners (OLCP): An individual who is 
licensed, registered, or certified but is not permitted by law to provide patient care 
services without direction or supervision. Examples include, but are not limited to, 
laboratory technicians, social workers, medical assistants, licensed practical 
nurses, dental hygienists An individual who is licensed, registered, or certified by 
an accredited academic institution or a board recognized by the Sstate of 
California, but who is not permitted by law to provide patient care services without 
direction or supervision. This category includes but is not limited to nurses 
(regulation), , radiology technologists (regulations). For details of what is in scope 
for each OLCP category, refer to their board (See Attachment A). 

5.  
3. C.  Licensed Independent Practitioner (LIP): An individual permitted by law to 

provide care and services without direction or supervision, within the scope of the 
individual’s license and consistent with individually granted clinical privileges. This 
category includes physicians, nurse practitioners, clinical fellows, physician 
assistants, and Registered Dental Hygienists in Alternative Practice (RDHAPs). 

Other Licensed or Certified Practitioners (OLCP): An individual who is licensed, 
registered, or certified but is not permitted by law to provide patient care services 
without direction or supervision. This category includes nurses, licensed clinical 
social workers, and licensed marriage and family therapists. 

OOther Clinical Staff (OCS): An individual who is not licensed or registered but is 
permitted per clinical policy to provide patient care services within their 
professional scope of work (under direct supervision of a licensed professional. 
This category includesd but is not limited to medical assistants (MA), dental 
assistants, associate clinical social workers, and associate marriage family 
therapists .  What is patient care if they are not licensed? 

6.  
7. Volunteers and Trainees: There are three types of volunteers at the SCHC. 

a. An individual permitted by law to provide care and services without 
direction or supervision, within the scope of the individual’s license, and 
consistent with individually granted clinical privileges, and as listed in the 
contract. i.e., SPIRIT volunteers.   

b. An individual who is not licensed, registered, or certified but is permitted 
by clinical policy to provide patient support services (e.g., register patients, 
check eligibility for health insurance, link patients to external services) 



07-05-4  

under the direction of the SCHC clinical staff (e.g., Volunteer Office 
Assistants).  How do support services vary from care and services? 

c. An individual participating in a recognized academic program with which 
SCHC has a formal relationship, may provide direct clinical services as a 
learner under the supervision of SCHC clinical staff and their preceptor 
within a scope of duties defined by contract. These learners include 
medical residents, medical students, nursing students, nurse practitioner 
students, physician assistant students, and MA candidates, and associate 
mental health clinicians. and OCS, . 

6. Volunteers and Trainees: There are three types of volunteers at the 
SCHCacramento County Health Center. 

An individual permitted by law to provide care and services without direct direction or 
supervision, within the scope of the individual’s license and consistent with 
individually granted clinical privileges and as listed in the contract., i.e., SPIRIT 
vVolunteers. 

An individual who is not licensed, registered, or certified but is permitted by  Cclinical 
policy to provide patient support services under the direction of the SCHC 
cClinical Sstaff, i.e., Volunteer Medical Assistants through the County Volunteer 
Office. 

 
c) An individual participating in a recognized academic program with which SCHC 

has a formal relationship, may provide direct clinical services as a learner under 
the supervision of SCHC clinical staff and their preceptor within a specifically 
defined scope of duties. These learners include medical residents, medical 
students, nursing students, nurse practitioner students, physician assistant 
students, and and MA candidates and OCS, and OCS (OSCs), among others. 

E.  An individual participating in a recognized academic program with which SCHC 
has a formal relationship, may provide direct clinical services as a learner under 
the supervision of SCHC clinical staff and their preceptor within a specifically 
defined scope of duties. These learners include medical residents, medical 
students, nursing students, nurse practioner students, physician assistant 
students, and MA candidates (OSCs), among others. 

8. Primary Source Verification (PSV)::  Verification by the original source of a 
specific  credential to determine the accuracy of a qualification reported by an 
individual health care practitioner. PSV is completed, at a minimum, for the 
following (see Attachment A for details by position classification).:  Are all of these 
things on breeze?  Different sources?  This isn’t part of the definitions. 

a.  
a. Current licensure; 
b. Relevant education, training, or experience as pertaining to the 

classification or licensing boards  
c. Current competence; and 
d. Health fitness 

9. F.  Secondary Source Verification (SSV): Uses Mmethods to verify credentials 
when PSV is    not required.  SSV not defined.  When it is done is not part of the 
definition.   SSV is completed for the following: 

a. Government issued picture identification; 



07-05-5  

b. Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) (as applicable); 
c. Hospital Admitting Privileges (as applicable); 
d. Immunization such as current flu shot,  and Hepatitis B and COVID-19 

vVaccine status.;  
e. Tuberculosis clearance;  
f. Life Support Training (as applicable); and 
g. National Practitioner Data Bank Query (NPDB) (as applicable). 

   
Procedures: 
Credentialing verification occurs by obtaining primary source or secondary source verification in 
accordance with accepted national verification sites and standards. Credentialing documents for 
verification requiring verification and the verification sites for licensed staff (physicians, dentists, 
NPs, p 
 
Psychologists, registered nurses (RN), licensed vocational nurses (LVN), PAs, LCSWs, LMFTs, 
registered radiology technologists, and RDHAPs are included in the Aattachment A:labeled  
“Credentialing Verification Instructions.”  How it occurs isn’t a procedure.  The procedure would 
be 1.  Verify credentials. 2.  … 
Standards must include California state standards. Esp if they vary. 
Prefer to have the positions spelled out.  Too many acronyms 
 
Credentialing verification occurs by obtaining Primary source or Secondary source verification in 
accordance with accepted national verification sites and standards. Credentialing documents 
requiring verification and the verification sites for licensed staff (Physicians, Dentists, Nurse 
Practitioners, Registered Nurses, Licensed Vocational Nurses, Physician Assistants, Licensed 
Clinical Social Workers, Marriage and Family Therapists, Registered Radiology Technologists, 
and Registered Dental Hygienist in Alternate Practice) are included in the attachment labeled 
“Credentialing Verification Instructions.” 

Commented [SH3]: All is state controlled EXCEPT 1) 
radiology technicians and 2) physican specialties (Boards).  

Commented [SH4]: It will be too bulky to spell out all 
positions in each place and it is not needed for the users of 
the P&P. 



07-05-6  

Credentialing verification will also be performed for other Clinical Staff (OCS) as noted below. 
All contracted staff will have credentials maintained by the Contractor. Contractors are entities 
with which the County contracts has an executed agreement to provide specific services, and 
includeing, but are not limited to academic institutions and medical registry agencies. The 
Contractor must provide credentials to the Medical Director or designated Clinic Services 
personnel before being privileged at SCHCthe Health Center. This includes contracted 
specialists and hospital academic programs. The Medical Director will grant privileges to 
contracted staff.  Should be mandatory not on request.  Contractor isn’t defined.  Agencies, 
schools, etc. 

A. Credential Review: 
Review of credentials is conducted based on staff category. Attachment A details the 
specific documents and sites wthat will be examined for each item below for each 
position classification.  

B.  
C.B. Privilege Determination 

Granting of privileges is conducted based on a licensed or certified health care 
practitioner’s specific scope, content of patient care servicesappropriateness for the 
profession/position, the privileges requested by the applicants, and documentation of an 
individual’s clinical qualifications and/or performance. skills, experience, and 
competence. 

1. Privileging begins with the submission of an Application for Clinical Privileges 
specific to the appropriate staff category (See Attachments B, C, D, E).  This 
should be 1.  In the Procedures section. 

1. The SCHC Medical Director SCHC grants privileges to LIPs and OLCPs, 
Associate Clinical Social Worker, and Associate MFTs within the category of OCS 
(see B. 3).  Acronyms not clear who in category of ocs 

2.  
2.1. Privileging begins with the submission of an Application for Clinical Privileges 

specific to the appropriate staff category (See Attachments B, C, D, E). 
3. Review of transcripts, continuing education credits, curriculum vitae or resume, 

and letters of reference may be used to assist in determining which privileges to 
grant.Trainees have privileges as defined in the contract between the County and 
their academic institution. 

3. Privileging begins with the submission of an Application for Clinical Privileges 
specific to the appropriate staff category (See Attachments B, C, D, E).  This 
should be 1.  In the Procedures section. 

  
 Review of transcripts, continuing education credits, curriculum vitae or resume, 

and letters of reference may be used to assist in determining which privileges to 
grant.  Section A says these are required not “may” 

4.  
D.C. Responsibilities for whom?  For what? 

The Co-Applicant Board delegates the responsibility of credentialing and privileging to the 
Clinic Services Medical Director. The Medical Director  

Commented [SH5]: It is asked for each time.  I reworded 
this. 



07-05-7  

The Primary Health Services Medical Director is responsible for credentialing and 
privileging all licensed and credentialed medical staff, . The Primary Health Services 
Medical Director is responsible for credentialing other clinical staff, and volunteers not 
affiliated with a program with which SCHC has a formal agreement. The Medical Director 
designates an administrative services officer (ASO) who collects and verifies credentials 
under the supervision of the Medical Director. The assistantASO assistant implements 
and maintains the clinic’s specific database for the Credentialing and Privileging g 
program and compiles data for the Medical Director to review. Academic programs are 
responsible for credential the verification  of the credentials for learners; the specific 
process are is detailed in the contract between the program and SCHC.  The Medical 
Director has the final say and will not approve unless verification is provided and 
indemnity is guaranteed as per the contract between The Regents of the University of 
California and Sacramento County. 

1. Temporary medical staffing (“registry”) service agencies s are responsible for 
thecredential  verification of the credentials ofor the clinical staff they provide 
to SCHC.  Clinical staff needs to be defined and applied specifically to certain 
providers. 

2. Applicants, County employees, volunteers, and contracted staff have the 
burden ofmust produce the information listed below ing information in a timely 
manner (at least 90 days prior to start date) for an adequate evaluation of the 
qualifications and suitability of clinical privileges. The applicant’s failure to 
sustain the burdendo so shall be grounds for denial or termination of 
privileges. Secondary Source Verification: is used for OCS (MA)????. The 
employee provides a copy of their: 

a. MA certificate (if applicable) 
 CPR or BLS/ACLS as applicable certificate 
b.  
c. Vaccine status for Influenza, Hepatitis B, and COVID-19 
 Flu vaccination  
a. Purified protein derivative (PPD)PD documentation aka TB test 
d.  
b. Health assessment statement 
e.  
 Photo ID 
 Photo ID 
f.  

3. Competence 
a. Supervisors perform evaluation of core competencies for staff in their 

respective programs. The data is provided to the designated 
credentialing staff. See PP 04-23 Peer Review Health Clinicians and PP 
04-09 Peer Review Behavioral Health Clinicians.  

b. UCD Program Leads and faculty are responsible for review of medical 
residents delivering medical care under the supervision of the faculty 

Commented [6]: Who is this referring to?  Is 
"assistant" the ASO? 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Commented [ag7]: Why isn’t this referred to Attach A 

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-04-23-Peer-Review-Health-Clinicians.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-04-09-Peer-Review-Behavioral-Health-Clinicians.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-04-09-Peer-Review-Behavioral-Health-Clinicians.docx


07-05-8  

team. 
c. Every resident clinical encounter is reviewed and co-signed by SCHC 

supervising faculty. 
c.  
d. SCHC supervising faculty submit quarterly clinical competency 

evaluations to UC Davis Internal Medicine Residency. 
e. Residents participate in a fFile Rreview twice a year with the Associate 

Program Director or Program Director to review evaluations. 
f. If any corrective actions are implemented regarding a resident's clinical 

care of primary care patients, the Program Director will communicate 
with the SCHC Medical Director. 

4. The Peer Review Committee (PRC) and the , which includes the Medical Director 
andare responsible for at least one licensed physician, assessinges clinical 
competency for licensed health care providers (LIPs and OLCPs), according to 
PP 04-23 Peer Review Health Clinicians. the Peer Review Policy. 

5.4.  

E.D. Approval Process for Initial Hire 
Once employed, each practitioners (LIP, OLCP, Associate Mental Health Clinicians) must 
submit an “Application for Clinical Privileges” (Attachment B) to request Core and Special 
Request Privileges. The Medical Director will review the “Application for Clinical 
Privileges”, all supporting documentation of education, training, current experience and 
demonstrated performance, and may consult with Supervisors, Leads, or Managers of 
respective programs before granting or denying privileges. 

1.  
 
No more thanWithin 90 days following their start date, the Medical Director assesses 
clinical competency to determine whether to maintain the approved privileges. 

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinics/Clinics%20Forms/Posted%20Forms/Privileges%20Approval%20Form%2011-05-13.pdf


07-05-9  

F.E. Adverse Determination Process 
1. The process for reviewing clinical competency, ethics, and professionalism of 

providers and consequences of failure to demonstrate such competency is 
outlined in PP 04-23: Peer Review Policy Clinicians. 

2. For other personnel, the supervisor the County of Sacramento Department of 
Health Services (DHS) Human Resources Discipline Manual or the 
contractual requirements for contracted staff are used to determine whether . 

3. Personnel actions for Ccounty staff may be appealed per applicable County 
Human Resources guidelines and applicable represented labor groups 
approved contracts. 

G.F. Re-Credentialing and Re-Privileging 
1. Medical Director reviews credentials and privileges of LIPs, OLCPs, 

Associate Mental Health Clinicians at least every two years. 
2. The Medical Director renews privileges of practitioners based on maintenance 

of credentials and PRC eer Review Committee recommendations. 
3. Supervising nurses review the competency of MAs and nursesOCS by 

completing the Skill Check List every yearly. See Attachment F: RN Skills 
Checklist Attachment FEand Attachment G: MA Skills Checklist Attachment 
G.Supervising nurses review the competency of OCSs by completing the Skill Check List 
every year. We don’t have dental assistants which is listed in OCS. If we want to keep 
in, then who is reviewing competency? 

3.  
H. Adverse Determination Process: Re-Credentialing and Privileging 
I. Based on Medical Director recommendations for LIPs and OLCPs, a 60-day corrective 

action plan is given when a licensed or credentialed provider has not met performance 
measures. 

J.  
K. If there is not sufficient improvement within 60 days, the Medical Director will consult 

with the Health Program Manager for Operations and follow the County of 
Sacramento Department of Health Services (DHS)’ Human Resources Discipline 
Manual or the contractual requirements for contracted staff. 

L.  
M. Personnel actions for county staff may be appealed per applicable County Human 

Resources guidelines and applicable represented labor groups approved contracts. 
N.G. Confidentiality 

All credentialing and privileging proceedings, deliberation, records, related  activities, and 
information shall beis confidential, and not subject to discovery, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law. Disclosure of such proceedings and records shall be made only as 
required by law, or as needed to fulfill the credentialing activities within the scope of the 
policy. 

 
Attachments: 
Attachment A: Credentialing Verification Instructions 
Attachment B: Application for Clinical Privileges - Providers 
Attachment C: Application for Clinical Privileges - Radiology Technologists  

Commented [DB8]: End Sentence after Checklist for 
Attachment G. 

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-04-23-Peer-Review-Health-Clinicians.pdf
https://insidepersonnelservices.saccounty.gov/DepartmentServices/Documents/discipline_manual.pdf#search=Human%20Resources%20Discipline%20Manual
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/Nurse%20Skills%20Checklist.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/Nurse%20Skills%20Checklist.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/MA%20Skills%20Checklist.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/MA%20Skills%20Checklist.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/Application%20for%20Clinical%20Privileges%20-all%20providers.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/Application%20for%20Clinical%20Privileges%20-%20Radiology%20Tech.pdf


07-05-10  

Attachment D: Application for Clinical Privileges - Dental Hygienists  
Attachment DDE: Application for Clinical privileges - Behavioral Health Clinicians 
Attachment FEF: Registered Nurses Skills Checklist 
Attachment C: Application for Clinical Privileges-Radiology Technologists 
Attachment D: Application for Clinical Privileges-Dental Hygienists 
Attachment E: Application for Clinical Privileges-Registered Nurse 
Attachment F: Registered Nurses Skills Checklist 
Attachment GF: Medical Assistant Health Assessment 
Form Attachment G: Medical Assistant Health Attestation 
Form 
Attachment HGH:  
Medical Assistant Skills Check List

https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/Application%20for%20Clinical%20Privileges%20%20Dental%20Hygienist.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/Application%20for%20Clinical%20Privileges%20-%20BH%20clinicians%201.12.23.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/Nurse%20Skills%20Checklist.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Forms/MA%20Skills%20Checklist.pdf


07-05-11  

 
 
References: 
Health Resources and Services Administration (April 2023). Center Program Site Visit Protocol: 

Examples of Credentialing and Privileging Documentation.  SeeLink to document 
https://bphc.hrsa.gov/compliance/site-visits/site-visit-protocol/credentialing-privileging.   

Health Resources and Services Administration (). Policy Information Notice PIN-2002-22: 
Clarification of Bureau of Primary Health Care Credentialing and Privileging Policy outlined 
in Policy Information Notice 2001-16. Link to document    See link. 

 
PP 04-09 Peer Review Behavioral Health Clinicians 
PP 04-23: Peer Review Policy Clinicians 
Sacramento Department of Health Services (DHS)’s Human Resources Discipline Manual 
Contract between The Regents of the University of California and Sacramento County 

 
Contact: 
Diana Barney, ASO I 

 
Co-Applicant Board Approval Date: 02/19/2021 

https://bphc.hrsa.gov/compliance/site-visits/site-visit-protocol/credentialing-privileging.
https://learning.ftlf.com/sites/default/files/PIN%202002-22%20-%20Clarification%20of%20Bureau%20of%20Primary%20Health%20Care%20Credentialing%20and%20Privileging%20Policy%20outlined%20in%20Policy%20Information%20Notice%202001-16.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-04-09-Peer-Review-Behavioral-Health-Clinicians.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-04-23-Peer-Review-Health-Clinicians.pdf
https://insidepersonnelservices.saccounty.gov/DepartmentServices/Documents/discipline_manual.pdf#search=Human%20Resources%20Discipline%20Manual


Page 1 of 2 

Credentialing Verification Instructions1/13/2021 

 

Credentialing Verification Instructions                                                                                                                                                                         Attachment A 
Credentialing Activity Practitioner Type Verification Type Verification Source 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Verification of licensure, registration or 
certification 

All practitioner types Primary Source Perform “license search” on-line directly with licensing board (example: enter 
license search DDS CA) 

 
MD/DO/DPM/DDS: State of CA Consumer Affairs 

MD: Medical Board of California 

Psychologists: Psychology Board of California 
 

NP: State of CA Board of Registered Nurses; CA registered nurse license, 
Nurse Practitioner number issued by the BRN. 

 
RN: State of CA Board of Registered Nurses 

 
LVN: State of CA Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians 

RT: State of CA Department of Public Health Radiologic Health Branch 

LCSW/LMFT/MH Counselor: State of CA Board of Behavioral Sciences 

RDHAP: Dental Hygiene Board of California 

PA: Physician Assistant Board of California 

 
Curriculum Vitae 

Physicians 
Podiatrists 
Psychologists 

 Submitted to Medical Director 

 
Board Certification 

Physicians 
Podiatrists 
RDHAP 
Psychologists 

Primary Source Perform on-line query by specialty at American Board of Medical Specialties 

 
 
 
 

Education 

Physicians 
Podiatrists 
Nurse Practitioners 
Physician Assistants 
Psychologists 

Primary Source State Licensing Board 

Nurses 
Mental Health Workers 
Radiologic Technologists 
RDHAP 

 
Medical Assistants 

Secondary Source State Licensing Board 
 

Medical Assistant Training without Certification: per Title 16 of the 
California Code of Regulations section 1366.3 (a)(1) and (a)(2) 
and Medical Assistant Training with Certification: per Title 16 of the 
California Code of Regulations section 1366.3 (c)(1)(2)(3) 



Page 2 of 2 

Credentialing Verification Instructions1/13/2021 

 

 
 
 
 

Training 

Physicians 
Podiatrists 
Nurse Practitioners 
Physician Assistants 
Psychologists 

Primary Source State Licensing Board 

Nurses 
Mental Health Workers 
Radiologic Technologists 
Registered Dental 
Hygienist in Alternative 
Practice (RDHAP) 

Secondary Source State Licensing Board 
 
Medical Assistant Training without Certification: per Title 16 of the 
California Code of Regulations section 1366.3 (a)(1) and (a)(2) 
and Medical Assistant Training with Certification: per Title 16 of the 
California Code of Regulations section 1366.3 (c)(1)(2)(3) 

 
 

CME Documentation 

Nurse Practitioners Primary Source Certificate of completion of all courses taken within the last two years. 

Non-Board Certified Physicians 
Nurses 
Mental Health Workers 
Radiologic Technologists 

Secondary Source 
State Licensing Board or certificate of completion. 



Page 3 of 2 

Credentialing Verification Instructions1/13/2021 

 

Credentialing Verification Instructions 
Credentialing Activity Practitioner Type Verification Type Verification 

    

 
DEA 

Physicians 
Nurse Practitioners 
Physician Assistants 

Secondary Source Verification of current DEA certificate. Perform on-line query with 
Department of Justice-Conversion Control 

NPDB Query All licensed practitioner types Required, if reportable National Practitioner Data Base-Examination of malpractice payments and/or 
adverse actions taken against a practitioner 

 
ACLS/CPR 

Physicians 
Nurse Practitioners 
Physician Assistants 
Nurses 
Medical Assistants 

Secondary Source Certification Card 

Health Fitness All clinical staff Secondary Source Tuberculosis questionnaire and skin test and DHHS Clinical Privilege 
Application. 

Immunization All clinical staff Secondary Source Immunization log, per Employee Health Department 
Copy of Flu shot record 

Government Issue Photo ID All clinical staff Secondary Source Government issued photo ID (i.e. Driver’s License or Passport photo ID) 

 
 

Current Competence 

Physicians 
Nurse Practitioners 
Physician Assistants 
Psychologist 
Psychiatrist 

Primary Source Peer review group. 

All other clinical staff Secondary source Supervisor evaluation. 

 
Malpractice insurance verification. 

Physicians 
Nurse Practitioners 
Physician Assistants 
Nurses 
Psychologists 
Licensed Clinical 
Social workers 
(LCSWs 
Licensed Marriage 
and Family 
Therapists (LMFTs) 
Mental Health 
Counselors (MHC) 

Primary Source County self-insurance certification letter. 
UC Davis Medical Center certificate of professional liability insurance 
Registry certificate of professional liability insurance 
Sacramento County Board of Education certificate of professional liability 
insurance 



 

Sacramento County Health Center PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Appendix B 

 

Application for Clinical Privileges - Providers 
 Physician 
 Psychiatrist 
 FNP (Nurse Practitioner) 
 PA (Physician Assistant) 
 Psychologist 
 LCSW (Licensed Clinical Social Worker) 
 LMFT (Licensed Marriage & Family Therapist) 
 Registered Nurse 
 Licensed Vocational Nurse 
 Physical Therapist 

 

Qualifications 
To be eligible to apply for clinical core privileges in primary care, mental health, specialty, or sub-specialty care 
initially the applicant must have a current active licensure to practice in the State of California 

Required previous experience 
Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate current competence and provision of care 
reflective of the scope of privileges requested. 
Reappointment requirements 
To be eligible to renew core privileges, the applicant must have current demonstrated competency and quality 
reflective of the scope of privileges requested for the past 24 months based on results of ongoing professional 
practice evaluation and outcomes. Evidence of current ability to perform requested privileges is required of all 
applicants for renewal of privileges. 

 

Directions  
Applicant 
For each privilege requested, check the applicable core privilege box (es). Applicants have the burden of 
producing information deemed adequate by Sacramento County Health Center for a proper evaluation of current 
competence, current clinical activity, and other qualifications and for resolving any doubts related to 
qualifications for requested privileges. 

 
Medical Director 
Check the appropriate box for recommendation on the last page of this form. If not recommended or 
recommended with conditions, provide condition or explanation on the last page of this form. 

 
Other Requirements 
Note: Privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the appropriate equipment, 
license, staff, and other support required to provide the services defined in this document. Site- specific services 
will be defined by the Sacramento County Health Center. 
While this document defines qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical privileges, the applicant 
must also adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or accreditation requirements that the Sacramento 
County Health Center is obligated to meet. 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 1 



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 2 

 

 

 

Request for Clinical Privileges 
 

Applicant Name:    
 

Privilege Requested: 
 

Initial Appointment 

Reappointment 

Core Privileges 

 Adult Primary Care Core Privileges Requested 
Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide health education and screening to adolescent and adult 
patients with acute illnesses, chronic diseases, and functional disorders of all organ systems. 
Provider will assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with emergent conditions 
consistent with policy regarding emergencies. The core privileges in this specialty include the 
procedures on the procedure list and such other procedures that are extensions of the same 
techniques and skills. 

 

 Behavioral Health Core Privileges Requested 
Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide health education and screening to patients presenting 
with behavioral health symptoms, history, or current provisional diagnosis of mental illness 
and/or substance abuse. 
Provider will assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with emergent behavioral 
health conditions consistent with the Sacramento Health Center policy regarding emergencies. 
The core privileges in this specialty may include services on the Primary Care Services list 
and/or Behavioral Health Services and other services that are extensions of the same 
techniques and skills. This may also include behavioral health services for Medication Assisted 
Treatment 

 

 Pediatric/Adolescent Medicine Core Privileges Requested 
Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide health education and screening to pediatric patients up 
to the age of 18 with common illnesses, injuries, or disorders. This includes the care of the 
normal newborn as well as the uncomplicated premature infant equal to or greater than 36 
weeks gestation. Provider will assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with 
emergent conditions consistent with policy regarding emergencies. The core privileges in this 
specialty include the procedures on the Pediatric procedure list and such other procedures that 
are extensions of the same techniques and skills. 

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Effective from:  _/  _/   

Effective to:  / /  



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 3 

 

 

 

 Obstetrics Privileges Requested 
Evaluate, diagnose, perform history and physical examinations, and manage patients at any 
stage of pregnancy including providing comprehensive obstetrical care. Admit for 
hospitalization or L&D assessment. The core privileges in this specialty include the procedures 
on the Women’s Health & Obstetrics procedure list and such other procedures that are 
extensions of the same techniques and skills. 

 
 
 

 Other: Core Privileges Requested 
I request Privileging in: 
 Specialty Care or Sub-Specialty Care 
 Registered Nursing 
 Licensed Vocational Nursing 
 Physical Therapy 
 Radiology 
 Physician Assistant 
 Other 

 

List procedures or other specialized services you wish to provide for Health Center patients. 
*You may attach separate sheet if more space is required. 
**Verification of competency required. 

1.    
 

2.    
 

3.    
 

4.    
 
 

The “Core Procedure Lists” below are a sampling of procedures included in the respective cores. The 
lists are not intended to be all-encompassing lists but rather reflective of the categories/types of 
procedures included in the cores. 

If you wish to exclude any procedures, please strike through those procedures that you do 
not wish to request, initial, and date. 



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 4 

 

 

 
Core ADULT Primary Care Procedure List 

1. Arthrocentesis and joint injection 
2. Burns, superficial and partial thickness 
3. I & D abscess 
4. Local anesthetic techniques 
5. Manage uncomplicated minor closed fractures and uncomplicated dislocations 
6. Perform history and physical exam 
7. Perform simple skin biopsy or excision 
8. Remove non-penetrating foreign body from the eye, nose, or ear 
9. Suture uncomplicated lacerations 
10. Blood Glucose Point of Care Testing 
11. Hemoglobin A1c Point of Care Testing 
12. Influenza Point of Care Testing 
13. Mononucleosis Point of Care Testing 
14. Pregnancy Point of Care Testing 
15. RSV Point of Care Testing 
16. Strep A Point of Care Testing 
17. Urinalysis Point of Care Testing 
18. Fecal Occult Blood Point of Care Testing 
19. Pertussis Point of Care Testing 

 
 

Core CHILDRENS’S Primary Care Procedure List 
1. I & D abscess 
2. Manage uncomplicated minor closed fractures and uncomplicated dislocations 
3. Perform history and physical exam 
4. Perform simple skin biopsy or excision 
5. Remove non-penetrating corneal foreign body 
6. Suture uncomplicated lacerations 
7. Blood Glucose Point of Care Testing 
8. Hemoglobin A1c Point of Care Testing 
9. Influenza Point of Care Testing 
10. Mononucleosis Point of Care Testing 
11. Pregnancy Point of Care Testing 
12. RSV Point of Care Testing 
13. Strep A Point of Care Testing 
14. Urinalysis Point of Care Testing 
15. Fecal Occult Blood Point of Care Testing 
16. Pertussis Point of Care Testing 



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 5 

 

 

 
Core Women’s Health and Obstetrics Procedure List 

1. Breast mass and cyst aspiration 
2. Diaphragm fitting 
3. Endometrial biopsy 
4. Intrauterine device insertion and removal 
5. Contraceptive implant insertion and removal 
6. Colposcopy 
7. Cervical biopsy 
8. Cervical cryotherapy 
9. Episiotomy 
10. Local anesthesia 
11. Amniotomy 
12. Repair of obstetrical lacerations 
13. Uncomplicated cephalic vaginal delivery 
14. Routine operative obstetrics 

 
Core Behavioral Health Services List 
Provider may be granted privileges to perform brief, focused, and targeted therapeutic services 
included in the following modalities: 

 
1. Provide Individual, Group, and Family Interventions or therapy for treatment of focus 
2. Provide Care Coordination in the Clinic or with other agencies 
3. Provide linkages to appropriate support services 
4. Provide behavioral health education to patients, family members, and other agencies 
5. Provide Substance abuse use assessment, individual therapy, and referrals to group 

therapy 
 

Core Registered Nursing Services List 
1. Perform history and physical exam 
2. Maintain airway and/or trach care 
3. Recognize unstable patients, initiate and participate in basic life support 
4. Administer/titrate oxygen 
5. Perform pulse oximetry 
6. Measure temperature/obtain accurate vital signs (including demonstrating knowledge 

of pediatric norms) 
7. Recognize and address abnormalities 
8. Prepare and administer medications 
9. Calculate safe pediatric dose of medication 
10. Obtain specimens on children 
11. Assess and address immunologic status, including immunization status 
12. Assess and address pain and pain management 
13. Assess and address specific developmental needs of infants and children 



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 6 

 

 

 
Core Licensed Vocational Nursing Services List 

 
1. Assist primary care (including Internal Medicine, Family Medicine, Nurse Practitioners, 

Pediatrics), specialty care, and Refugee Health providers with the following procedures 
a. History and physical exam 
b. Blood Glucose Point of Care Testing 
c. Influenza Point of Care Testing 
d. Mononucleosis Point of Care Testing 
e. Pregnancy Point of Care Testing 
f. RSV Point of Care Testing 
g. Strep A Point of Care Testing 
h. Fecal Occult Blood Point of Care Testing 
i. Pertussis Point of Care Testing 
j. Perform simple skin biopsy and excision 
k. Remove non-penetrating foreign body from eye, nose, or ear 
l. Suture uncomplicated lacerations 
m. Joint injections 
n. I & D abscess 
o. Breast mass and cyst aspiration 
p. DiaphramDiaphragm fitting 
q. Endometrial biopsy 
r. Intrauterine device insertion and removal 
s. Contraceptive implant insertion and remove 
t. Colposcopy 
u. Cervical biopsy 
v. Local anesthesia 
w. Repair of obstetrical lacerations 
x. Start and maintain an IV 
y. Withdraw blood 
z. Maintain airway and/or trach care 
aa. Administer/titrate oxygen 
bb. Calculate safe pediatric dose of medication 

cc. Assess and address immunologic status, including immunization status 
dd. Other procedures for which the provider requests help 



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 7 

 

 

 
2. Perform the following procedures under the guidance of RN and/or provider 

a. Measure temperature/obtain accurate vital signs 
b. Take an initial patient history 
c. Complete Refugee Health Assessment 1st visit protocol 
d. Prepare and administer immunizations 
e. Prepare and administer medications, under provider orders 
f.        Perform pulse oximetry 
g. Recognize unstable patients , initiate and participate in basic life support 
h. Other duties assigned within scope of practice 

 
Core Physical Therapist Procedure List 

 
1. Physical Treatment 

a. Cervical, Thoracic, and lumbar sprains/strains 
b. Lumbar and Cervical radiculopathy 
c. Sacroiliac pain 
d. Scoliosis, lordosis, and kyphosis 
e. Work related injuries 
f. Neck pain 
g. Greater trochanteric bursitis 
h. Hip labral tears 
i. Iliotibial band syndrome 
j. Muscular headaches 
k. Restricted mobility 
l. Whiplash injury 
m. Vertigo 
n. Plantar fasciitis 
o. Acute and chronic ankle sprains 
p. Achilles tendonitis 
q. Balance deficits 
r. Tendonitis (tennis and golfer’s elbow) 
s. Hand, elbow, and wrist fractures 
t. Carpal tunnel syndrome 

2. Myofascial release 
3. Core stabilization 
4. Therapeutic exercise 
5. Active Therapeutic Motion Technique 
6. Biofeedback 
7. Kinesio taping method 
8. Temporomandibular joint dysfunction (TMJ) 

 
Acknowledgement of Practitioner 
I have requested only those privileges by which education, training, current experience, and 



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 8 

 

 

 
demonstrated performance I am qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at designated 
Sacramento County Health Center sites. 

 
I understand that in exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Sacramento 
County Health Center policies and rules applicable generally and any applicable to the particular 
situation. 
Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation. In 
such situations, my actions are governed by the applicable section of the appropriate policies or 
related documents. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Provider Signature Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

By signing below, I hereby attest that I have completed pre-employment 
clearance requirements and have no physical or mental conditions that may 
affect my ability to perform (within the accepted standards of professional 
performance with or without reasonable accommodations) the essential 
functions of my position and/or the privileges I have requested. 

 
I agree, as evidenced by my signature, that the information provided is true and 
complete to the best of my knowledge and that omission and falsification of 
information may be cause for termination or my privileges and/or employment 
from the Sacramento County Health Center. 



Sacramento County Health Center 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
11/18/2019 Page 9 

 

 

 
Medical Director Recommendation 

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above- 
named applicant and have made the following recommendation(s): 

 
 Recommend all requested privileges 

 
 Recommend requested privileges with the changes as noted below 

 
The following privilege(s) is/are granted with conditions and/or modifications: 

 
Privilege Condition/Modification/Not granted 

  

  

  

 
 
 
 

Medical Director Signature Date 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Appendix C 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – Radiology Technologist 

11/02/18 Page 1 

 

 

  Radiology Technologist  
 

Qualifications 
To be eligible to apply to provide patient care with only indirect supervision in primary care, initially the applicant must 
have current California State Radiology Technologist License issued by the Board of Public Health Radiologic Health 
Branch. 

 
Required previous experience 
Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate current competence and provision of care, reflective of the 
scope of privileges requested. 

 
Reappointment requirements 
To be eligible to renew privileges in primary care, the applicant must have current demonstrated competency and quality, 
reflective of the scope of privileges requested, for the past 24 months based on results of ongoing professional practice 
evaluation and outcomes. Evidence of current ability to perform requested privileges is required of all applicants for 
renewal of privileges. 

 

 Directions  
 

Applicant 
Check the “Requested” box for each privilege requested. Applicants have the burden of producing information deemed 
adequate by Sacramento County Health Center for a proper evaluation of current competence, current clinical activity, and 
other qualifications and for resolving any doubts related to qualifications for requested privileges. 

 
Medical Director 
Check the appropriate box for recommendation on the last page of this form. If recommended with conditions or not 
recommended, provide condition or explanation on the last page of this form. 

 
Other Requirements 
Note that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the appropriate equipment, 
license, staff, and other support required to provide the services defined in this document. Site- specific services may be 
defined in Sacramento County Health Center. 

 
This document is focused on defining qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical privileges. The applicant must 
also adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or accreditation requirements that the health center is obligated to 
meet. 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – Radiology Technologist 

11/02/18 Page 2 

 

 

Radiology Technologist  
Request for Privileges 

Radiology Technologist 
 

 

 

Applicant Name:    
 

Privileges Requested for 

Initial Appointment 

Reappointment 

 
Core Privileges 

 
 Radiology Technologist Core Privileges Requested - ADULT 

 
 Radiology Technologist Core Privileges Requested - PEDIATRIC/ADOLESCENT 

 
 Radiology Technologist Core Privileges Requested - OTHER 

Please list other activities or specialized services you wish to provide for Health Center patients. * Verification of 
competency required. 

I request Privileging in: 
 

1.   
 

2.   
 

3.   

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Effective from:  _/  _/   

Effective to:  / /  



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – Radiology Technologist 

11/02/18 Page 3 

 

 

Radiology Technologist 
Core Procedure List 
This list is a sampling of procedures included in the core. This is not intended to be an all-encompassing list but rather, 
reflective of the categories/types of procedures included in the core. If you wish to exclude any procedures, please strike 
through those procedures that you do not wish to request, initial and date. 

General and Pediatrics 
1. Set technical factors to produce diagnostic images and adhere to ALARA 
2. Select continuous or pulsed fluoroscopy 
3. Determine appropriate exposure factors using the following: 

- Fixed kVp technique chart 
- Variable kVp technique chart 
- Calipers (to determine patient thickness for exposure) 

4. Select radiographic exposure factors: 
- Automatic Exposure Control (AEC) 
- kVp and mAs (manual) 

5. Operate radiographic unit and accessories 
6. Operate fluoroscopic unit and accessories 
7. Operate electronic imaging devices 
8. Perform post-processing on digital images in preparation for interpretation 
9. Use radiopaque anatomical side markers at the time of image acquisition 
10. Add electronic annotations on digital images to indicate position or other relevant information 
11. Select equipment and accessories for the examination requested 
12. Explain breathing instructions prior to making the exposure 
13. Position patient to demonstrate the desired anatomy using anatomical landmarks 
14. Modify exposure factors for circumstances such as involuntary motion, casts and splint, pathological conditions, 

contrast agent, or patient’s inability to cooperate 
15. Evaluate images for diagnostic quality 
16. Respond appropriately to digital exposure indicator values 
17. Determine corrective measures if image is not of diagnostic quality and take appropriate action 
18. Identify image artifacts and make appropriate corrections as needed 
19. Adapt radiographic and fluoroscopic procedures for patient condition and location 
20. Select appropriate geometric factors (e.g., SID, OID, focal spot size, tube angle 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – Radiology Technologist 

11/02/18 Page 4 

 

 

Radiology Technologist 
 

Acknowledgement of Practitioner 
I have requested only those privileges which by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated performance I 
am qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at designated Sacramento County Health Center sites. 

I understand that in exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Sacramento County Health Center policies 
and rules applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation. 

 
Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in emergency situations and in such situations my actions 
are governed by the applicable section of the appropriate policies or related documents. 

 

 
Radiology Technologist Signature Date 

 

Medical Director Recommendation 

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above-named applicant and make 
the following recommendation(s): 

 Recommend all requested privileges 
 Recommend requested privileges with the changes as noted below 

The following privilege(s) are granted with conditions and/or modifications: 
 

Privilege Condition/Modification/Not granted 
  

  

  

 
 

Medical Director Signature Date 

Health Attestation/Fitness for Duty 

By signing below, I hereby attest that I have completed pre-employment clearance requirements and have no physical or 
mental conditions that may affect my ability to perform (within the accepted standards of professional performance with or 
without reasonable accommodations) the essential functions of my position and/or the privileges I have requested. 

I agree, as evidenced by my signature, that the information provided is true and complete to the best of my knowledge and 
that omission and falsification of information may be cause for termination or my privileges and/or employment from the 
Sacramento County Health Center. 



PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Appendix D Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 
   Registered Dental Hygienist in Alternative Practice  

Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

 

Qualifications 

To be eligible to apply to provide patient care with only indirect supervision, the applicant must be licensed as a 
Registered Dental Hygienist in Alternative Practice (RDHAP) by the CA Dental Board. 

 
Required previous experience 
Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate current competence and provision of care, 
reflective of the scope of privileges requested. 

 
Reappointment requirements 
To be eligible to renew privileges in patient care, the applicant must have current demonstrated competency and 
quality, reflective of the scope of privileges requested, for the past 24 months based on results of ongoing 
professional practice evaluation and outcomes. Evidence of current ability to perform requested privileges is 
required of all applicants for renewal of privileges. 

 

 Directions  
 

Applicant 
Check the “Requested” box for each privilege requested. Applicants have the burden of producing information 
deemed adequate by Sacramento County Health Center for a proper evaluation of current competence, current 
clinical activity, and other qualifications and for resolving any doubts related to qualifications for requested 
privileges. 

 
Medical Director 
Check the appropriate box for recommendation on the last page of this form. If recommended with conditions or 
not recommended, provide condition or explanation on the last page of this form. 

 
Other Requirements 
Note that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the appropriate 
equipment, license, staff, and other support required to provide the services defined in this document. Site- 
specific services may be defined in Sacramento County Health Center. 

 
This document focuses on defining qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical privileges. The 
applicant must also adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or accreditation requirements that the 
health center is obligated to meet. 



Request for Privileges 
Dental Hygienist 

Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

 
 

 

Applicant Name:    
 

Privileges Requested for 

Initial Appointment 

Reappointment 

 
Core Privileges 

 
 Registered Dental Hygienist in Alternative Practice: Core Privileges Requested – ADULT 

 

 Registered Dental Hygienist in Alternative Practice: Core Privileges Requested - PEDIATRIC/ADOLESCENT 

OFFICE USE ONLY 
 
Effective from:  _/  _/ 
 

  Effective 



Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

Core Procedure List 
This list is a sampling of procedures included in the core. This is not intended to be an all-encompassing list but 
rather, reflective of the categories/types of procedures included in the core. If you wish to exclude any 
procedures, please strike through those procedures that you do not wish to request, initial and date. 

 
 

Dental Hygienist-General and Pediatric 
 

1. Perform mouth mirror inspection of the oral cavity to include charting of obvious lesions, existing 
restorations, and missing teeth 

2. Phone in prescriptions at the direction of the dentist 
3. Receive and prepare patients for treatment, including seating, positioning of the chair, and placing napkin 
4. Complete Laboratory authorization forms 
5. Perform routine maintenance of dental equipment 
6. Perform sterilization and disinfection procedures 
7. Monitor and respond to post-surgical bleeding 
8. Polish coronal surfaces of teeth 
9. Transfer dental instruments 
10. Place amalgam for condensation by the dentist 
11. Remove sutures 
12. Dry canals 
13. Tie in archwires 
14. Apply topical fluoride 
15. Select and manipulate gypsums and waxes 
16. Place and remove dental dam 
17. Perform supragingival scaling 
18. Apply topical, therapeutic, and subgingival agents for the control of caries and periodontal disease 
19. Apply effective communication techniques with a variety of patients 
20. Provide patient preventive education and oral hygiene instruction 
21. Provide pre- and post-operative instructions 
22. Demonstrate knowledge of ethics/jurisprudence/patient confidentiality 
23. Demonstrate understanding of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Guidelines 
24. Identify features of rotary instruments 
25. Operate dental radiography equipment for the purpose of oral radiography 
26. Take Preliminary impressions 
27. Take and record Vital signs 
28. Monitor vital signs 
29. Maintain Emergency Kit 
30. Recognize and respond to basic medical emergencies 
31. Recognize and respond to basic dental emergencies 
32. Refer any screened patients with possible oral abnormalities to a dentist for a comprehensive 

examination, diagnosis, and treatment plan 



Sacramento County Health Center  
 

8 
BH Privilege Application updated 1/11/2023 

Acknowledgement of Practitioner 
I have requested only those privileges which by education, training, current experience, and 
demonstrated performance I am qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at designated 
Sacramento County Health Center sites. 

 
I understand that in exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Sacramento 
County Health Center policies and rules applicable generally and any applicable to the particular 
situation. 

 
Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in emergencies, and in such 
situations; my actions are governed by the applicable section of the appropriate policies or related 
documents. 

 

 
Dental Hygienist/Assistant Signature Date 

 
 
 

Medical Director Recommendation 

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above-named 
applicant and make the following recommendation(s): 

 Recommend all requested privileges. 
 Recommend requested privileges with the changes as noted below. 

The following privilege(s) are granted with conditions and/or modifications: 
 

Privilege Condition/Modification/Not granted 
  
  

  
 

 

Medical Director Signature Date  

Health Attestation/Fitness for Duty 

By signing below, I hereby attest that I have completed pre-employment clearance requirements and have no 
physical or mental conditions that may affect my ability to perform (within the accepted standards of professional 
performance with or without reasonable accommodations) the essential functions of my position and/or the 
privileges I have requested. 
 
I agree, as evidenced by my signature, that the information provided is true and complete to the best of my 
knowledge and that omission and falsification of information may be cause for termination or my privileges 
and/or employment from the Sacramento County Health Center. 



Sacramento County Health Center  
 

9 
BH Privilege Application updated 1/11/2023 

 
 
Attachment E                     Application for Clinical Privileges – Behavioral Health 

 Licensed Clinical Social Worker 
 Associate Clinical Social Worker 
 Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist 
 Associate Marriage and Family Therapist 

 

 

Qualifications 
Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW) 
To be eligible to apply to provide patient care with only indirect supervision in behavioral health. The applicant 
must have current California State LCSW License issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences.  
 
 
Associate Clinical Social Worker (ACSW) 
To be eligible to apply to provide patient care with direct supervision by a licensed behavioral health practitioner. 
The applicant must have current California State ACSW registered number issued by the Board of Behavioral 
Sciences.  
 
 
Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist (LMFT) 
To be eligible to apply to provide patient care with only indirect supervision in behavioral health. The applicant 
must have current California State LMFT License issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences.  
 
 
Associate Marriage and Family Therapist (AMFT) 
To be eligible to apply to provide patient care with direct supervision by a licensed behavioral health practitioner. 
The applicant must have current California State AMFT registered number issued by the Board of Behavioral 
Sciences.  
 
 
Required previous experience 
Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate current competence and provision of care, 
reflective of the scope of privileges requested.  
 
 
Reappointment requirements 
To be eligible to renew privileges in primary care, the applicant must have current demonstrated competency and 
quality, reflective of the scope of privileges requested, for the past 12 months based on results of ongoing 
professional practice evaluation and outcomes. Evidence of current ability to perform requested privileges is 
required of all applicants for renewal of privileges. 
 



Sacramento County Health Center  
 

10 
BH Privilege Application updated 1/11/2023 

 
Directions 
 
Applicant 
Check the “Requested” box for each privilege requested. Applicants have the burden of producing information 
deemed adequate by Sacramento County Health Center for a proper evaluation of current competence, current 
clinical activity, and other qualifications and for resolving any doubts related to qualifications for requested 
privileges. 
 
 
Medical Director 
Check the appropriate box for recommendation on the last page of this form. If recommended with conditions or 
not recommended, provide condition or explanation on the last page of this form. 
 
 
Other Requirements 
Note: that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the appropriate 
equipment, license, staff, and other support required to provide the services defined in this document. Site- 
specific services will be defined by the Sacramento County Health Center. 
While this document defines qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical privileges, the applicant 
must also adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or accreditation requirements that the Sacramento 
County Health Center is obligated to meet. 



Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

Request for Privileges 
 

 

 
Applicant Name: ________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Privileges Requested: 
 
Initial Appointment  
 
Reappointment          
  
 
Core Privileges 

 Licensed Clinical Social Worker/Marriage and Family Therapist Core Privileges Requested - ADULT 
Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide consultation to adult patients with symptoms of mental illness and/or substance 
use.   Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with emergent behavioral health conditions. The core 
privileges in this specialty include the services on the Behavioral Health Services list and such other services that are 
extensions of the same techniques and skills. This includes behavioral health services for Medication Assisted Treatment.  
 
 

 Licensed Clinical Social Worker/Marriage and Family Therapist Core Privileges Requested - 
PEDIATRIC/ADOLESCENT 

(Health Center based clinicians) 
Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide consultation to child and adolescent patients with symptoms of mental illness 
and/or substance use.  Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of child and adolescent patients with emergent 
behavioral health conditions. The core privileges in this specialty include the services on the Behavioral Health Services 
list and such other services that are extensions of the same techniques and skills. This includes behavioral health services 
for Medication Assisted Treatment. 
 

 Licensed Clinical Social Worker/Marriage and Family Therapist Core Privileges Requested - 
PEDIATRIC/ADOLESCENT 

(School based clinicians) 
Provide direct mental health services including counseling, consultation, mental health evaluations, treatment, mental 
health assessments and collateral case management for students, parents, and families; identify mental health and 
behavioral needs of students; provide clinical assessments, observation diagnosis, and develop treatment plans for 
students with emotional or behavioral needs.  
Serve as a member of the school team and integrate within the school-wide culture and system;  Provide behavioral 
health support within a multi-tiered intervention framework and engage in prevention and intervention activities; 
Provide mental health and wellness related support services to district staff and educational teams, including case 
consultation and advice concerning student status, diagnosis, and treatment;  Develop and maintain collaborative and 
effective working relationships with students, families, district, and County Office staff, and community partners. 
The core privileges in this specialty include the services on the Behavioral Health Services list and such other services that 
are extensions of the same techniques and skills. This includes behavioral health services for Medication Assisted 
Treatment. 
 
 
 

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Effective from: _/ _/   

Effective to: / /   



Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

 Associate Clinical Social Worker/Associate Marriage and Family Therapist Core Privileges Requested - 
PEDIATRIC/ADOLESCENT-(School Based Clinicians) 

Under the direct supervision of a Licensed Clinical Social Worker or Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist, provide 
outpatient mental health therapy as part of a school-based mental health and wellness team within Sacramento County’s 
continuum of care, while completing supervised clinical fieldwork requirement;  Provide comprehensive, strength based, 
culturally competent, trauma informed, flexible, effective mental health services and support to eligible at-risk children, 
youth, and families; Assist in the development and delivery of school-wide mental health and wellness interventions, 
programs, and trainings; Work closely with care teams at all sites, including but not limited to, graduate clinical interns 
and peer specialists. Provide task supervision to some interns as assigned. 
 
 

 Licensed Clinical Social Worker/Marriage and Family Therapist/Associate Clinical Social 
Workers/Associate Marriage and Family Therapist Core Privileges Requested - OTHER 

Please list other activities or specialized services you wish to provide for Health Center patients/School Based patients. 

 * Verification of competency required. 

I request Privileging in: 
 
                1.__________________________________________________ 
 
                2.__________________________________________________ 
 
                3.__________________________________________________ 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

The “Core Procedure Lists” below are a sampling of procedures included in the respective cores. The lists are not intended to be 
all-encompassing lists but rather reflective of the categories/types of procedures included in the cores. 

 
 
If you wish to exclude any procedures, please strike through those procedures that you do not wish to request, initial, 
and date. 
 
Core ADULT Behavioral Health Services List 
A LCSW/LMFT may be granted privileges to perform brief, focused, and targeted therapeutic services included in the 
following modalities: 

1. Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide consultation to adult patients with symptoms of mental illness 
and/or substance use  

2. Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with symptoms of emergent behavioral health 
conditions  

3. Arrange adult individual, group, and family interventions or therapy for treatment of focus 
4. Provide care coordination within the health center and with other agencies 
5. Provide substance use assessment, individual therapy, and referrals to structured group therapy 
6. Coordinate Behavioral Health Services for Medication Assisted Treatment 
7. Provide linkages to appropriate support services 
8. Consult with Primary Care Services medical staff 
9. Provide behavioral health education to patients, family members, and other agencies 
 
 

Core PEDIATRIC/ADOLESCENT Behavioral Health Services List (Health Center Based) 
A LCSW/LMFT may be granted privileges to perform brief, focused, and targeted therapeutic services included in the 
following modalities: 

1. Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide consultation to child and adolescent patients with symptoms of 
mental illness and/or substance use  

2. Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of child and adolescent patients with symptoms of emergent 
behavioral health conditions  

3. Arrange child and adolescent individual, group, and family interventions or therapy for treatment of focus 
4. Provide care coordination within the health center and with other agencies 
5. Provide substance use assessment, individual therapy, and referrals to structured group therapy 
6. Coordinate Behavioral Health Services for Medication Assisted Treatment 
7. Provide linkages to appropriate support services 
8. Consult with Primary Care Services medical staff 
9. Provide behavioral health education to patients, family members, and other agencies 

 
 
 



Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

Core PEDIATRIC/ADOLESCENT Behavioral Health Services List (School Based) 
A LCSW/LMFT may be granted privileges to perform brief, focused, and targeted therapeutic services included in the 
following modalities: 

1. Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide consultation to child and adolescent patients with symptoms of 
mental illness and/or substance use  

2. Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of child and adolescent patients with symptoms of emergent 
behavioral health conditions  

3. Provide child and adolescent individual, group, and family interventions or therapy for treatment of focus 
4. Provide mental health and wellness related support services to district staff and educational teams 
5. Provide substance use assessment, individual therapy, and referrals to structured group therapy 
6. Coordinate Behavioral Health Services for Medication Assisted Treatment 
7. Provide linkages to appropriate support services 
8. Serve as connector between the County Office of Education, County Office of Health Services, district, 

school and community organizations 
9. Provide behavioral health education to patients, family members, and other agencies 
10. Serve as a resource to school site staff regarding mental health services 
11. Attend and participate in assigned meetings, committees, conferences, in-services, and special events 
12. Collect data and prepare a variety of reports, including data entry and retrieval related to grant 

deliverables and evaluation 
13. Assess the need and deliver training to members of the educational team, parents, guardians, 

caregivers, and community agencies as appropriate 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Updated: 8/17/20 

 

 

Acknowledgement of Practitioner 
I have requested only those privileges which by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated performance I am 
qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at designated Sacramento County Health Center sites.   
 
I understand that in exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Sacramento County Health Center policies and 
rules applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation. 
 
Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency. In an emergency, my actions are governed by the 
applicable section of the appropriate policies or related documents. 
 

Health Attestation/Fitness for Duty 
 

By signing below, I hereby attest that I have completed pre-employment clearance requirements and have no physical or mental 
conditions that may affect my ability to perform (within the accepted standards of professional performance with or without 
reasonable accommodations) the essential functions of my position and/or the privileges I have requested. 
 
I agree, as evidenced by my signature, that the information provided is true and complete to the best of my knowledge and that 
omission and falsification of information may be cause for termination or my privileges and/or employment from the Sacramento 
County Health Center.  
 
 
_____________________________________________                     __________________________________________  
Provider Signature                                                                             Date 
 

 
 
Medical Director Recommendation 
 
I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above-named applicant and have 
made the following recommendation(s): 
 

 Recommend all requested privileges 
 Recommend requested privileges with the changes as noted below 
 

     The following privilege(s) are granted with conditions and/or modifications:  

Privilege Condition/Modification/Not granted 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  
   
 

                                               ________________________________________________________________________________                                    ____________________________________________________________________ 

Medical Director Signature                                                                     Date 
    

 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Appendix E 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – RN 
06/05/2018 Page 1 

 

 

  Registered Nurse  
 

Qualifications 
To be eligible to apply for clinical core privileges in primary care the initial applicant must have a valid and current Registered 
Nurse license issued by the State of California Board of Registered Nursing and current Life Support Training Certificate (CPR). 
Required previous experience 
Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate current competence and provision of care, reflective of the 
scope of privileges requested. 
Reappointment requirements 
To be eligible to renew core privileges in primary care, the applicant must have demonstrated competency and quality for the 
past 24 months, reflective of the scope of privileges requested which is based on results of ongoing professional practice 
evaluation and outcomes. Evidence of current ability to perform the privileges requested is required of all applicants for 
renewal of privileges. 
 

 Directions  
Applicant 
For each privilege requested, check the applicable Core Privilege box(es). Applicants have the burden of producing information 
deemed adequate by Sacramento County Health Center for a proper evaluation of current competence, current clinical activity, 
and other qualifications and for resolving any doubts related to qualifications for requested privileges. 
 
Nurse Supervisor 
Check the appropriate box for recommendation on the last page of this form. If recommended with conditions or not 
recommended, provide condition or explanation on the last page of this form. 
Other Requirements 
Note that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the appropriate equipment, license, 
staff, and other support required to provide the services defined in this document. Site- specific services may be defined in 
Sacramento County Health Center. 
This document is focused on defining qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical privileges. The applicant must also 
adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or accreditation requirements that the health center is obligated to meet. 
 
Acknowledgement of Practitioner 
I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated performance I 
am qualified to perform and wish to exercise at designated Sacramento County Health Center sites. 
I understand that in exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Sacramento County Health Center policies and 
rules applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation. 
Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation my actions are 
governed by the applicable section of the appropriate policies or related documents. 

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Before:  0.26", Space
Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:  Exactly 13.9 pt, Tab stops: 
3.39", Left +  7.24", Left



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – RN 
06/05/2018 Page 2 

 

 

Registered Nurse  
Request for Privileges 

  Registered Nurse 
 
Applicant Name:    
 

Privileges Requested for Initial Appointment Reappointment 
Core Privileges 
 Primary Care Core Privileges Requested 
Under the guidance of supervising nurse, evaluate, treat, and provide consultation to adult patients with illnesses, diseases, and 
functional disorders of the circulatory, respiratory, endocrine, metabolic, musculoskeletal, hematopoietic, gastroenteric, and 
genitourinary systems. Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with emergent conditions consistent with policy 
regarding emergencies. The core privileges in this specialty include the procedures on the procedure list and such other 
procedures that are extensions of the same techniques and skills. 
 
 Med/Psych Core Privileges Requested 
As noted above for Primary Care AND 
Under the guidance of supervising nurse, evaluate, treat, and provide consultation to adolescent and adult patients with 
psychiatric disorders. Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with emergent conditions consistent with policy 
regarding emergencies. 
 
 Pediatric/Adolescent Medicine Core Privileges Requested 
Under the guidance of supervising nurse, evaluate, and treat pediatric patients up to the age of 18 with common illnesses, 
injuries, or disorders. This includes the care of the normal newborn as well as the uncomplicated premature infant equal to or 
greater than 36 weeks gestation. Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with emergent conditions consistent 
with policy regarding emergencies. The core privileges in this specialty include the procedures on the procedure list and such 
other procedures that are extensions of the same techniques and skills. 
 
 Registered Nurse Core Privileges Requested - OTHER 
Please list other activities or specialized procedures you wish to provide for Health Center patients. * Verification of 
competency required. 
I request Privileging in: 
 
1.   
 

2.   
 

3.   

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Effective from:  _/  _/   

Effective to:  / /  



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – RN 
06/05/2018 Page 3 

 

 

Registered Nurse 
Core Procedure List 
 

This list is a sampling of procedures included in the core. This is not intended to be an all-encompassing list but rather reflective 
of the categories/types of procedures included in the core. If you wish to exclude any procedures, please strike through those 
procedures that you do not wish to request, initial and date. 
 

General 
1. Perform history and physical exam 
2. Maintain airway and/or trach care 
3. Recognize unstable patient, initiate and participate in Basic Life Support 
4. Administer/titrate oxygen 
5. Perform pulse oximetry 
6. Measure temperature, obtain accurate vital signs 
7. Recognize and address abnormalities 
8. Prepare and administer medications 
9. Assess and address physical status and needs 
10. Assess and address immunologic status, including immunization status 
11. Assess and address pain and pain management 
 
 
Pediatrics 
1. Perform history and physical exam 
2. Maintain airway and/or trach care 
3. Recognize unstable pediatric client, initiate and participate in Basic Life 
Support 
4. Administer/titrate oxygen 
5. Perform pulse oximetry 
6. Measure temperature, obtain accurate vital signs and demonstrate 
knowledge of pediatric norms 
7. Obtain specimens on child 
8. Calculate safe pediatric dose of medication 
9. Prepare and administer medications 
10. Assess and address age specific developmental needs of infants and children 
11. Assess and address physical status and needs 
12. Assess and address immunologic status, including immunization status 
13. Assess and address pain and pain management 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – RN 
06/05/2018 Page 4 

 

 

Registered Nurse 
 

Acknowledgement of Practitioner 
I have requested only those privileges which by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated performance I am 
qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at designated Sacramento County Health Center sites. 
 
I understand that in exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Sacramento County Health Center policies and 
rules applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation. 
 
Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation my actions are 
governed by the applicable section of the appropriate policies or related documents. 

 

 

 

Provider Signature Date 
 
Medical Director Recommendation 
 
I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above-named applicant and make the 
following recommendation(s): 
 Recommend all requested privileges 
 Recommend requested privileges with the changes as noted below 
 
The following privilege(s) are granted with conditions and/or modifications: 
 

Privilege Condition/Modification/Not granted 
  

  

  

 
 
 

Fitness for Duty/Health Attestation 
By signing below, I hereby attest that I have completed pre-employment clearance requirements and have no physical or 
mental conditions that may affect my ability to perform (within the accepted standards of professional performance with or 
without reasonable accommodations) the essential functions of my position and/or the privileges I have requested. 

I agree, as evidenced by my signature, that the information provided is true and complete to the best of my knowledge and 
that omission and falsification of information may be cause for termination or my privileges and/or employment from the 
Sacramento County Health Center. 

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Before:  0.26", Line
spacing:  Exactly 13.9 pt, Tab stops:  3.39", Left +  7.24",

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Before:  0.26", Line
spacing:  Exactly 13.9 pt, Tab stops:  3.39", Left +  7.24",

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Before:  0.26", Line
spacing:  Exactly 13.9 pt, Tab stops:  3.39", Left +  7.24",

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Before:  0.26", Line
spacing:  Exactly 13.9 pt, Tab stops:  3.39", Left +  7.24",



Sacramento County Health Center 
Primary Care Services 

Application for Clinical Privileges 

Application for Clinical Privileges – RN 
06/05/2018 Page 5 

 

 

Medical Director Signature Date 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Nursing Staff Clinical Competence Summary 

PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Attachment 
 

03/23/18 1 

 

 

 
 

Provider Name:     
 

License:     
Eval. MM/YY 
(2 yr. period):     

 

Instructions: Provide an evaluation of the practitioner in each of the areas below and check boxes in the left hand 
column to indicate which information sources were used to make the assessment. 

 

Improvement 
Needed* 

Meets 
Expectations 

I. Patient Care: Compassionate, appropriate and effective ☐ ☐ 
☐ Direct Observation of Care 
☐ Transfer of Service or Care 

☐ Assist with Care 
☐ Call coverage 

Comments: 

☐ Use of consultations ☐ Student/Resident Evaluations  
☐ Satisfaction Data ☐ Morbidity/Mortality/CQI Reviews  

 
 

II. Medical/Clinical Knowledge: Demonstrates knowledge of established ☐ ☐ 
and evolving sciences and applies it to  
 and education of 
others. 

☐ Malpractice History ☐ Blood Utilization Comments: 
☐ Infection Control ☐ Invasive Procedures Review 

 

☐ Clinical Activity Report ☐ Utilization Management 
 

☐ Complications ☐ Teaching Conferences 
 

☐ Board Recertification ☐ Drug Utilization 
 

☐ Grand Rounds/CME 
Presentations Given 

☐ Prospective/Concurrent Case    
Management Discussions 

 

 

III. Practice-Based Learning and Improvement: Uses scientific evidence ☐ ☐ 
and methods to investigate, evaluate, improve care 

☐ Teaching Conferences ☐ Participation in performance Comments: 
☐ CME Attended improvement activities 

 

 
 

IV. Interpersonal and Communication Skills: Establishes and maintains ☐ ☐ 
professional relationships with patients, families and peers. 

☐ Patient complaints ☐ Direct Observation of Care Comments: 
☐ Satisfaction Data ☐ Transfer of Service or Care 

 

 
 

V. Systems-Based Practice: Understand the contexts and systems in ☐ ☐ 
which care is provided and applies this knowledge 

☐ CME Attended ☐ Medical Record Documentations Comments: 
☐ Attendance at Provider and/or Staff Meetings 

 

 
 

VI. Professionalism: Demonstrates a commitment to professional 
development, ethical practice, diversity and responsibility to patients, 
profession and society 

 

☐ Incident Reports
☐ Continuing Education 
Relevant to 

☐ Clinical Publications
Practice 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Nursing Staff Clinical Competence Summary 

PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Attachment 
 

03/23/18 2 

 

 

☐ ☐ 

 
Comments: 

 

 



Sacramento County Health Center 
Nursing Staff Clinical Competence Summary 

PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Attachment 
 

03/23/18 3 

 

 

 

*Action Plan for Improvements Needed: 
 
 

 

 

 
Sacramento County Health Center Outpatient Case Involvement 

 
Have Health Center privileges been utilized in the past two years?  ☐ Yes ☐ No 

If yes, estimate number of cases for past two 
years 

☐ 1-5 ☐ 6-25 ☐ 26- 
50 

☐ 51-100 ☐ more than 100 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Supervisor  Signature  Date 
 
 

Signed copy will be forwarded to ASO staff responsible for credentialing. 



PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges: Attachment 
 

Revised 11/09/2018 

 

 

 
County of Sacramento 
Department of Health Services 
Primary Health Division 
Sacramento County Health Center 

 
 
 

HEALTH ATTESTATION STATEMENT 
 
 

By signing below, I hereby attest that I have completed pre-employment clearance 
requirements and have no physical or mental conditions that may affect my ability to perform 
(within the accepted standards of professional performance with or without reasonable 
accommodations) the essential functions of my position. 

I agree, as evidenced by my signature, that the information provided is true and complete to 
the best of my knowledge. 

 
 
 
 

Employee Name:    

Employee Signature:    

Date:   



AAttachment G  

 

Attachment HG:                                                                                                                             County of Sacramento 
DHHS 

PHS/Clinic Services 
MA Skills Checklist 

Employee Name:      Program:      

Skills Assessment Performed By:  Date of Review: 
Standard Blood and Body Fluid Precautions            

Sterile Technique            

Prepare Sterile Tray            

Pap Smear Set up            

Assist with Pap            

Specimen Collection            

Assist with Surgeries/Biopsies            

Wound Care and Dressing Changes            

Documentation            

Assist with Suture/Staple Removal            

Documentation            

Proper Technique for Ear Lavage            

Pharmacy Refill Requests            

Hearing Screening            

EMR            

Enter Vitals            

Height/Weight in lbs            

Documentation of all services            

MA Note            

Scheduling            

Health History            

LMP            

Tobacco Use            

Pain Scale            

Emergencies            

Assist with Fractures            

Assist with Control of Bleeding            

Assist with Burns            

Initiate and assist with Cardiac/Respiratory Arrest            

Assist with Choking            

Assist with Codes            

Security Desk Phone Number            

Poison Control Phone Number            

Certification            

Current CPR            

Audiometry            

Phlebotomy            

HIPAA            

Compliant with HIPAA regulations            

Referrals            

Case Management            

SPIRIT            

Interagency            

Fax Cover Sheet            

Referral Handbook            

            

            



 

 

County of Sacramento DHHS 
PHS/Clinic Services 
MA Skills Checklist 

Employee Name:      

Program:      
Skills Assessment Performed By:      

Date:      

 Independent Requires 
Supervision 

Has Not 
Performed 

Does Not Pertain 
to Level of 

Certification 

Comment 

Lab Tests      

Vision testing/Snellen      

Pregnancy testing      

Urinalysis:      

Collection tubes      

Patient Instruction      

Pap Smear, processing of smear samples      

Throat swab      

Venipuncture      

Capillary blood collection      

Guaic stool collection      

Wound swabs      

Collection tubes      

Sputum collection      

Specimen preservation      

Labeling of specimens      

Lab maintenance      

General Duties      

Vital Signs      

Accurate body positioning for blood pressure     

Manual blood pressure check      

Pulse oximetry      

Stethoscope      

Orderly vital station      

ECG machine      

Lead placement      

Scale      

Breathing treatment/nebulizer      

Glucose check, proper administration      

Intramuscular Injections, proper administration     

Intradermal Injections, proper adminisitrationadministration     

Subcutaneous Injections, proper administration     



 

 

County of Sacramento DHHS 
PHS/Clinic Services 
MA Skills Checklist 

Employee Name:      

Program:      
Skills Assessment Performed By:      

Date:      

 Independent Requires 
Supervision 

Has Not 
Performed 

Does Not Pertain 
to Level of 

Certification 

Comment 

Tuberculin skin test, proper placement      

Wheelchairs      

Sterilization/Autoclave      

Hemoglobin      

Stretchers      

INR finger stick      

Patient education as instructed      
      
      

Exam Rooms:      

Cleanliness      

Paper change      

Disinfect      

Stocked with supplies      

Use of oxygen tank      

Routine level check      

Sharps container      

Standard blood and body fluid precautions     

Sterile technique      

Prepare sterile tray      

Pap smear set up      

Assist with Pap      

Specimen collection      

Assist with surgeries/biopsies      

Wound care and dressing changes      

Documentation      

Assist with suture/staple removal      

Documentation      

Proper Technique for ear lavage      

Pharmacy refill requests      

Hearing screening      

EMR      



 

 

THIS IS A REPEAT OF PAGE 
1 CAN WE DELETE THIS 

PAGE? 
County of Sacramento DHHS 

PHS/Clinic Services 
MA Skills Checklist 

Employee Name:      

Program:      
Skills Assessment Performed By:      

Date:      

 Independent Requires 
Supervision 

Has Not 
Performed 

Does Not Pertain 
to Level of 

Certification 

Comment 

Enter Vitals      

Height/Weight in lbs      

Documentation of all services      

MA Note      

Scheduling      

Health history      

LMP      

Tobacco use      

Pain scale      

Scheduling      

Emergencies      
Assist with fractures      

Assist with control of bleeding      

Assist with burns      

Initiate and assist with Cardiac/Respiratory Arrest     

Assist with choking      

Assist with codes      

Security Desk Phone Number      

Poison Control Phone Number      

Certification      
Current CPR      

Audiometry      

Phlebotomy      

HIPAA      
Compliant with HIPAA regulations      

Referrals      
Case Management      

SPIRIT      

Interagency      

Fax cover sheet      

Referral handbook      



 

 

Other Duties as Assigned      



 

 

County of Sacramento DHHS 
PHS/Clinic Services 
MA Skills Checklist 

Employee Name:      

Program:      
Skills Assessment Performed By:      

Date:      

 Independent Requires 
Supervision 

Has Not 
Performed 

Does Not Pertain 
to Level of 

Certification 

Comment 

Order supplies      

Answer phones and direct calls      

Filing      

Organizing medical records      

Computer skills/E-mail      

Organized work station      

Med Room maintenance      

 



08-20-1 
 

 
 County of Sacramento 

Department of Health Services 
Division of Primary Health Services 

Policy and Procedure 

Policy Issuer 
(Unit/Program) Clinic Services 

Policy Number 08-20 
Effective Date 12-05-2023 
Revision Date 02-08-2024 

 

Title: Registration of Patient Deaths 
 

Functional Area: Health Information Management 

Approved By: Susmita Mishra, MD, Medical Director 

 

Policy:  
It is the policy of the Sacramento County Health Center that the primary care provider 
completes the death certificate for his/her/their patients when requested by a funeral home or 
the coroner’s office. Likewise, all deaths of patients are recorded in the electronic medical 
record, including the official death certificate. The entire process should be completed within two 
business days of receiving the request. 
 
Procedures: 

A. Filling out the Death Certificate Request for Information Form (DCRIF) 
1. Typically, requests for a PCP to fill out a death certificate are received via a 

Death Certificate Request for Information Form (DCRIF) from the funeral home in 
the main (aka IBH) X-Medius box (916-854-9214). 

2. OA receiving the electronic fax: 
a.   Forwards the message with DCRIF to the MA assigned to the patient’s 

PCP via County email. 
b.   Also sends a staff message to the MA via OCHIN. 

3. MA updates the patient’s chart to note patient is deceased.  
a. Demographics tab: Employer and Identification column: Patient status 

change from alive to deceased. 
4. MA prints the form and places it in PCP paper inbox.  
5. MA opens a telephone encounter in the patient’s chart noting that the DCRIF is in 

the PCP’s inbox.   
6. Then the MA routes the telephone encounter to PCP and triage nurse (AM 

Advice/Triage; FM Advice/Triage; Peds: Peds Advice/Triage). PCP may ask for 
worksheet to be emailed to them via secure UCD Outlook.  

a. If PCP is a resident, assigned staff also routes telephone encounter to 
their Firm Attending (for Family Medicine, the doc of the week). 

7. PCP completes the DCRIF. 
B. Returning the DCRIF  

1. PCP (or Supervising Physician for an unlicensed resident or a Nurse Practitioner) 
enters their licensing information.  



08-20-2 
 

2. PCP gives the DCRIF to the MA, either in person or by email, to FAX it back to 
funeral home.   

a. If the DCRIF is not completed in 1 business day, Triage RN will help 
contact PCP 

3. Upon receipt of completed DCRIF, the funeral home prepares the Official death 
certificate and sends it to the IBH X-Medius box or mails it. 
 

C. Signing and Returning the Signed Death Certificate 
 

1. If death certificate is received by fax or mail, follow steps A.1-6 above. 
2. PCP signs the death certificate or completes phone attestation.  
3. PCP gives the signed/attested death certificate to MA (either in person or by 

email) to FAX back to funeral home.  
a.   If not completed in one business day, Triage RN will contact PCP. 

4. Upon receipt of completed death certificate, the funeral home registers the final 
death certificate. 

D. Uploading the Death Certificate to the Patient Medical Record 
1. MA routes signed official death certificate or the Physician Attestation copy to 

Medical Records/Scanning to scan it into the patient’s chart. 

 
Contact: 
Medical Director 
Health Program Manager for Operations 

 
Co-Applicant Board Approval:  



08-20-1 
 

 
 County of Sacramento 

Department of Health Services 
Division of Primary Health Services 

Policy and Procedure 

Policy Issuer 
(Unit/Program) Clinic Services 

Policy Number 08-20 
Effective Date 12-05-2023 
Revision Date 02-08-2024 

 

Title: Registration of Patient Deaths 
 

Functional Area: Health Information Management 

Approved By: Susmita Mishra, MD, Medical Director 

 

Policy:  
It is the policy of the Sacramento County Health Center that the primary care provider 
completes the death certificate for his/her/their patients when requested by a funeral home or 
the coroner’s office. Likewise, all deaths of patients are recorded in the electronic medical 
record, including the official death certificate. The entire process should be completed within two 
business days of receiving the request. 
 
Procedures: 

A. Filling out the Death Certificate Request for Information Form (DCRIF) 
1. Typically, requests for a PCP to fill out a death certificate are received via a 

Death Certificate Request for Information Form (DCRIF) from the funeral home in 
the main (aka IBH) X-Medius box (916-854-9214). 

2. OA receiving the electronic fax: 
a.   Forwards the message with DCRIF to the MA assigned to the patient’s 

PCP via County email. 
b.   Also sends a staff message to the MA via OCHIN. 

3. MA updates the patient’s chart to note patient is deceased.  
a. Demographics tab: Employer and Identification column: Patient status 

change from alive to deceased. 
4. MA prints the form and places it in PCP paper inbox.  
5. MA opens a telephone encounter in the patient’s chart noting that the DCRIF is in 

the PCP’s inbox.   
6. Then the MA routes the telephone encounter to PCP and triage nurse (AM 

Advice/Triage; FM Advice/Triage; Peds: Peds Advice/Triage). PCP may ask for 
worksheet to be emailed to them via secure UCD Outlook.  

a. If PCP is a resident, assigned staff also routes telephone encounter to 
their Firm Attending (for Family Medicine, the doc of the week). 

7. PCP completes the DCRIF. 
B. Returning the DCRIF  

1. PCP (or Supervising Physician for an unlicensed resident or a Nurse Practitioner) 
enters their licensing information.  



08-20-2 
 

2. PCP gives the DCRIF to the MA, either in person or by email, to FAX it back to 
funeral home.   

a. If the DCRIF is not completed in 1 business day, Triage RN will help 
contact PCP 

3. Upon receipt of completed DCRIF, the funeral home prepares the Official death 
certificate and sends it to the IBH X-Medius box or mails it. 
 

C. Signing and Returning the Signed Death Certificate 
 

1. If death certificate is received by fax or mail, follow steps A.1-6 above. 
2. PCP signs the death certificate or completes phone attestation.  
3. PCP gives the signed/attested death certificate to MA (either in person or by 

email) to FAX back to funeral home.  
a.   If not completed in one business day, Triage RN will contact PCP. 

4. Upon receipt of completed death certificate, the funeral home registers the final 
death certificate. 

D. Uploading the Death Certificate to the Patient Medical Record 
1. MA routes signed official death certificate or the Physician Attestation copy to 

Medical Records/Scanning to scan it into the patient’s chart. 

 
Contact: 
Medical Director 
Health Program Manager for Operations 

 
Co-Applicant Board Approval:  



CAB Financial ReportPeriod  6
Current Month December
Percentage of Year  50%

Line Item Budget Current Month Year to date Encumbrance Total YTD Percentage Notes
(YTD+Encumbrance) (Total/Budget)

Revenue
Inter/Intrafund Reimbursements
**  REIMBURSEMENT ACCOUNTS
Intergovernmental Revenue
*   95 ‐ INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV
Charges for Services
*   96 ‐ CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Miscellaneous Revenue
*   97 ‐ MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
Total Revenue 34,014,921$         3,681,694$          17,720,553$     811,707$                   18,532,260$                   54%

Expenses
Personnel
*   10 ‐ SALARIES AND EMPLOYEE
Services & Supplies
*   20 ‐ SERVICES AND SUPPLIES
Other Charges
*   30 ‐ OTHER CHARGES
Equipment ‐$                       ‐$                      ‐$                   ‐$                            ‐$                                 No Equipment Charges in FY 23‐24 as of now
Intrafund Charges (Allocation costs)
*   60 ‐ INTRAFUND CHARGES
Total Expenses 38,921,631$         1,948,588$          15,098,985$     7,215,931$                22,314,916$                   57%

GRAND TOTAL 
(Net County Cost)

4,906,710$        (1,733,106)$      (2,621,568)$    6,404,224$             3,782,655$                 77% Currently slated to come in ~23% (1.1m) below budget

GRANT SUMMARY

HRSA Grant Year Start Grand Year End Total Grant
Available to Claim 
7/1/23‐6/30/24 YTD Claimed Remaining Notes

HRSA Homeless (Main) 3/1/2023 2/29/2024 1,386,602$        750,051$                    750,051$                        ‐$                     Spending on track
HRSA ARP CAP 9/15/2021 9/14/2024 619,603$           ‐$                            ‐$                                 ‐$                     Contruction timeline not yet determined
HRSA HIV 9/1/2022 8/31/2025 975,000$           437,631$                    84,102$                           353,529$            $112k have been carried over from previous funding period
HRSA Bridge Funding 9/1/2023 12/31/2024 41,886$             41,886$                      ‐$                                 41,886$               Funds allocated to vaccines, Board approval was just given to spend. Will be drawing down next quarter
Refugee ‐$                    
RHAP FY 22‐23 10/1/2022 9/30/2023 1,789,062$       1,789,062$               1,789,062$                    ‐$                    Revised claim was submitted for Q4. Grant funds spent
RHAP FY 23‐24 10/1/2023 9/30/2024 1,428,600$        1,428,600$                ‐$                                 1,428,600$         $115.00 for a comprehensive (fully completed) health assessment  & $1,428,600 for administrative costs
RHPP FY 22‐23 10/1/2022 9/30/2023 82,014$             82,014$                     54,471$                          27,543$             
RHPP FY 23‐24 10/1/2023 9/30/2024 139,994$           139,994$                    ‐$                                 139,994$            Waiting for BOS approval
RHPP Multi‐Year 22‐23 10/1/2022 9/30/2023 153,000$          153,000$                   24,626$                          128,374$            Spending was slow due to vacancies ‐2 HSA vacant, 1 MA vacant
RHPP UHP 23‐24 10/1/2023 9/30/2024 99,934$             99,934$                      ‐$                                 99,934$               Waiting for BOS approval
RHPP AHP 22‐23 10/1/2022 9/30/2023 200,000$          200,000$                   22,327$                          177,673$            Spending slow due to vacancies ‐ 1 OA vacant
RHPP AHP 23‐24 10/1/2023 9/30/2024 199,602$           199,602$                    ‐$                                 199,602$            Waiting for BOS approval
Miscellaneous
County ARPA ‐ 1 (H4) 1/1/2022 12/31/2024 2,701,919$        2,701,919$                1,208,458$                     1,493,461$         Spending on track, increased April 2023 when HRSA ARPA expired
County ARPA ‐ 2 (H18) 1/1/2022 12/31/2024 135,000$           135,000$                    16,042$                           118,958$            Telehealth Equipment Award. Reallocated $250k to H4 and offered another $150k back
County ARPA ‐ 2 (H19) 7/1/2022 12/31/2024 319,000$           319,000$                    62,123$                           256,877$            New award, spending slow to start. Have added staff to expend the grant funds

Low due to vacancies (currently 27.0 FTE)

Multiple FY 23‐24 Contracts were recently executed and costs have not been realized yet, but we are slowing getting 
caught up. SCOE invoices have not yet been paid

FY 22‐23 Accruals have all now been paid.

1,375,967$                     46%

7,604,358$                    

12,332,252$                  

1,002,339$                    

48%

65%

95%

1,361,390$        14,577$                     

15,782,496$        

19,071,205$        

1,060,633$          

1,038,349$         

708,791$             

76,361$               

3,007,297$           125,087$             

7,604,358$       

5,601,048$       

532,190$          

‐$                           

6,731,204$               

470,150$                   

63%

33%

Medi‐Cal/Medicare revenue, HRSA, Refugee & ARPA grants

CMISP old pre‐2014 service charges and Medical Record Fees

Currently Prior Year Revenue

13,603,187$     13,603,187$                  

6,004$                            

63$                                  ‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

63$                    

6,004$               

21,712,340$        

18,000$                

‐$                       

2,871,821$         

772$                     

‐$                     

12,284,581$         Typically a lag due to Fiscal processes809,100$              4,111,299$        811,707$                    4,923,006$                     40%



 

 
 County of Sacramento 

Department of Health Services 
Division of Primary Health 

Policy and Procedure 

Policy Issuer 
(Unit/Program) Clinic Services 

Policy Number 11-03 
Effective Date 08-30-18 
Revision Date 10-24-23 

Title: Budget Development, Procurement, and  
 Compliance (General) Functional Area: Administration 

Approved By: Andrew Mendonsa, Psy.D. Division Manager/HRSA Project Director 

 
Policy:  
Fiscal activity in the Sacramento County Health Center (Health Center) must be conducted in 
compliance with multiple sets of regulations and guidelines. Sacramento County Clinic 
Services operates under guidance from the federal Health Resources and Services 
Administration (HRSA) and the California State Department of Health Services, Medi-Cal 
Managed Care.   
SCHC policy and procedures documents 11-03 and 11-04 (Grant Management) were 
reviewed by James D. Lothrop, Auditor and Program Integrity Analyst for the U.S. Department 
of Health and Human Services, HRSA in October 2018, and then Frank Ausby and David 
Fleurquin from HRSA’s Division of Financial Integrity in September 2019 and found to be 
compliant with HRSA and other federal requirements. 
SCHC monitors changes to federal policy by reviewing policy information notices (PINs) and 
Program Assistance Letters (PALs). When necessary, this document is revised to be 
compliant with the regulatory changes.  
Procedures: 

A. Budget Development: 
1. County Budget 

a. The Clinic Budget Administrative Services Officer (ASO II) will consult with 
the Project Director and the Primary Health Division Sr. Admin Analyst when 
planning and developing the County budget, in accordance with the 
Sacramento County Office of Budget and Debt Management instructions. 
The proposed Sacramento County Health Center budget must be reviewed 
and approved by its Co-Applicant Board before submission. In addition, the 
proposed Sacramento County Health Center budget must be approved by 
the Deputy Director for Primary Health before being submitted to the 
Department. 

b. Planning activities for the new Fiscal Year budget shall commence no later 
than December 1 of each year.   

c. The Clinic Budget ASO II must ensure that the Health Center’s budget, in 
addition to the County guidelines, remains in compliance with all HRSA 
guidelines and regulations, including, but not limited to HRSA’s current 
Grants Policy.  

https://www.hrsa.gov/sites/default/files/hrsa/grants/manage/legislative-mandates-grants-management-2023.pdf


d. Specific to the Health Center budget and HRSA grant number H80CS00045, 
as stated in HRSA’s Grants Policy Bulletin, staff shall comply with all State 
and Federal regulations regarding staff salaries. Individual salaries will not 
be paid through the grant or other extramural mechanism, at a rate in 
excess of Executive Level II. The Executive Level II salary was set at 
$212,100 in May 2023. 

2. HRSA Grant Budget 
a. The assigned Clinic Services Budget ASO II will develop the grant budget in 

consultation with the HRSA Project Manager, the Division Manager/HRSA 
Project Director, and the Primary Health Division Sr. Administrative Analyst 
as needed. The HRSA grant budget must be reflected in the County budget 
with respect to accurately reflecting expenditure and revenue authority 
required to accomplish the grant program’s objectives. 

b. The HRSA grant budget will also be compliant with all applicable State and 
Federal requirements. 

B. Procurement: 
1. Staff shall refer to the Primary Health Administration policy on Purchasing 

Guidelines and Procedures when planning and making purchases. Consult with 
the Clinic Budget ASO II and/or the Primary Health Senior Administrative Analyst 
as needed. 

2. In addition to the County and Department guidelines, the Health Center must 
adhere to all federal and state guidelines, including, but not limited to HRSA’s 
current Grants Policy.   

3. HRSA/federal funds shall not be used to purchase sterile needles for illegal drug 
injection such as for use with a syringe exchange or syringe services program. 

4. In accordance with HRSA guidelines, when issuing statements, press releases, 
requests for proposals, bid solicitations and other documents describing projects 
or programs funded in whole or in part with federal money, the Health Center 
shall clearly state:  

i. The percentage of the total costs of the program or project which will be 
financed with federal money;  

ii. The dollar amount of federal funds for the project or program; and  
iii. The percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or program 

that will be financed by non-governmental sources. 
5. When entering into agreements, staff shall ensure that “none of the federal funds 

appropriated or otherwise made available from HRSA are made available for a 
contract, grant, or cooperative agreement with an entity that requires employees 
or contractors of such entity seeking to report fraud, waste, or abuse to sign 
internal confidentiality agreements or statements prohibiting or otherwise 
restricting such employees or contractors from lawfully reporting such waste, 
fraud, or abuse to a designated investigative or law enforcement representative 
of a federal department or agency authorized to receive such information.”   
 
This limitation shall not contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 
312, Form 4414, or any other form issued by a federal department or agency 
governing the nondisclosure of classified information. 

https://insidedtech.saccounty.gov/StaffResources/Pages/PurchasingGuidelines.aspx
https://insidedtech.saccounty.gov/StaffResources/Pages/PurchasingGuidelines.aspx
https://www.hrsa.gov/sites/default/files/hrsa/grants/manage/legislative-mandates-grants-management-2023.pdf


C. Compliance with Federal and State Guidelines: 
1. All staff shall comply with HRSA guidelines and regulations. None of the funds 

received from HRSA may be used for any of the following activities. While this is 
not a wholly comprehensive list, all the following are explicitly forbidden and 
being emphasized here per HRSA:  

a. Provision of abortion services or expended for health benefits coverage that 
includes coverage of abortion. 
 

The limitations established in the preceding section shall not apply to an 
abortion:  

i. If the pregnancy is the result of an act of rape or incest; or 
ii. In the case where a woman suffers from a physical disorder, physical 

injury, or physical illness, including a life-endangering physical condition 
caused by or arising from the pregnancy itself, that would, as certified by 
a physician, place the woman in danger of death unless an abortion is 
performed. 

b. Human Embryo Research. 
c. Distribution of needles or syringes for the hypodermic injection of any illegal 

drug. 
d. Lobbying.  
e. Gun control advocacy. 
f. Promoting the legalization of any drug or other substance included in 

schedule I of the schedules of controlled substances. This limitation shall not 
apply when there is significant medical evidence of a therapeutic advantage 
to the use of such drug or other substance or that federally sponsored clinical 
trials are being conducted to determine therapeutic advantage. 

g. Paying for, promoting or participating in Association of Community 
Organizations for Reform Now (ACORN) services or donating to ACORN or 
any of its affiliates, subsidiaries, allied organizations, or successors. 

h. Viewing, downloading, or exchanging pornography.  
No clinic staff may engage in any of these activities while on work time for the 
Health Center or using Health Center equipment. In addition, Sacramento 
County maintains a network that blocks the viewing, downloading and 
exchanging pornography as required by federal law.  

2. Administration staff will monitor all the activity addressed in this policy monthly 
during the review of the Health Center’s expenditures and general ledger 
accounts, and on an ad-hoc basis as directed by clinic management. Violations 
will be reported to the appropriate clinic managers for corrective measures. 

 
Attachments: 
None 
References: 
HRSA Grants Policy Bulletin 2023-02E 
PP-AS-06-01 General Purchasing Policy 

Commented [SH2R1]: The language does not forbid 
referring to services elsewhere or providing them at SCHC 
with other funds.  It just forbids paying for abortion services 
except in the cases listed.  The language also says it does 
not restrict the ability of a state or locality to contract with a 
health plan that provides abortion coverage as part of its 
services. 

Commented [SH1]: Check specific wording of regulations 
and make it clear which activities are restricted to staff vs. 
about funding. 
 
Need to specifically put in whether referrals to outside 
services are OK. 

https://www.hrsa.gov/sites/default/files/hrsa/grants/manage/legislative-mandates-grants-management-2023.pdf
https://www.hrsa.gov/sites/default/files/hrsa/grants/manage/legislative-mandates-grants-management-2023.pdf
http://inside.dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Admin%20Policies%20and%20Procedures/PP-AS-06-01-General-Purchasing.docx


Contacts: 
Sharon Hutchins, HRSA Project Manager 
 
Co-Applicant Board Approval:  
 



 

 
 County of Sacramento 

Department of Health Services 
Division of Primary Health 

Policy and Procedure 

Policy Issuer 
(Unit/Program) Clinic Services 

Policy Number 11-03 
Effective Date 08-30-18 
Revision Date 10-24-23 

Title: Budget Development, Procurement, and  
 Compliance (General) Functional Area: Administration 

Approved By: Andrew Mendonsa, Psy.D. Division Manager/HRSA Project Director 

 
Policy:  
Fiscal activity in the Sacramento County Health Center (Health Center) must be conducted in 
compliance with multiple sets of regulations and guidelines. Sacramento County Clinic 
Services operates under guidance from the federal Health Resources and Services 
Administration (HRSA) and the California State Department of Health Services, Medi-Cal 
Managed Care.   
SCHC policy and procedures documents 11-03 and 11-04 (Grant Management) were 
reviewed by James D. Lothrop, Auditor and Program Integrity Analyst for the U.S. Department 
of Health and Human Services, HRSA in October 2018, and then Frank Ausby and David 
Fleurquin from HRSA’s Division of Financial Integrity in September 2019 and found to be 
compliant with HRSA and other federal requirements. 
SCHC monitors changes to federal policy by reviewing policy information notices (PINs) and 
Program Assistance Letters (PALs). When necessary, this document is revised to be 
compliant with the regulatory changes.  
Procedures: 

A. Budget Development: 
1. County Budget 

a. The Clinic Budget Administrative Services Officer (ASO II) will consult with 
the Project Director and the Primary Health Division Sr. Admin Analyst when 
planning and developing the County budget, in accordance with the 
Sacramento County Office of Budget and Debt Management instructions. 
The proposed Sacramento County Health Center budget must be reviewed 
and approved by its Co-Applicant Board before submission. In addition,  The 
proposed Sacramento County Health Center budget must be approved by 
the Deputy Director for Primary Health before being submitted to the 
Department. 

b. Planning activities for the new Fiscal Year budget shall commence no later 
than December 1 of each year.   

c. The Clinic Budget ASO II must ensure that the Health Center’s budget, in 
addition to the County guidelines, remains in compliance with all HRSA 
guidelines and regulations, including, but not limited to HRSA’s current 
Grants Policy.  

https://www.hrsa.gov/sites/default/files/hrsa/grants/manage/legislative-mandates-grants-management-2023.pdf


d. Specific to the Health Center budget and HRSA grant number H80CS00045, 
as stated in HRSA’s Grants Policy Bulletin, staff shall comply with all State 
and Federal regulations regarding staff salaries. Individual salaries will not 
be paid through the grant or other extramural mechanism, at a rate in 
excess of Executive Level II. The Executive Level II salary was set at 
$212,100 in May 2023. 

2. HRSA Grant Budget 
a. The assigned Clinic Services Budget ASO II will develop the grant budget in 

consultation with the HRSA Project Manager, the Division Manager/HRSA 
Project Director, and the Primary Health Division Sr. Administrative Analyst 
as needed. The HRSA grant budget must be reflected in the County budget 
with respect to accurately reflecting expenditure and revenue authority 
required to accomplish the grant program’s objectives. 

b. The HRSA grant budget will also be compliant with all applicable State and 
Federal requirements. 

B. Procurement: 
1. Staff shall refer to the Primary Health Administration policy on Purchasing 

Guidelines and Procedures when planning and making purchases. Consult with 
the Clinic Budget ASO II and/or the Primary Health Senior Administrative Analyst 
as needed. 

2. In addition to the County and Department guidelines, the Health Center must 
adhere to all federal and state guidelines, including, but not limited to HRSA’s 
current Grants Policy.   

3. HRSA/federal funds shall not be used to purchase sterile needles for illegal drug 
injection such as for use with a syringe exchange or syringe services program. 

4. In accordance with HRSA guidelines, when issuing statements, press releases, 
requests for proposals, bid solicitations and other documents describing projects 
or programs funded in whole or in part with federal money, the Health Center 
shall clearly state:  

i. The percentage of the total costs of the program or project which will be 
financed with federal money;  

ii. The dollar amount of federal funds for the project or program; and  
iii. The percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or program 

that will be financed by non-governmental sources. 
5. When entering into agreements, staff shall ensure that “none of the federal funds 

appropriated or otherwise made available from HRSA are made available for a 
contract, grant, or cooperative agreement with an entity that requires employees 
or contractors of such entity seeking to report fraud, waste, or abuse to sign 
internal confidentiality agreements or statements prohibiting or otherwise 
restricting such employees or contractors from lawfully reporting such waste, 
fraud, or abuse to a designated investigative or law enforcement representative 
of a federal department or agency authorized to receive such information.”   
 
This limitation shall not contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 
312, Form 4414, or any other form issued by a federal department or agency 
governing the nondisclosure of classified information. 

https://insidedtech.saccounty.gov/StaffResources/Pages/PurchasingGuidelines.aspx
https://insidedtech.saccounty.gov/StaffResources/Pages/PurchasingGuidelines.aspx
https://www.hrsa.gov/sites/default/files/hrsa/grants/manage/legislative-mandates-grants-management-2023.pdf


C. Compliance with Federal and State Guidelines: 
1. All staff shall comply with HRSA guidelines and regulations. None of the funds 

received from HRSA may be used for any of the following activities. While this is 
not a wholly comprehensive list, all the following are explicitly forbidden and 
being emphasized here per HRSA:  

a. Provision of abortion services or expended for health benefits coverage that 
includes coverage of abortion. 
 

The limitations established in the preceding section shall not apply to an 
abortion:  

i. If the pregnancy is the result of an act of rape or incest; or 
ii. In the case where a woman suffers from a physical disorder, physical 

injury, or physical illness, including a life-endangering physical condition 
caused by or arising from the pregnancy itself, that would, as certified by 
a physician, place the woman in danger of death unless an abortion is 
performed. 

b. Human Embryo Research. 
c. Distribution of needles or syringes for the hypodermic injection of any illegal 

drug. 
d. Lobbying.  
e. Gun control advocacy. 
f. Promoting the legalization of any drug or other substance included in 

schedule I of the schedules of controlled substances. This limitation shall not 
apply when there is significant medical evidence of a therapeutic advantage 
to the use of such drug or other substance or that federally sponsored clinical 
trials are being conducted to determine therapeutic advantage. 

g. Paying for, promoting or participating in Association of Community 
Organizations for Reform Now (ACORN) services or donating to ACORN or 
any of its affiliates, subsidiaries, allied organizations, or successors. 

h. Viewing, downloading, or exchanging pornography.  
No clinic staff may engage in any of these activities while on work time for the 
Health Center or using Health Center equipment. In addition, Sacramento 
County maintains a network that blocks the viewing, downloading and 
exchanging pornography as required by federal law.  

2. Administration staff will monitor all the activity addressed in this policy monthly 
during the review of the Health Center’s expenditures and general ledger 
accounts, and on an ad-hoc basis as directed by clinic management. Violations 
will be reported to the appropriate clinic managers for corrective measures. 

 
Attachments: 
None 
References: 
HRSA Grants Policy Bulletin 2023-02E 
PP-AS-06-01 General Purchasing Policy 

Commented [SH2R1]: The language does not forbid 
referring to services elsewhere or providing them at SCHC 
with other funds.  It just forbids paying for abortion services 
except in the cases listed.  The language also says it does 
not restrict the ability of a state or locality to contract with a 
health plan that provides abortion coverage as part of its 
services. 

Commented [SH1]: Check specific wording of regulations 
and make it clear which activities are restricted to staff vs. 
about funding. 
 
Need to specifically put in whether referrals to outside 
services are OK. 

https://www.hrsa.gov/sites/default/files/hrsa/grants/manage/legislative-mandates-grants-management-2023.pdf
https://www.hrsa.gov/sites/default/files/hrsa/grants/manage/legislative-mandates-grants-management-2023.pdf
http://inside.dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Admin%20Policies%20and%20Procedures/PP-AS-06-01-General-Purchasing.docx


Contacts: 
Sharon Hutchins, HRSA Project Manager 
 
Co-Applicant Board Approval:  
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sacramento County Health Center 
Co-Applicant Board 

 
BOARD BYLAWS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Revision Date: November 17, 2023 



 
SCHC Co-Applicant Board Bylaws  
Revision Date: 04/16/2021     

2 

 
 

 

 

 
Table of Contents 
Introduction .......................................................................................................................... 3 

Article I: Purpose ................................................................................................................ 3 

Article II: Responsibilities .................................................................................................... 3 

Article Ill:  Limitations of Authority ........................................................................................ 4 

Article IV: Members ............................................................................................................. 5 

Section 1: Membership .................................................................................................... 5 

Section 2: Membership Qualifications .............................................................................. 5 

Section 3:  Member Recruitment, Selection, and Ratification ............................................ 6 

Section 4:  Responsibilities and Rights of Members .......................................................... 7 

Article V:  Term of Office ...................................................................................................... 7 

Article VI: Removal ............................................................................................................. 8 

Article VII:  Conflict of Interest .............................................................................................. 8 

Article VIII: Compensation ................................................................................................... 8 

Article IX: Meetings ............................................................................................................. 9 

Section 1: Regular Meetings ............................................................................................ 9 

Section 2:  Conduct of Meeting ......................................................................................... 9 

Section 3:  Open and Public .............................................................................................. 9 

Section 4:  Notice, Agenda and Supportive Materials ....................................................... 9 

Section 5: Special Meetings ............................................................................................. 9 

   Section 6:  Quorum and Voting Requirements ................................................................ 10 

Article X: Officers Interest .................................................................................................. 10 

Section 1:  Eligibility ........................................................................................................ 10 

   Section 2:  Nomination and Election ............................................................................... 10 

   Section 3:  Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair ............................................................ 10 

   Section 4: Vacancies ..................................................................................................... 11 

 Section 5:  Responsibilities.........,............................ ........................................................ 11 

Article XI:  Amendments and Dissolution ............................................................................  11 

Certification ........................................................................................................................  12 

Appendix A:  Conflict of Interest ......................................................................................... 13 



 
 

 

3  

 
Introduction 

This body shall be known as the Sacramento County Health Center Co-Applicant Board, and 
shall be hereafter referred to as "CAB". The CAB is also known as "Board" under Health 
Resources and Services Administration (HRSA). The CAB shall serve as the independent 
local co-applicant governing board pursuant to the Public Health Services Act and its 
implementing regulations. The County of Sacramento, a public entity and political subdivision 
of the State of California, shall act as co-applicant with the CAB. 

 
 

Article I: Purpose 
 
The CAB is the community-based governing board mandated by the Health Resources 
Services Administration's ("HRSA") Bureau of Primary Health Care ("BPHC") to set health 
center policy and provide oversight of the County's Federally Qualified Health Center 
("FQHC"), which shall  be hereafter referred to as "Health Center." 
The CAB shall work cooperatively with the County of Sacramento acting in its role as co- 
applicant, to support and guide the Health Center in its mission: 

 
Vision:  
To be an exceptional health care center valued by the communities we serve and our 
team. 
 
Mission:  
To provide high quality, patient-focused, equitable healthcare for the underserved in 
Sacramento County, while providing training for the next generation of local health 
care providers. 

 
Values:  
Accountability • Compassion • Diversity • Equity • Excellence • Education • Respect 

 
Article II:  Responsibilities 

 
The CAB has specific responsibilities to meet the governance expectations of HRSA, while 
day-to-day operational and management authority reside with Sacramento County, 
Department of Health Services (DHS), Primary Health Services Division staff. 
The CAB's responsibilities include providing advice, leadership, and governance in support of 
the Health Center's mission.  . 
The CAB shall have the following responsibilities: 

A. Hold final authority on all areas assigned to the Health Center's HRSA scope of project, 
including services and supports provided through HRSA grant funds, program income, 
and all appropriated funds; 

B. Hold monthly meetings and maintain a record of all official actions; 

C. Approve the annual Health Center budget; 
D. Identification, consultation and selection of services beyond those required in law to be 



 
 

 

4  

provided, as well as the location, mode of delivery of those services and the hours of 
operation; 

E. Adopt policies necessary and proper for the efficient and effective operation of the  
Health Center; 

F. Periodic evaluation of the effectiveness of the Health Center in making services 
accessible to County residents, particularly those experiencing homelessness; 

G. Develop and implement a procedure for hearing and resolving patient grievances; 
Approve quality of care protocols and audits; 

H. Delegate credentialing and privileging of providers to the Medical Director of the Health 
Center, as referenced in the PP CS 07-05 Credentialing and Privileging; 

I. Ensure compliance with federal, state, and local laws and regulations; 
J. Adopt Bylaws; 
K. Approve the selection, performance evaluation, retention, and dismissal of the Health 

Center's Project Director; 
L. Approve Health Center Sliding Fee Discount policy; 
M. Long-term strategic planning, which would include regular updating of the Health  

Center's mission, goals, and plans, as appropriate; 
N. Approve HRSA applications related to the Health Center, including grants/designation 

application and other HRSA requests regarding scope of project; 
O. Ensure new board members are oriented and trained regarding the duties and 

responsibilities of being a board member of an organization subject to FQHC 
requirements and satisfying the educational and training needs of existing members; 
and 

P. Officially, accept the annual audit report and management letter performed by an 
independent auditor in accordance with federal audit requirements. 

NOTE: No individual member shall act or speak for the CAB except as may be specifically 
authorized by the CAB. Members (other than the Health Center Chief Executive Officer/Project 
Director) shall refrain from giving personal advice or directives to any staff of the Health 
Center. 

 
 

Article Ill:  Limitations of Authority 
 

The Board of Supervisors shall maintain the authority to set general policy on fiscal and 
personnel matters pertaining to the Health Center, including financial management practices, 
charges and rate setting, and labor relations and conditions of employment. The CAB may not 
adopt any policy or practice, or take any action, which is inconsistent with the County Code, 
or which alters the scope of any policy of the Board of Supervisors regarding fiscal or 
personnel issues. All policies and practices must adhere to California law, Brown Act 
requirements, and are subject to the Public Records Act. 
The COUNTY through its DHS in consultation with the CAB, shall be solely responsible for 
the management of the financial affairs of the Health Center, including capital and operating 
borrowing; for the development and implementation of financial policies and controls related 



 
 

 

5  

to the Health Center; and receive, manage, allocate, and disburse, as applicable, revenues 
necessary for the operation of the Health Center. 

 
Article IV: Members 

Section 1: Membership 

There shall be between nine (9) and thirteen (13) at large voting members of the CAB and one 
(1) ex-officio non-voting member. 

A. Membership categories: 

1. Board Members - Consumers: 
a. A majority of members of the board shall be individuals who are served 

by the Health Center. This means an individual who is a currently 
registered patient who has accessed Health Center services in the past 
24 months and received at least one service. 

b. As a group, patient members of the board reasonably represent 
individuals who are served by the Health Center in terms of demographic 
factors such as race, ethnicity gender, socioeconomic status, disability 
status, and age. 

c. At least one representative on the board will be from each targeted 
population serviced by the Health Center including homelessness, as 
specifically defined under the section 330 grant. 

d. A legal guardian of a patient who is a dependent child or adult, or a legal 
sponsor of an immigrant, may also be considered a patient for purposes 
of board representation. 

2. Board Members - Community Members: 

a. Members of the board have a broad range of skills, expertise and 
perspectives representing the community served by the Health Center. 

b. Members shall be individuals from differing segments of the County with 
expertise in community affairs, finance, legal affairs, business or other 
commercial concerns. 

c. Members may be advocates who have personally experienced being a 
member of, or represent, or have expertise in or work closely with the 
special population such as individuals experiencing homelessness. 

3. The HRSA Project Director, or designee, shall serve as an ex-officio non-voting 
member of the CAB. 

Section 2:  Membership Qualifications 

A. No more than half of the Community members may receive more than ten percent (10%) 
of his or her annual income from the health care industry (health care industry is 
understood to mean any community clinic or hospital providing health services to low 
income residents of Sacramento). 

B. All members must work, reside in, or be associated with, Sacramento County. No 
member of the CAB shall be an employee or an immediate family member (i.e., spouse, 
child, parent, or sibling, [related by blood, adoption, or marriage]) to such an employee 



 
 

 

6  

of the Department of Health Services of the County of Sacramento, or CAB officer. No 
member shall have a financial interest, which would constitute a conflict of interest. 

Section 3:  Member Recruitment, Selection, and Ratification 

A. Establishment of CAB 
The initial voting members of the CAB were nominated and appointed by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

B. Continuation of CAB 

1. Member Recruitment 
The CAB (or a Committee appointed for this purpose) develops a 
recruitment plan each year, to identify and recruit potential members that 
help fill existing and forecasted gaps in CAB membership including 
regarding  

a. Member classifications, 

b. Populations represented on the CAB,  

c. Member skills, experience and perspectives; and  

d. Segments of the community about which members have expertise.  
The recruitment plan includes strategies designed to effectively reach 
targeted groups or classes of individuals. 
Expiring Terms 

a. Terms end in January.  Recruitment for soon to be expiring terms will 
begin in September so that candidate members can be considered and 
a new CAB member approved prior to the end of the term. 

Vacancies during Terms 

a. The recruitment plan may designate a period during which membership 
applications will be accepted and reviewed  

2. Application Review 
The application for CAB membership and instructions for completing and 
submitting it—as well as information about the Health Center, the CAB, and its 
role, as well as open seats and deadlines for application—are made widely 
available to possible members, including on the Health Center website.  

a. Nominations for voting membership on the CAB may be submitted by 
anyone so long as the nominee meets the membership requirements of 
these Bylaws. 

b. Nominated individuals must submit an application to provide required 
information and to verify their interest and ability to serve as CAB 
members. 

c. Applications are submitted to Health Center staff designated by the CAB.  
Staff verify that applicants meet CAB membership requirements.  All 
applications are sent to the Governance Committee, with a document 
indicating whether or not the applications indicate that the candidate 



 
 

 

7  

meets the membership requirements.  Designated staff will also call 
the references and report the findings to the Governance Committee. 

d. The Governance Committee of the CAB reviews the membership 
applications and talk with possible candidates. The Governance 
Committee then brings forward candidates that they recommend for 
membership to the full CAB. 

3. Approval of CAB members  
The CAB (or a designated Committee or staff member) interviews 
prospective members that meet membership requirements and review their 
skills, experience, perspectives, and other possible contributions to the 
CAB.  The CAB votes on prospective members. 

4. Ratification of CAB members 

a. As outlined in the Co-Applicant Agreement between the CAB and the 
Sacramento County Board of Supervisors, Once approved by the 
CAB, Health Center staff provides the names of approved CAB 
members to the Clerk of the Board or designee. 

b. The Clerk of the Board, or designee, reviews materials and submits for 
ratification by the Board of Supervisors. 

c. The Clerk of the Board notifies the designated Health Center staff of 
BOS actions related to CAB members and sends a ratification letter to 
each new ratified CAB member. 

B. Verification of Eligibility of Existing CAB members 
1.  By December 31st of each calendar year, Health Center staff will verify existing 

CAB member eligibility. Each CAB member will complete the Co-Applicant 
Board Member Secondary Attestation Form attesting to their eligibility (in 
October). 

Section 4:  Responsibilities and Rights of Members 

A. All members must: 
1. Attend all CAB meetings.  If members are absent due to a reason in alignment 

with the Brown Act, their absence may be excused by the Chair (in advance or 
retroactively). 

2. Be subject to the conflict of interest rules applicable to the Board of Supervisors 
of the County of Sacramento and the laws of the State of California. 

B. Members shall be entitled to receive agendas, minutes, and all other materials 
related to the CAB, may vote at meetings of the CAB, and may hold office and may 
chair CAB committees. 

 

Article V:  Term of Office 
 

The term of office for CAB members shall be for four (4) years. A member shall be limited 
to no more than four (4) consecutive terms of membership. The effective date of 
membership corresponds to the date of appointment. 



 
 

 

8  

Any elected member who has served four (4) consecutive, four (4) year terms shall not 
be eligible for re-election until one (1) year after the end of his or her fourth term. Election 
to fill a vacancy for less than three (3) years shall not be counted as service of a four (4) 
year term for this purpose. Unless terminated earlier in accordance with the Bylaws, 
members shall serve their designated term until their successors are elected and 
qualified. 

Article VI: Removal 
 

Any member may be removed whenever the best interests of the Health Center or the 
CAB will be served. The member whose removal is placed in issue shall be given prior 
notice of his/her proposed removal, and a reasonable opportunity to appear and be heard 
at a meeting of the CAB. A member may be removed pursuant to this section by a vote 
of two-thirds (2/3) of the total number of members then serving on the CAB. 
Continuous and frequent absences from the CAB meetings, without reasonable excuse, 
shall be among the causes for removal. In the event that any member is, absent without 
acceptable excuse from three (3) consecutive CAB meetings or from four (4) meetings 
within a period of six (6) months, the CAB shall automatically consider the removal of 
such person from the CAB in accordance with the procedures outlined in this Article. 

The CAB will accept a written or emailed resignation of a CAB member, or a verbal 
resignation if given during a full CAB meeting. The CAB Chair or designee will send an 
email or letter to the CAB member confirming the resignation.  Following seven (7) days 
of receipt of the letter by the CAB, the resignation is accepted. 
 
 
Article VII:  Conflict of Interest 

 
A conflict of interest is a transaction with the Health Center in which a CAB member has 
a direct or indirect actual or perceived interest by the member in an action, which results 
or has the appearance of resulting in personal, organizational, or professional gain. 
Conflict of interest or the appearance of conflict of interest by CAB members, employees, 
consultants and those who furnish goods or services to the Health Center must be 
declared. CAB members are required to declare any potential conflicts of interest by 
completing a Conflict of Interest: Disclosure and Attestation Statement per County of 
Sacramento policy for members appointed to boards and commissions (see Appendix A) 
as well as annually complete the Co-Applicant Board Conflict of Interest: Disclosure and 
Attestation Statement (see Appendix B), in which they attest that they are not,  

• An employee of the Sacramento County Health Center; nor  

• An immediate family member (i.e., spouses, children, parents, or siblings [through 
blood, adoption, or marriage]) of an employee or CAB officer.  

 
In situations when a conflict of interest may exist for a member, the member shall declare 
and explain the conflict of interest. No member of the CAB shall engage in discussion 
about or vote on a topic where a conflict of interest exists for that member. In addition to 
the requirements imposed by these Bylaws, CAB members shall also be subject to all 
applicable state and federal conflict of interest laws. 
 
 



 
 

 

9  

Article VIII: Compensation 
 
Members of the CAB shall serve without compensation from the Health Center.  Travel 
and meal expenses when traveling out of Sacramento County for CAB business shall be 
approved in advance by the CAB. 
 
 
Article IX: Meetings 

 
Section 1:  Regular Meetings 

The CAB shall meet monthly and maintain records/minutes that verify and document the 
Board is functioning.  Where geography or other circumstances make monthly, in-person 
participation in board meetings burdensome, monthly meetings may be conducted by 
telephone or other means of electronic communication where all parties can both listen 
and speak to all other parties. 

Section 2:  Conduct of Meeting 

The meeting shall be conducted in accordance with the most recent edition of The Sturgis 
Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure unless otherwise specified by these Bylaws. 

Section 3:  Open and Public 

All meetings will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown 
Act, open public meeting law, as amended. 

Section 4:  Notice, Agenda and Supportive Materials 

A. Written notice of each regular meeting of the CAB, specifying the time,  place  and 
agenda items, shall be sent to each member not less than seventy-two (72) hours 
prior to the meeting except as permitted by the Ralph M. Brown Act. Preparation 
of the agenda shall be the responsibility of the Chair in conjunction with the Project 
Director, or his or her designee. 

B. The agenda of each regular meeting shall be posted at the Health Center and on 
the Health Center's website: https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/ 
Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-
Board.aspx. 

C. Supportive materials for policy decisions to be voted upon shall be distributed to all 
members along with the agenda. If, on a rare occasion, such prior submission is 
precluded by time pressures, and if the urgency of a CAB vote is established by 
the Chair of the CAB, an item may be placed on the agenda although supporting 
materials are not available in time to be distributed.  However, such material shall 
be available at the meeting. 

D. Items, which qualify as an emergency, can be added to the agenda pursuant to the 
Ralph M. Brown Act. 

Section 5:  Special Meetings 
A. To hold a special meeting, advance notice of such meeting shall be given. 
B. The CAB shall hold an annual meeting during November, at such time and place as is 

https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/%20Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/%20Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/%20Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx


 
 

 

10  

established by the Board upon proper notice, for election of new members and officers, 
and for the transaction of such other businesses as may properly come before the 
CAB. The annual meeting shall serve as the regular meeting for that month. Notice of 
the annual meeting shall be given in writing by the Project Director or his or her 
designee to each member not less than thirty (30) nor more than sixty (60) days prior 
to the date of such meeting. 

Section 6:  Quorum and Voting Requirements 
A. A quorum is necessary to conduct business, make recommendations, or approve 

items. A quorum shall be constituted by the presence of a majority of the appointed 
members of the CAB. 

B. A majority vote of those CAB members present and voting is required to take any action. 

C. Each member shall be entitled to one (1) vote. Voting must be in person or 
telephonically; no proxy votes will be accepted. 

D. CAB member attendance at all meetings shall be recorded. Members are responsible 
for signing the attendance sheet or requesting permission from the CAB’s Point of 
Contact  to participate by telephone or teleconference software or other means allowed 
under the Brown Act. The names of members attending shall be recorded in the official 
minutes. Where geography or other circumstances make monthly, in-person 
participation in board meetings burdensome, monthly meetings may be conducted by 
telephone or other means of electronic communication where all parties can both listen 
and speak to all other parties, as long as these are in compliance with the Brown Act. 
Attendance will be recorded by the Project Director or his or her designee with a roll 
call and participation recorded in the official minutes. 

E. The Project Director shall have direct administrative responsibility for the operation of 
the Health Center and shall attend, or assign a delegate in his/her absence to all 
meetings of the CAB, but shall not be entitled to vote. 

 
 
Article X: Officers 

Section 1:  Eligibility 

The Chair and Vice-Chair shall be chosen from among the voting members of the CAB.  
Members of the CAB shall not be eligible for an officer position until they have served for at 
least six (6) months with the CAB as an active member. An active member is defined as a 
member who has attended all meetings, with the exception of up to two (2) excused absences, 
in the past six months. 

Section 2:  Nomination and Election 
Initial selection of officers upon creation of the CAB transpired at the same CAB Board meeting 
following the adoption of these Bylaws. 

Henceforth, nominations for officers shall be made at the regular October meeting.  A nominee 
may decline nomination. 
Officers shall be elected annually by a majority vote of those members present and voting, as 
the first order of business at the November meeting of the CAB. 

Section 3:  Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair 

Sharon Hutchins
Amend after Brown Act training.



 
 

 

11  

Only members who have been an active member of the CAB for at least six (6) months are 
eligible to be appointed and serve as officers.  
Officers shall be elected for a term of one (1) year, or any portion of an unexpired term thereof.   
A person shall be limited to no more than four (4) consecutive terms of office.   Any elected 
officer who has served four (4) consecutive, one (1) year terms of office shall not be 
eligible for re-election until one (1) year after the end of his or her second term of office.  
This limitation of consecutive terms may be waived by a majority vote of the CAB (with the 
officer in question recusing him or herself from the vote) if no other CAB member is willing 
to serve in that office. A term of office for an officer shall start January 1, and shall terminate 
December 31, of the same year; however, an officer may serve after his or her term ends until 
a successor is elected. 

Section 4: Vacancies 

Vacancies created during the term of an officer shall be filled for the remaining portion of 
the term by special election by the CAB, at a regular or special meeting in accordance 
with this Article. 

Section 5:  Responsibilities 

The officers shall have such powers and shall perform such duties as from time to time 
shall be specified in these Bylaws or other directives of the CAB. 

A. Chair 

The Chair shall preside over meetings of the CAB, shall serve as Chair of the 
Executive Committee, and shall perform the other specific duties prescribed by 
these Bylaws or that may from time to time be prescribed by the CAB. 

B. Vice-Chair 

The Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair in the latter's absence and 
shall provide additional duties that may from time to time be prescribed by the 
CAB. 

 

Article XI:  Amendments and Dissolution 
A. Amendments  

The Bylaws may be repealed or amended, or new Bylaws may be adopted at any 
meeting of the CAB at which a quorum is present, by two-thirds (2/3) of those 
present and voting. At least fourteen (14) days written notice must be given to each 
member of the intention as to alter, amend, repeal, or to adopt new Bylaws at such 
meetings, as well as the written alteration, amendment or substitution proposed. 
Any revisions and amendments must be approved by the CAB. County Board of 
Supervisors must approve any change that alters or conflicts with their action 
establishing CAB. 

B. Dissolution  
Dissolution of the CAB shall only be by affirmative vote of the CAB and County 
Board of Supervisors at duly scheduled meetings. 

 
 



 
 

 

12  

 
 
 

  



 
 

 

13  

Certification 
 

These Bylaws were approved at a meeting of the board by a two-thirds (2/3) majority 
vote on December 15, 2017. 
 
These Bylaws were amended at a meeting of the board by a two-third (2/3) majority vote 
on November 17, 2023.  
 
Signed copies available upon request,  
 
 
 
 
_____________________  ???/2024 
Suhmer Fryer, CAB Chair            Date 

 



 
 

 
Appendix A 

Sacramento County Health Center Co-Applicant Board Conflict of Interest: 
Disclosure and Attestation Statement 

Co-Applicant Board Bylaws / Revised 11/17/2023 
14 

 

 
Conflict of Interest: Defined as an actual or perceived interest by the member in an action, which results 
or has the appearance of resulting in personal, organizational, or professional gain. 

Duty of Loyalty: CAB members shall be faithful to the organization and can never use information 
obtained in his/her position as a CAB member for personal gain. 

Responsibilities of CAB Members: 

A. A CAB member must declare and explain any potential conflicts of interest related to: 

1. Using her/his CAB appointment in any way to obtain financial gain for the member's household 
or family, or for any business with which the CAB member or a CAB member's household or 
family is associated; and/or 

2. Taking any action on behalf of the CAB, the effect of which would be to the member's household 
or family's, private financial gain or loss. 

B. No member of the CAB shall vote in a situation where a personal conflict of interest exists for that 
member. 

C. No voting member of the CAB shall be an employee or an immediate family member of an employee 
of the Health Center; however, a member may otherwise be an employee of the County or 
Department of Health Services. 

D. No CAB member shall be an employee or an immediate family member of an employee of a 
Federally Qualified Health Center. 

E. Any member may challenge any other member(s) as having a conflict of interest by the procedures 
outlined in the CAB's Bylaws, Article IX. 

As a CAB member, my signature below acknowledges that I have received, read, had an opportunity 
to ask clarifying questions regarding these conflict of interest requirements and the CAB Conflict of 
Interest Policy and that I understand the contents of this policy as it relates to my membership and 
responsibilities as a CAB member in capacity of officer, expert volunteer, advocate, consumer, or 
County staff member. I understand that any violation of these requirements may be grounds for removal 
from CAB membership. I further understand that I may be subject to all other applicable state and 
federal conflict of interest requirements in addition to the provisions set forth in these Bylaws.  

I declare that the above statement is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and hereby attest 
to the fact that I am not, 
 

____ A Sacramento County Health Center employee; nor  
INITIALS 
 

____ An immediate family member (defined as a spouse, child, parent, or sibling [by  
INITIALS blood, adoption, or marriage]) of 
 

____ A Sacramento County Health Center employee; nor 
INITIALS 
 

  ____  A Sacramento County Health Center Co-Applicant Board Officer. 
INITIALS 

 
___________________________________  ____________ 
PRINTED NAME      SEAT NUMBER   
 
 
___________________________________  ____________ 

                    SIGNATURE      DATE 


	1-AG-CAB-20240214REV
	2_MIN-CAB- 2024_01_19 draft
	3_HRSA Project  Director Report Feb 2024
	4_Medical Director Report Feb 2024
	5a_Proposed Clinic Growth for FY2024-05_CAB Proposal_REV
	5c_UDS Report for 2023_REV
	Table 3A_Patients by Age and by Sex Assigned at Birth - Universal.pdf
	Table 3A

	Table 5_Staffing and Utilization & Selected Service Detail - Universal.pdf
	Table 5

	Table 6A_Selected Diagnoses and Services Rendered - Universal.pdf
	Table 6A

	Table 6B_Quality of Care Measures.pdf
	Table 6B

	Table 9D_Patient Related Revenue.pdf
	Table9D

	Table 0_Patients by Zip Code_redact.pdf
	Table 0

	Table 3B_Demographic Characteristics - Universal-REDACT.pdf
	Table 3B

	Table 4_Selected Patient Characteristics - Universal-REDACT.pdf
	Table 4

	Table 7A_Health Outcomes and Disparities_REDACT.pdf
	Table 7

	Table 7B_Health Outcomes and Disparities-Redact2.pdf
	Sheet1

	Table 7C_Health Outcomes and Disparities-Redact2.pdf
	Sheet1

	Appendix E_SSH2.pdf
	Other Data Form

	Appendix D_SSH.pdf
	HIT Form


	6_2024 QI Plan _for CAB
	7_PP-CS-03-01-Telephone-Protocol__Approved-reformat needed
	7_PP-CS-03-01-Telephone-Protocol__for CAB
	8_PP-CS-04-12-Patient-Satisfaction-Survey_APPROVED
	Policy:
	Procedures:
	References:
	Attachments:
	Contact:
	Co-Applicant Board Approval Date:
	06/19/2020
	Patient Satisfaction Survey Registration Staff Script
	We want to know how you feel about the care you get at our health center. Please take a few minutes to complete this survey and then return it to one of the locked boxes marked “Completed Patient Surveys.”
	Please fill in the circles completely with the provided pencil. Please do not make a line through your choice or fold or bend the form. Completion of the survey is voluntary and anonymous. Your feedback will help us improve the quality of our services.

	8_PP-CS-04-12-Patient-Satisfaction-Survey_for CAB
	Policy:
	Procedures:
	References:
	Attachments:
	Contact:
	Co-Applicant Board Approval Date:
	06/19/2020
	Patient Satisfaction Survey Registration Staff Script
	We want to know how you feel about the care you get at our health center. Please take a few minutes to complete this survey and then return it to one of the locked boxes marked “Completed Patient Surveys.”
	Please fill in the circles completely with the provided pencil. Please do not make a line through your choice or fold or bend the form. Completion of the survey is voluntary and anonymous. Your feedback will help us improve the quality of our services.

	9_PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges_with Attachments_APPROVED
	Policy
	A. Purpose
	B. Definitions:
	Sacramento County Health Center uses the following terms as defined by HRSA in Policy Information Notice PIN-2002-22 for numbers 1 – 6 below. The lLanguage below is verbatim from that source. For details of what is in scope for each Licensed Independe...
	Procedures:
	A. Credential Review:
	B. Privilege Determination
	C. Responsibilities for whom?  For what?
	D. Approval Process for Initial Hire
	E. Adverse Determination Process
	F. Re-Credentialing and Re-Privileging
	1. Supervising nurses review the competency of MAs and nursesOCS by completing the Skill Check List every yearly. See Attachment F: RN Skills Checklist Attachment FEand Attachment G: MA Skills Checklist Attachment G.Supervising nurses review the compe...
	A. Adverse Determination Process: Re-Credentialing and Privileging
	G. Confidentiality
	Attachments:
	Contact:
	Sacramento County Health Center
	Required previous experience
	Request for Clinical Privileges
	Privilege Requested:

	◻ Adult Primary Care Core Privileges Requested
	Core CHILDRENS’S Primary Care Procedure List
	n. Plantar fasciitis
	Required previous experience
	Reappointment requirements
	Directions
	Medical Director
	Other Requirements
	Core Privileges
	Core Procedure List
	General and Pediatrics
	Acknowledgement of Practitioner
	Medical Director Recommendation
	The following privilege(s) are granted with conditions and/or modifications:
	Required previous experience

	Request for Privileges
	County of Sacramento Department of Health Services Primary Health Division Sacramento County Health Center


	9_PP 07-05 Credentialing and Privileges_with Attachments_for CAB
	Policy
	A. Purpose
	B. Definitions:
	Sacramento County Health Center uses the following terms as defined by HRSA in Policy Information Notice PIN-2002-22 for numbers 1 – 6 below. The lLanguage below is verbatim from that source. For details of what is in scope for each Licensed Independe...
	Procedures:
	A. Credential Review:
	B. Privilege Determination
	C. Responsibilities for whom?  For what?
	D. Approval Process for Initial Hire
	E. Adverse Determination Process
	F. Re-Credentialing and Re-Privileging
	1. Supervising nurses review the competency of MAs and nursesOCS by completing the Skill Check List every yearly. See Attachment F: RN Skills Checklist Attachment FEand Attachment G: MA Skills Checklist Attachment G.Supervising nurses review the compe...
	A. Adverse Determination Process: Re-Credentialing and Privileging
	G. Confidentiality
	Attachments:
	Contact:
	Sacramento County Health Center
	Required previous experience
	Request for Clinical Privileges
	Privilege Requested:

	◻ Adult Primary Care Core Privileges Requested
	Core CHILDRENS’S Primary Care Procedure List
	n. Plantar fasciitis
	Required previous experience
	Reappointment requirements
	Directions
	Medical Director
	Other Requirements
	Core Privileges
	Core Procedure List
	General and Pediatrics
	Acknowledgement of Practitioner
	Medical Director Recommendation
	The following privilege(s) are granted with conditions and/or modifications:
	Required previous experience

	Request for Privileges
	County of Sacramento Department of Health Services Primary Health Division Sacramento County Health Center


	10_08-20-PP-CS-Registration of Patient Deaths_APPROVED
	10_08-20-PP-CS-Registration of Patient Deaths_for CAB
	11_CAB FSR AP 6 (Dec)
	12_PP-CS-11-03-Budget-Development-and-Procurement-Compliance_approved
	12_PP-CS-11-03-Budget-Development-and-Procurement-Compliance_Ready for CAB
	13_Typed in Signature Bylaws_READY FOR CAB
	Introduction
	Article I: Purpose
	Article II:  Responsibilities
	Article Ill:  Limitations of Authority
	Article IV: Members
	Article V:  Term of Office
	Article VI: Removal
	Article VII:  Conflict of Interest
	Article X: Officers




